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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited
(“ICBC Macau”) is a group member of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited (“ICBC”), which holds
its 89.33% interest as at the end of 2015

ICBC Macau is the result of a merger between the former
SengHeng Bank Limited (“SHB”) and ICBC Macau Branch
(“Macau Branch”), and was renamed as Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited (“ICBC Macau”)

upon completion of the acquisition.

History

SHB was incorporated in Macau in 1972, and had a history
of 37 years of service to the local customers and facilitating
growth in Macau. On 28 January 2008, ICBC completed to
acquire 79.93% shareholdings in the former SHB, and which
became a member of the ICBC group.

Macau Branch was established in May 2003 as one of ICBC’s
overseas branches. Since its entrance to the Macau market,

the branch had been growing at a rapid pace.

On 11 July 2009, ICBC first transferred to SHB all assets,
rights and obligations of Macau Branch with additional cash
capital. After which SHB was officially renamed as Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited (“ICBC
Macau”), and ICBC succeeded in brand unification and

complementary advantages in Macau.

On 23 August 2010, ICBC Macau received another
capital increase by shareholders. As such, the Bank has
been operating with stronger business capacity and more
solid finance strength. With incessantly deepening its
risk management at all levels, and advancing in network
construction, business innovation, process optimization,
and internal administration, the Bank has made significant
progresses and also in building its staff and corporate culture.
This resulted in a leap in the market standing and influence
for the Bank and contributed to its leading position on

business scale and performance in the industry.

At the end of 2015, ICBC Macau had 3 subsidiaries, 18
branches, 4 Wealth Management Centers, 7 Securities Trading
Centers, 1 Peony Credit Card VIP Service Center, | SME
Service Center, 31 self-help banks and a network of 288

ATMs located across Macau.
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Products and Services

ICBC Macau leverages its parent company’s signature
strength, massive services network, cutting-edge technology,
and excellent products of its foreign institutions to offer

plenty of financial services to its clients:

Corporate loan, revolving loan, banking syndicated loan,
project loan, construction loan, trade financing and letter of
credit or letter of guarantee, operating loan, mortgage loan,

car loan, education loan, entrusted loan and M&A financing;

Current deposit, savings deposit, time deposit, RMB deposit,
redeemable time deposit, equity-linked notes, diversified

services of Elite Club Account;

Securities trading, funds agency, insurance agency, bond
investment, foreign exchange investment, precious metal
trading, wages distribution agency, receiving and paying
agency, international settlement, remittance, currencies

conversion, e-banking and card business service;

Debt restructuring, financial consultancy, private banking
service, assets management, investment portfolio management,

pension fund management and its consultancy services.

Subsidiaries

ICBC Macau has 3 wholly-owned subsidiaries: ICBC (Macau)
Capital Limited, ICBC (Macau) Pension Fund Management
Company Limited and SengHeng Development Company
Limited.

ICBC (Macau) Capital Limited announced name change on 27
May 2009, which was formerly known as SengHeng Capital
Asia Limited established in May 1998 with a registered
capital of MOP50 million. This subsidiary is committed to
providing fund management services and tailored long-term
investment strategy consultancy services to institutions and

individual clients in Macau.
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ICBC (Macau) Pension Fund Management Company Limited
was renamed on 27 May 2009, which was formerly known
as SengHeng Pension Fund Management Company Limited
established in June 2003 with a registered capital of MOP30
million. This subsidiary is the first and only professional
pension fund management company approved under the
corresponding legislations. In line with the regulations on
pension fund management enacted by the Macau government,

the subsidiary provides a wide range of services.

Incorporated in Hong Kong on 10 January 1997, SengHeng
Development Company Limited holds property and specializes

in the financial and investment market research.

ICBC Macau takes up economic and social responsibilities
in a way of organic unity. It has established an image of
a responsible leading bank in Macau through its support
of economic and social developments, environmental and
resources protection, and participation in social welfare

activities.

TEITHRITROBRAA

INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL
BANK OF CHINA LIMITED

89.33%

100%

T

TRORPDBRERNBERLF
ICBC (MACAU)
CAPITAL LIMITED

P RAES
BFEBRDARAR]

ICBC (MACAU) PENSION FUND

MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED

| 100% 100%

BERZBRAF
SENG HENG DEVELOPMENT
COMPANY LIMITED
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« $R47% The Banker

2015 4F 1 [ b [ de R SRAT (O 48 58 B AR 48 )
The Bank of the Year 2015 Macau (Award for 7th consecutive year)

BRER 4Rl Global Finance

2015 47 WP H ik fo £ BRAT (R AE S L AR AR
The Best Bank in Macau 2015 (Award for 7th consecutive year)

A4t World Finance

2015 47 WP M i fi £ SRAT CREA SR B AR %)
The Best Bank in Macau 2015 (Award for 7th consecutive year)

B E £ MASTERCARD

2015 4B a7 P 22 5 g 4 8
The Highest Growth Rate in 2015 — Merchant Purchase Volume in Macau

B3 E K MASTERCARD

2015 4F- WL i 5% R Y d 4 8
The Highest Growth in 2015 — Open Cards in Macau
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o HE R CUP

2015 4B a7 P AR b Bk
2015 Highest Acquiring Volume — Gold Award in Macau

o HEERIBE CUP

2015 SRR [ o e 22 2 T HiE (fs R ) 8
2015 Highest Acquiring Volume Growth (Credit Card) — Gold Award in Macau

o HERIBE CUP

2015 47 WP [ 3% R wLREE (f5 R ) SR4E
2015 Outstanding Card Award (Credit Card) — Silver Award in Macau

o JERIBE CUP

2015 47 WP [ 3% R L RE (fi T ) SR4E
2015 Outstanding Card Award (Dedit Card) — Silver Award in Macau
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THE DIRECTORS OF THE BANK DURING
THE YEAR WERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Mr. Zhu Xiao Ping
Mr. Wu Long

(appointed on 6 January 2016)
Mr. Jiang Yisheng

(resigned on 6 January 2016)
Mr. Huen Wing Ming, Patrick
Ms. Chen Xiao Yan

(appointed on 30 March 2015)
Ms. Wang Yi Xin

(appointed on 30 March 2015)
Mr. Ma Xiang Jun

(appointed on 17 August 2015)
Mr. Tong Chi Kin
Mr. Wu Hong Bo

(resigned on 17 August 2015)
Mr. Zhu Wen Xin

(resigned on 30 March 2015)
Mr. Cui Ji Qian

(resigned on 30 March 2015)

SINGLE SUPERVISOR
CSC & Associados — Sociedade de Auditores
(represented by Mr. Chui Sai Cheong)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Zheng Kai

AUDITORS
KPMG

LEGAL ADVISER
Dr. Jorge Neto Valente
Dr. Saldanha Henrique
Dr. Leong Hon Man

REGISTERED OFFICE
18/F, ICBC Tower

Macau Landmark

555, Avenida da Amizade, Macau
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Chairman, Managing Director & Executive
Director
Mr. Zhu Xiaoping

Vice-Chairman, CEO & Executive Director
Mr. Wu Long,

(appointed on 6 January 2016)
Mr. Jiang Yisheng

(resigned on 6 January 2016)

Vice-Chairman & Executive Director
Mr. Huen Wing Ming, Patrick

Senior Consultant
Mr. Cheng Wing Fai, Patrick

Deputy CEOs

Mr. Lui Kwok Tai, Stephen
Ms. Lin Zi

Mr. Gu Xuan

Mr. Zheng Kai

Mr. Chan Kam Lun, Felix

Other Senior Management
Mr. Deng Wan Hong, Dennis (4ssistant to CEO)
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We continue to be prudent with our business. All staff
in ICBC Macau work hard together, with professional
expertise, advanced technology and highly efficient
service, pursue for the steady growth of both the values
of our customers and of our shareholders. We undertake
more social responsibilities consciously, strengthen
ourselves as the supreme bank in local market and strive
for becoming one of the best banks in Hong Kong, Macau

and Guangdong province.

4 BE A A

JBe A 25

HAEMAE

BEBEA
BE W

11 U L A T 2
BB
B I T

o 5 L 2 R AR R i

Ao i 251
B
AR PERA

Profit for the year

Shareholder’s equity

Total assets

Operating income

Operating expenses

Operating profit before
impairment losses

Charge for impairment
losses on loans, advances
and trade bills

Repurchase cost of Lehman
Brothers Minibonds

Profit before tax
Income tax expense
Profit for the Year

WA B E 0 MOP million

i _FAEBEIN Increase/

(J& A Decrease)

2013 2014 2015 B %
1,349 1,695 2,117 25%
9,716 11,624 16,926 46%
140,323 177,218 191,826 8%
1 _EAEHEN Increase/

(¥4 Decrease)

2013 2014 2015 A %
2,032 2,784 3,078 11%
(528) (715) (658) -8%
1,504 2,069 2,420 17%
(39) (51) (8) -84%

0 0 0 0%
1,465 2,018 2,412 20%
(116) (323) (295) -9%
1,349 1,695 2,117 25%
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Key Figures for 2015

The Global economy recovered slowly and Macau has been
affectted due to the decline of gaming revenue. Yet the Bank
still recorded a good performance this year. The profit after
tax increased by 25% to Mop2,117 million.

Shareholders’ equity increased by 46% to Mop16,926 million.
Loans and advances to customers increased by 5% to

Mop123,964 million.

Deposits from customers increased by 8% to Mop149,870

million.

Total assets increased by 8% to Mop191,826 million.

T AE 5 Five-year summary
¥4% 2 WML #5C MOP million

2011 2012 2013 2014 | 2015 CAGR*
B Z A
Profit after Tax 890 1,106 1,349 1,695 2,117 24%
I C 0T
Loans and Advances to Cuntomers 58,580 69,023 88,324 117,807 123,964 21%
PR
Deposits from Customers 68,073 93,803 113,112 139,354 149,870 22%
P A fE
Total Assets 88,914 116,530 140,323 177,218 191,826 21%

* CAGR %2011 2015 ZEE AW RE X

* CAGR = Compounded Annual Growth rate from 2011-2015
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and Regulatory Environments

In 2015, the global economy recovery kept slow and weak,
leading to a further unbalance of the major economies’
development. The advanced economies like in USA and UK
have achieved a sustained recovery while the economic picked
up moderately in Europe. But the emerging economies showed
a pronounced slowdown, especially for those commodity
export dependent countries. China economy maintained slow
but steady growth with significant downward pressures.
The volatility in international financial market has risen
significantly due to the economy instability, the low interest

rate environment and the strict financial regulation.

Affected by the decline of gaming revenue and service export
in 2015, Macau’s economy experienced a further retracement.
The transformation of travel consumption pattern and the fall
in tourism revenue also exacerbate the slow down in internal
demand. Yet the unemployment rate remained low, and the
increase of employee and the average salary kept the local
consumption remain stable, meanwhile the inflation pressure
slowed down with sufficient fiscal reserves and healthy
fiscal position. With further cooperation with Guangdong,
Hongkong and Macau area and other organizations mentioned
in “One Belt, One Road” strategy, together with the
development of diversified industries, Macau economy will

keep growing in near future.

Macau’s banking industry faced challenges cautiously in 2015
and succeeded in maintaining its excellent performance. Both
of the total assets and net profits had made a double-digits
growth, the asset quality and its solvency is strong, and the
capital adequacy ratios remained above the legal level. Under
current complicated economic and financial background,
AMCM strived to keep the stability and safety of local
banking system and kept strengthening their risk management
and internal control to safeguard the banking system’s

stability and security.
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Corporate Banking & Investing Banking

The Bank is active in scaling up its corporate banking and
investment banking businesses including syndicated loans,
project financing, international loans, trade financing,
traditional commercial loan and SME finance, etc. And keep
on innovating its financial products and services. In 2015,
the Bank, outperforming in the syndicated loan market,
took the lead in conducting a number of sizable projects in
Macau. The Bank continuously grew in brand recognition
and social reputation in the target markets such as Hong
Kong and Macau, taking steps to be among the leadership
in the local mainstream credit market. The Bank also put
efforts in building a trademark of internal and external
linkage of comprehensive and highly effective business,
proving to be a great partner for Chinese-funded enterprises
in Macau and “going out” enterprises in mainland. In 2015,
the Bank recorded sharp increases in many of the businesses.
It demonstrates diversified developments in both income
structure and customer portfolio as well as the increasing

business.

Retail Banking

In 2015, ICBC Macau proceed to expand its retail banking
business assertively, pursue more quality service to wider
range of consumers’ Also, the Bank carried out increased
resources input, optimized network layout, perfected
supporting functions, enhanced service quality, and advanced
its mechanism innovation, together with all members of ICBC

group.

In 2015 ICBC Macau introduced several innovated financial
products for its retail customers. These products were well
designed to satisfy local residents’ practical financial needs.
The bank also organized several interviews with existing
customers to improve its service and product. Two branches
had been established during the year to optimizing its network

layout and intelligentization transition.
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In response to Macau SAR Government’s policy to motivate
the development of SMEs, the Bank continued its contribution
to economic diversification policy measures, enlarged the
input of resources to SME service center to make better
specialized services available for them and recorded increases

in the related financing business.

The Banks also kept devoting to Macau SAR government’s
economic housing policy to promote the livelihood of people
and made mortgage loans to those qualified applicants. The
Bank’s market share on economic housing mortgage loans

still amounted to over 70% in 2015.

Private Banking & Wealth Management

In 2015 ICBC Macau kept moving the bank’s private banking
business forward to supply better service for its private
banking customers. The bank launched several innovated
financial products for its high-end customers and aimed to
provide superior integrative financial service. It also actively
engaged in cross-border business as well as internal and

external linkage to exploit new markets.

While branching out its financial services channel effectively
and refining the customer layered service system, the Bank
emphasizes on products innovation, popularizing privileged
products and boosting channels construction exclusively for
wealth management, provides global service jointly member
of ICBC group constantly enriching its service areas., At the
end of 2015, the Bank had 4 Wealth Management Centers
in operation, providing one-on-one financial planning and
investment management for high-end and private banking
customers, realizing a value storage or appreciation for their

wealth.

The Bank has 7 Securities Trading Centers, which are
equipped with technologically advanced and powerful stock
trading system, and offer convenient investment service
to customers. In 2015, 4 self-service banking centers were
opened which resulted in 31 self-service banking centers
owned by the Bank and also made the bank a leader in peer.
All of these are to satisfy the financial demands of customers

more conveniently.
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Financial Market

The Bank is aggressive while prudent with its participation
in the financial markets, including money market, bond,
derivatives and precious metal market. Widely utilizing such
market tools as exchange rates, interest rates, commodity
prices, and precious metals, etc., the Bank carries out various
types of proprietary trading and trading for customers,
avoids and manages market risk in an unstable economic
environment. In 2015, the Bank had no difficulty to stay
active and excellent in the local market of RMB bonds and

RMB-related currency market.

Financial Institution Service

The Bank stresses on intensifying cooperation with the
financial industry, working hard to expand its network of
correspondent banks, firming the basis and widening the areas
of cooperation. By establishing correspondent relationships
with nearly 300 banks, the Bank provides customers with
fast, smooth, and complete clearing and service networks
worldwide. In 2015, the Bank continued to work with
financial institutions such as banks and insurance companies
in greater depth, to enhance service levels and broaden its

businesses such as asset custody and remittance agency.

E-Banking Service

In order to always extend our business channels and upgrade
our service system, the Bank has been boosting investments
on its self-service terminals and better laying out the
automated device services. At the end of 2015, the number of
ATMs reached 288, an increase of 45 units over the last year,
creating a channeling advantage with all machines joining
the network of Hong Kong-Macau JETCO and that of China

Unionpay, mostly covering the major areas in Macau.
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The Bank continued to improve its e-banking services with
professional internet financial team in 2015. First, it formally
launched Pavilion of “Macau-e Mart” and “on-line payment
platform”, to attract customers from mainland and seize the
opportunity to develop online financing. Second, the bank
pushed forward the mobile banking system for its customer’s
convinence. Third, the bank produced its self-help registration
system for drawback function to rich its e-channel services.
Forth, the bank carried out several basical functions to
optimize its product such as on-line credit card payment,
on-line fund services and password authentication payment

through short messages.

Bank Card Business

The Bank quickens the innovation and promotion of its card
products and strives to increase its brand influence in 2015.
First, it forwarded lots of competitive co-branded cards and
theme cards by subtle market and customer segmenting. For
example, it introduced the chimelong co-brand card and had
made great progress. Second, it built an integrated marketing
team to advance the acquired business with high quality
clients, together with modificating the business progress and
the system to improve efficiency. Third, it optimized existing
products to respond the demands of customers, such as put
POS machine applied with wifi function into production and
so on. Forth, it strengthened the hotline self-service function
to provide more convenient services for the bank card

customers.

Pension Fund Management

The Bank sustains sound development in its pension fund
management business in 2015. First it strengthened its target
customer’s management through a list system and improved
marketing efficiency. Second it put forward R&D in pension
fund system to lower operating costs. The system will put into
production in 2016. The R&D has been strongly supported by
the Headquarter and once it successfully finished, the bank
could use its own operation pension fund system other than
external services. Third it innovated its products according to
market to support the development of Macau’s pension fund
industry. The bank’s pension fund made great progress this

year and had been the third largest in local market.
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Asset Management and Asset Custody Service

In 2015, the Bank gave full play of the group’s global
business platform to promote the construction of one package
service programs with investment, asset management and
asset custody function. Both the products and the programs
had made obvious progress during the past year. First, it
successfully launched its first “T+0” financial product with
independent research and development. This was also the
first in local market and of all the oversea branches. Second,
it run several large acquisition programs working with the
headoffice, successfully carried out a series of programs such
as the distribution of the preferred stock and the subprime
securities issued by the head office. Third, it focused on
the financial consultant service for local core clients. Forth,
the bank actively explored various business to perfect its
lines construction. Fifth, it cooperated with oganizations
to complete the cross-board asset management projects of
equity investment fund custody service. Sixth, it optimized
the existing ESCROW custody system to meet business
requirements and concentrated on institutional construction to

improve efficiency.
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Macau Fisherman’s Wharf Branch opened on Feb 2nd,
2015
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ICBC Macau attend the opening ceremony of Macau
Franchise Expo on Jul 3rd, 2015
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ICBC Macau sponsored ICBC (Macau) Charity Trophy Y ot

Racing Campaign on Mar 22th, 2015 - — - — s om A
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ICBC (Macau) attend the opening ceremony of 2015
Macau Shopping Festival as officiating guest on Oct
15th, 2015
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Chairman of the board, Mr. Zhu Xiaoping and CEO
Mr. Jiang Yisheng visited the General Union of
Neighbors Association of Macau on May 15th, 2015 2015510 B 22 B - THREMKZHSRIE =+ /ERPIE
BEZREREE](MIF)
ICBC Macau successfully expressed itself in 20th
Macau International Trade Investment Fair on Oct
22th, 2015
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The Bank’s Stand design has acquired Green Stand
Prize in the 20th Macau International Trade Investment
Fair on Oct 22th, 2015
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Studio City Branch opened on Oct 27th, 2015
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ICBC Macau won the most valuable brand business
award of Macau on Nov 26th, 2015
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ICBC Macau made a donation of MOP100,000 to
Macau Tong Sin Tong on Dec 10th, 2015
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ICBC Macau introduced the co-brand dual-currency
CUP card with SIM Holdings Ltd. on Dec 10th, 2015
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ICBC Macau hold the ceremony to issue “Macau
e-Mart” & “Online-pay platform” on Dec 15th, 2015
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Although the global economy will continue the slow upward
development in 2016, it will still be very difficulty to achieve
fully recovery. The Fed had started its interest rate tightening
cycle, the emerging markets maintained facing economic
development issues, the international trade continued
depression, and the geopolitical risk become exacerbate.
All those factors will increase the uncertainty of the global
economy and financial operation. The banks will face severe
challenges on the asset quality, profitability and operation
capacity. In 2016, China will be at the critical period of
transformation in economy structural and risk release,
the bank will have to improve its management standards

considering the more severe competition and strict regulation.

Macau SAR government will attach great importance to
take economic diversification as one of the macro economic
policies, to support the construction of the world tourism
leisure center and the built of the platform to cooperation
with portuguese-speaking countries with the trade business.
The business of the banks will be extended to regional along
with the “One Belt and One Road” strategy and have more
chances with further development. Meanwhile, the banking
industry will also confront positive improving opportunities
with the advantages of Macau as free port and the lower tax
environment, to promote the development of financial service

export, financial lease and cross board business.

In spite of the complex external environment and operational
difficulties, the bank will grasp opportunities arising in
Macau’s appropriate diversification and regional cooperation.
It will give full play to the advantage of ICBC Group, push
forward the balanced development of assets and liabilities
steadily, implement innovation-oriented strategies on retail,
e-banking and intermediate business to promote operational
restructuring. It will further improve its internal management
mechanism and precise management level according to
modern commercial bank management, strengthen its internal
control and risk management and gradually form its enterprise
culture adaptable to Macao’s macro background. It will
also ensure its businesses to develop in a healthy and stable
manner and build a most popular and respectable local bank
as well as one of the best banks in Guangdong, Hong Kong

and Macao.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together
with the audited financial statements of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited (the “Bank”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2015.

Principal place of business

The Bank is incorporated and domiciled in Macau and has its
registered office and principal place of business at 18th Floor,
ICBC Tower, Macau Landmark, 555 Avenida da Amizade,
Macau.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of

banking, financial and other related services in Macau.

Results and dividends

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015
and the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in

the financial statements on pages 26 to 122.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year (2014: Nil).

Directors
The directors of the Bank during the year were:

Mr. Zhu Xiaoping
Mr. Jiang Yisheng
Mr. Wu Long

Mr. Huen Wing Ming, Patrick
Mr. Cui Jigian
Ms. Wang Yixin
Mr. Tong Chi Kin
Mr. Wu Hongbo
Mr. Ma Xiangjun
Ms. Chen Xiaoyan
Mr. Zhu Wenxin

(resigned on 6 January 2016)
(appointed on 6 January 2016)

(resigned on 30 March 2015)
(appointed on 30 March 2015)

(resigned on 17 August 2015)
(appointed on 17 August 2015)
(appointed on 30 March 2015)
(resigned on 30 March 2015)
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Share capital

Details of the Bank’s share capital are set out in note 18 to the
financial statements. There was no movement in the Bank’s
authorised share capital during the year. There were 127,726

(2014: Nil) new shares issued during the year.

Fixed assets

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment,
and investment property of the Group during the year are set
out in note 13 and 14 to the financial statements respectively.
Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG
as auditors of the Group is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the board

Chairman

Zhu Xiaoping

Macau
March 22nd, 2016
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited
(Incorporated in Macau with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited
(the “Bank™) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set
out on pages 26 to 122, which comprise the consolidated
and the Bank’s balance sheets as at 31 December 2015, the
consolidated and the Bank’s income statements, statements of
changes in equity and cash flow statements for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation
and presentation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with the requirements
as set out in the Macau Financial System Act (Decree-Law
No. 32/93/M) and the Macau Financial Reporting Standards
(“MFRSs”) issued under Administrative Regulation No.
25/2005 of the Macau Special Administrative Region (“Macau
SAR”) and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances; and maintaining adequate
and accurate accounting records.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Article 53 of the Macau Financial System Act (Decree-Law
No. 32/93/M) and our agreed terms of engagement, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with the Auditing
Standards and the Technical Standards of Auditing issued by
the Macau SAR. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2015 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with the requirements set
out in Decree-Law No. 32/93/M and the MFRSs.

Lei Iun Mei, Registered Auditor
KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
24th Floor, B&C,

Bank of China Building
Avenida Doutor Mario Soares

Macau
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The notes on pages 36 to 122 form part of these financial statements.

2015 2014
i3 WM T L aTH
Note MOP’000 MOP’000
A WA Interest income 4,813,570 4,745,777
A H Interest expense (2,717,233) (2,786,503)
e A BB A Net interest income 2,096,337 1,959,274
oA 2L A Other operating income 4 981,532 824,699
BEKRA Operating income 3,077,869 2,783,973
BEEH Operating expenses 5 (657,907) (715,054)
5845 vy R Operating profit before
impairment losses 2,419,962 2,068,919
A IR Charge for impairment losses on loans
and advances and trade bills 6 (8,139) (50,925)
BEHG A Profit before tax 2,411,823 2,017,994
P 5 At Income tax expense 7 (295,105) (323,419)
b L Profit for the year 2,116,718 1,694,575
KB 44 ) (AMCM) Ei4%  Effect of additional impairment
SR B WA A 35 A allowance for loans under
Authoridade Monetaria de
Macau (“AMCM?”) rules
i) A Profit after taxation 2,116,718 1,694,575
RAAN A Additional provision under
AMCM rules (90,262) (128,367)
AMCM 283541 1Y Result of the year under
AMCM rules 2,026,456 1,566,208
H1 36 21 122 B S Ff 25 0 F s gt 0 4
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2015
Kt WMo
Note MOP’000
FBBA Interest income 4,812,084
FIEZ H Interest expense (2,719,374)
) SN Net interest income 2,092,710
HoAth 25 ZEUA Other operating income 4 956,446
BEKRA Operating income 3,049,156
CES Gl Operating expenses 5 (648,277)
58 4 vy R Operating profit before

impairment losses 2,400,879

- TE A Charge for impairment losses on loans
and advances and trade bills 6 (8,139)
B8 i A Profit before tax 2,392,740
B AR Income tax expense 7 (292,863)
b Profit for the year 2,099,877

RN 4295 ) (AMCM) Bi 4§ Effect of additional impairment
LR PR IPU A 358 i allowance for loans under
Authoridade Monetaria de
Macau (“AMCM?”) rules

AR IR Profit after taxation 2,099,877
BHAME Additional provision under

AMCM rules (90,262)
AMCM H 4% 35 1 14 Result of the year under

AMCM rules 2,009,615

2014

LY kil
MOP’000

4,745,677

(2,788.,507)

1,957,170

803,061

2,760,231

(704,985)

2,055,246

(50,925)

2,004,321

(321,736)

1,682,585

1,682,585

(128,367)

1,554,218

FH 36 %] 122 B A& B 25 HE Y GE ARFR 4

The notes on pages 36 to 122 form part of these financial statements.
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BEHAMER Balance Sheet

ZEZ-HETFZHZF—H Asat31 December 2015

2015 2014
Mt it WP WT o0 WMo
Note MOP’000 MOP’000
<23 ASSETS
B 4E R SRATE Cash and balances with banks 14,763,526 3,683,938
7 W R e 4 Deposits with monetary authority 2,379,778 2,374,234
8 ] 3 Placements with other banks 8 20,007,442 29,579,704
T2k & g Derivative financial assets 22 265,047 132,224
& P Rk E#ak Loans and advances to customers 9 124,564,549 117,806,940
Ak IR Available-for-sale investments 11 15,745,731 13,397,554
EHIT Ry AL B Available-for-sale investments
pledged as collateral 11, 23 2,001,296 930,819
Wk T e LAt Receivables and other assets 955,786 1,452,542
HHEZER Y HERE Held-to-maturity investments 10 10,843,517 7,586,050
il AR PSS Interests in subsidiaries 12 79,980 79,980
W > BEH Lk Property, plant and equipment 13 290,339 305,183
W Total assets 191,896,991 177,329,168
1 LIABILITIES
[7] SEFE L Deposits from banks 15 16,045,187 10,191,517
B Deposits from customers 16 150,026,985 139,531,461
i L mh Derivative financial liabilities 22 37,066 135,107
HoAth £ 15 Other liabilities 3,101,236 2,840,166
OB EFEREARS Debt issued and borrowed funds 24 4,068,335 4,067,248
BT ERE Certificates of deposit issued 25 1,501,450 8,748,136
T SR 2k Income tax payable 280,277 229,231
PR AT Ff A0 5 Deferred tax liabilities 17 10,974 45,968
A Total liabilities 175,071,510 165,788,834
Bi s 5 hi A EQUITY
AR Issued share capital 18 588,920 461,194
ikt Reserves 16,236,561 11,079,140
T 2 AL Total equity 16,825,481 11,540,334
5 B i A5 5 HE R A8 3 Total equity and liabilities 191,896,991 177,329,168
P i R AR

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

FH 36 2] 122 B A& BA 5 R I FEARFR 40

The notes on pages 36 to 122 form part of these financial statements.
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AHEEAEE Consolidated Balance Sheet
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2015 2014
Mt it WP WT o0 WMo
Note MOP’000 MOP’000
B ASSETS
B 4E R SRATE Cash and balances with banks 15,363,195 3,683,965
TE R W R e 4 Deposits with monetary authority 2,379,778 2,374,234
ey dTES Placements with other banks 8 20,007,442 29,579,704
T2k & g Derivative financial assets 22 2 65,047 132,224
% 7 RO EGK Loans and advances to customers 9 123,964,464 117,806,940
kIR Available-for-sale investments 11 15,745,731 13,397,554
EHIT Ry AL B Available-for-sale investments
pledged as collateral 11, 23 2,001,296 930,819
WE WGk o S oAl A Receivables and other assets 856,269 1,359,296
A 2R R E Held-to-maturity investments 10 10,897,554 7,592,463
Wy > BEH Bkt Property, plant and equipment 13 290,538 305,430
BEE M 5 o Investment property 14 54,559 55,276
W Total assets 191,825,873 177,217,905
1 LIABILITIES
7] SE Ak Deposits from banks 15 16,045,187 10,191,517
B Deposits from customers 16 149,870,331 139,353,733
i L mh Derivative financial liabilities 22 37,066 135,107
HoAth £ 15 Other liabilities 3,082,189 2,819,646
OB EFEREARS Debt issued and borrowed funds 24 4,068,335 4,067,248
BB R Certificates of deposit issued 25 1,501,450 8,748,136
JE B A R Income tax payable 282,349 230,655
WEHE P15 B B Deferred tax liabilities 17 12,886 47,771
A Total liabilities 174,899,793 165,593,813
EEEq £ EQUITY
AR Issued share capital 18 588,920 461,194
ikt Reserves 16,337,160 11,162,898
B 25 4 Total equity 16,926,080 11,624,092
B8 B i AT 2 A Total equity and liabilities 191,825,873 177,217,905
FH g e R AR

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

FH 36 21 122 B Rk 75 3R i sk A 8 40

The notes on pages 36 to 122 form part of these financial statements.
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M H+E Financial Statements (4 Continued)

ﬁﬁ@ﬁ%iﬁi@ Consolidated Statement of Changes n Equlty ZB-AEFZH=F—H For the year ended 31 December 2015

Ll
Reserves
BEEH
RA - Bkl Sl Rfid  BEREE  HREHE Rk it
Issued Investment Foreign
share Share Legal  revaluation exchange Other Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserves profits Total
i RMEEE O RMWEE RMMTR RMETR ORMETFX ORMREE RMWERE RMNER
Note MOP’000  MOP’000  MOP’000  MOP’000  MOP’000  MOP'000  MOP'000  MOP’000
WISE1H1H At 1 January 2015 461,194 2794210 475,557 34,655 1,218 903,894 6,953,364 11,624,092
HEA Profit for the year = = = = - — 2116718 2116718
Biikth Shares issued 18 127726 3,091,503 - — — - — 3219049
Wk EREESE  Change in fair value of
MABHERE available-for-sale
hytiees investment during the year
and the income tax effect = — — (35,604) — — - (35,604)
BT B AYE  Transfer from retained profits
s to legal reserve — — 2,150 = = = (2,150) =
SAMEBERIE  Exchange difference on
#i translation of foreign
operations = = = = 1,625 — — 1,625
AMCMERMEM  Additional provision under
i AMCM requirement — — — — — 90,262 (90,262) =
5412 A31H At31 December 2015 588,920 5,885,733 477,707 (949) 2843 994156 8977,670 16,926,080
WHAETATH At 1 January 2014 461,194 2794210 473,047 (177,362) (671) 715521 5389466 9,715,611
HEAH Profit for the year = = = = - — 1655 1,694,575
WA EREEEE  Change in fair value of
MEERZEL  available-for-sale
Kbl investment during the year
and the income tax effect = = = 212,017 = = — 212,017
BIEREEAEE  Transfer from retained profits
g to legal reserve = = 2310 = = = (2310) =
BAMEBERAE  Exchange difference on
£R translation of foreign
operations = = = = 1,889 = = 1,889
AMCMERf3ql  Additional provision under
ifh AMCM requirement - — - — — 128,367 (128,367) =
4412 A31H  At31 December 2014 461,194 2794210 475,557 34,655 1,218 903,804 6,953,364 11,624,092
ik Note:

ARAT 4 HEVRL T 4 il B A R O B o A R A MR TR BRI Al
A Ay > R RE R A HE A B R BUAE O RE A% 2.3(1) A Y 1 BT
BERMERKE - RB—hEFH=1+—H > &8
SE Rt ik =2 At e 4 4 5 977,179,000 W [ 56 (2 — U 4E %
886,917,000 I [ 75 ) » A48 WAL ™ 4 il B 45 = B 28 T3 S T 43
m °

FH 36 2 122 B & B 7R W sk i ER 4 o

The Group complies with AMCM requirement to maintain impairment
allowance in excess of the Group’s collective impairment allowance
estimated in accordance with the accounting policy as described
in note 2.3(i) through the appropriation of retained profits to other
reserves. As at 31 December 2015, an amount of MOP977,197,000
(2014: MOP886,917,000) net of deferred tax was included in other
reserves which is not distributable under AMCM’s requirement.

The notes on pages 36 to 122 form part of these financial
statements.
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%ﬁ%@]ﬁ Statement of Changes in Equ1ty ZB-AEFZH=+—H For the year ended 31 December 2015

Ll
Reserves
BEEH
RA - Bkl Sl Rfid  BEREE  HREHE Rk it
Issued Investment Foreign
share Share Legal  revaluation exchange Other Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserves profits Total
i RMEEE O RMWEE RMMTR RMETR ORMETFX ORMREE RMWERE RMNER
Note MOP'000  MOP'000 ~ MOP'000  MOP'000  MOP'000  MOP’000  MOP’000  MOP’000
WISE1H1H At 1 January 2015 461,194 2794210 461,194 34,655 1,218 903,804 6,883969 11,540,334
HEA Profit for the year = = = = - — 200877 2,099,877
Bkt Shares issued 18 127726 3,091,503 3,219,049
Wk ERREESE  Change in fair value of
MBI available-for-sale
Rt investment during the year
and the income tax effect = — — (35,604) - — - (35,604)
BT B AYE  Transfer from retained profits
e to legal reserve = = = = = = — —
SAMEBERIE  Exchange difference on
R translation of foreign
operations = = = = 1,625 — — 1,625
AMCMERMEM  Additional provision under
i AMCM requirement = = = = = 90,262 (90,262) —
WISHEAZIH At31 December 2015 588,920 5,885,733 461,194 (949) 2843 994156 8,893,584 16,825,481
W4 TH 1A At 1 January 2014 461,194 2794210 461,194 (177,362) (671) 715521 5,309,751 9,643,843
HEAH Profit for the year = = = = - — 1680385 1,682,585
WS EREEEE  Change in fair value of
MEERZEL  available-for-sale
Rl investment during the year
and the income tax effect = = = 212,017 = = — 212,017
BIERREAEE  Transfer from retained profits
Bl to legal reserve - - - - - = = -
BMEBERAE  Exchange difference on
£R translation of foreign
operations = = = = 1,889 = = 1,889
AMCMERfHEql  Additional provision under
i AMCM requirement = = = = - 128367 (128367) =
4512 A31H  At31 December 2014 461,194 2794210 461,194 34,655 1,218 903,804 6883969 11,540,334

2.

FE 6

AR AT i BRI P 4 i B R A RSB - A B A RS v R UG At
R A o D Jo DU T 4 R RRLAT A AR 2.3(1) M At Y T
BORBEMKE - RZF—hEFZH=+—H > &8
S Bk 2 Al 5 42 % 977,179,000 38 56 (22— PU4E By
886,917,000 M ' 76 ) » AR 45 W ] 45 filh B 45 R B € 75 S W) 43
B o

5036 H B 122 B A Bk 2 % A ik AL 4 -

Note:

The Bank complies with AMCM requirement to maintain impairment
allowance in excess of the Bank’s collective impairment allowance
estimated in accordance with the accounting policy as described
in note 2.3(i) through the appropriation of retained profits to other
reserves. As at 31 December 2015, an amount of MOP977,197,000
(2014: MOP886,917,000) net of deferred tax was included in other
reserves which is not distributable under AMCM’s requirement.

The notes on pages 36 to 122 form part of these financial
statements.
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2015 2014
Wik WM T T WP
Note MOP’000 MOP’000
W) R B AR Cash flows from operating activities
gk Profit before tax 2,411,823 2,017,994
R Adjustments for:
e Depreciation 5 50,194 45,488
W Bk H A B A B R A Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments 4 (2,024) (1,784)
AR IE RN LY ET EEPS Losses on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 4 824 1,024
W B H B B A 6 Amortisation of discount and premium of
available-for-sale investments 26,281 81,738
FEA BB E B 8 Amortisation of discount and premium of
held-to-maturity investments 2,271 4,477
BTGB TS Amortisation of discount of certificate of
deposits issued 11,464 20,998
BAT RS 8 Amortisation of discount of debt issued 1,087 5,026
GRS AT Net gains from disposal of available-for-
sale investments 4 (69,484) (7,514)
YA REMEFHEE B Net losses from financial assets at fair
SR A fE A ) value through profit or loss
FHE s 4 23
B 5 BRI B A Y Impairment allowance on loans and
advances to customers 6 8,139 50,925
Ff BB 0 A e Write-back of impairment allowance on
held-to-maturity investments (16,338) (10,219)
2,424,237 2,208,176
BEEENEA / (Bn) Decrease/(increase) in operating assets:
) 5R 500 B A = H 0 Decrease/(increase) in placements with
I SEAR A/ (B ) other banks with original maturity
longer than three months 13,541,900 (10,355,055)
AR R AR =18 H Increase in treasury bills with original
SR IR SRR maturity longer than three months (2,048,792) —
% P LKA BRI G Increase in loans and advances to
customers (6,165,663) (29,534,091)
JRE WSk T J At % Decrease/(increase) in receivables and
WA/ (Bn) other assets 503,027 (222,174)
SR A R BB R Decrease in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 45,122
P A g (W) /WA (Increase)/decrease in derivative
financial assets (132,823) 102,802
BEAEMN(RD) /B (Decrease)/increase in operating liabilities:
v A7 T Increase in deposits from other banks 5,853,670 3,467,913
&Pk m Increase in deposits from customers 10,516,598 26,241,407
HAbEER I, () Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities 262,543 (575,545)
P AL B A Decrease in derivative financial liabilities (98,041) (251,987)
KBEBEAR () B4 Cash generated from/(used in) operations 24,656,656 (8,873,432)
B B Profits tax paid (273,441) (227,521)
A () Net cash flows generated from/(used in)
FH AR operating activities 24,383,215 (9,100,953)
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2015 2014
Wik WM WP
Note MOP’000 MOP’000
BEER B A A Y B A iR Cash flows from investing activities
WA B B A IR B Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments 4 2,024 1,784
il BT A R Purchases of available-for-sale investments (24,992,394) (10,710,844)
At H B 15 W 5 Proceeds from redemption of available-for-
sale investments 21,578,109 14,718,353
JEE R BB R Purchases of held-to-maturity investments (34,047,949) (6,895,636)
P 2R RE WA Proceeds from redemption of held-to-
maturity investments 33,755,667 2,905,529
Wk > BAMBHRESEEMS  Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment 636 69
(i 3=C/E R 1N Purchases of property, plant and equipment 13 (36,045) (36,669)
B 55 8 P G B A Net cash flows used in investing activities (3,739,952) (17,414)
R Eh A Y B AR Cash flows from financing activities
BT Proceeds from issuance of certificates of
deposit 2,859,343 13,310,610
I ol 7 s Redemption of certificates of deposit
issued (10,117,493) (8,462,013)
BATIRA Proceeds from issuance of shares 3,219,249 —
BATE S Proceeds from debt issued — 2,534,732
i [e] 5 25 Redemption of debt issued — (1,400,800)
BRI () /A Net cash flows (used in)/generated from
FH A& financing activities (4,038,901) 5,982,529
Bl& KBS Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
i (HA) equivalents 16,604,362 (3,135,838)
W B L REESEY Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 21,588,735 24,724,573
WK 4 T B & 4 Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 38,193,097 21,588,735
B4 RBLE S BB BT Analysis of balances of cash and cash
equivalents
JEA7 Bl 4 ] AT H K Cash on hand and balances with banks 15,363,195 3,683,965
PRI R 3 18 H DA A7 I B o Deposits with monetary authority with
R original maturity within three months 2,379,778 2,374,234
FIAIIRR 3 M8 5 A3 R Placements with other banks with original
maturity within three months 18,550,178 14,580,540
WA HARL 3 M8 H NBUR M &%  Treasury bills with original maturity within
three months 1,899,946 949,996
38,193,097 21,588,735
FHT 36 21 122 T Jak A 785 0 A A o 4

The notes on pages 36 to 122 form part of these financial statements.
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2015 2014
Wik WM T T WP
Note MOP’000 MOP’000
W) B AR Cash flows from operating activities
gk Profit before tax 2,392,740 2,004,321
W Adjustments for:
Ei Depreciation 5 49,426 44,720
W] Bk H A R A B R A Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments 4 (2,024) (1,784)
IARIERR LW ET EPS Losses on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 4 824 1,024
W Bk H A B A Amortisation of discount and premium of
available-for-sale investments 26,281 81,738
FEA BB E B 8 Amortisation of discount and premium of
held-to-maturity investments 1,961 4,327
BTGB TSy Amortisation of discount of certificate of
deposits issued 11,464 20,998
BAT RS 8 Amortisation of discount of debt issued 1,087 5,026
GRS AT Net gains from disposal of available-for-
sale investments 4 (69,484) (7,514)
DI REMEFHEE AR Net losses from financial assets at fair
A RlE A A B R R value through profit or loss 4 23
5 P KR B I i Y A Impairment allowance on loans and
advances to customers 6 8,139 50,925
F A B BRI R A A Write-back of impairment allowance on
held-to-maturity investments (16,338) (10,219)
2,404,076 2,193,585
B ENRWA (Bn) Decrease/(increase) in operating assets:
WMEGBREB =M B[R  Decrease/(increase) in placements with
PwA / (Hhn) other banks with original maturity
longer than three months 13,541,900 (10,355,055)
90 b 35T R A =R H A Increase in treasury bills with original
SRR SRR maturity longer than three months (2,048,792) —
%5 Rk B Y 1 Increase in loans and advances to
customers (6,765,748) (29,534,091)
R Wk v At 5 Decrease/(increase)in receivables and other
WA/ () assets 496,756 (266,578)
EL LS g U W L UEEPS Decrease in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 45,122
i 4 g s () WA (Increase)/decrease in derivative
financial assets (132,823) 102,802
BEAMN D) B (Decrease)/increase in operating liabilities:
BEZ eyl Increase in deposits from other banks 5,853,670 3,467,913
&P m Increase in deposits from customers 10,495,524 26,262,675
A& (B0 ) Wb (Increase)/decrease in other liabilities 261,070 (539,598)
itk &b 8 B Decrease in derivative financial liabilities (98,041) (251,987)
REGHEL (M) ME 4% Cash generated from/(used in)
operations 24,007,592 (8,875,212)
BT BB Profits tax paid (271,956) (225,797)

BEm A () K Net cash flows generated from/(used in)
FHEW operating activities 23,735,636 (9,101,009)
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2015 2014
Wik WM T WP T
Note MOP’000 MOP’000
B W A Ak W B4 Cash flows from investing activities
W Bk M R A e B Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments 4 2,024 1,784
Jif T A R Purchases of available-for-sale investments (24,992,394) (10,710,844)
W At B B W R A A5 Proceeds from redemption of available-for-
sale investments 21,578,109 14,718,353
T A BRI R Purchases of held-to-maturity investments (33,999,663) (6,895,636)
e BB R W R A5 Proceeds from redemption of held-to-
maturity investments 33,755,315 2,905,529
Wk > BAMBHKEEEEMS  Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment 636 68
W B - A Purchases of property, plant and equipment 13 (36,042) (36,612)
B W4 0¥ 8L 4R Net cash flows used in investing activities (3,692,015) (17,358)
R A B A Cash flows from financing activities
BT Proceeds from issuance of certificates of
deposit 2,859,343 13,310,610
I 7 Redemption of certificates of deposit
issued (10,117,493) (8,462,013)
BT AR Proceeds from issuance of shares 3,219,249 =
BITER Proceeds from debt issued — 2,534,732
JiE Il £ %7 Redemption of debt issued — (1,400,800)
SRR (), A Net cash flows(used in)/generated from
I financing activities (4,038,901) 5,982,529
Bl& KBl S Hm Net increase/(decrease)in cash and cash
() equivalents 16,004,720 (3,135,838)
BRI B4 B 4 S Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 21,588,708 24,724,546
WIARB & KB &S ED Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 37,593,428 21,588,708
B4 BB S E RS M Analysis of balances of cash and cash
equivalents
A B B SRAT ARk Cash on hand and balances with banks 14,763,526 3,683,938
1452 B B 34 DA 9 A J B Deposits with monetary authority with
HRAERK original maturity within three months 2,379,778 2,374,234
FIGRHIR 3 M8 5 47 iR 3 Placements with other banks with original
maturity within three months 18,550,178 14,580,540
HERIIRR 3 M A MBS Treasury bills with original maturity within
three months 1,899,946 949,996

37,593,428 21,588,708

FH 36 2] 122 B A& B 25 HE A G ARFR 4

The notes on pages 36 to 122 form part of these financial statements.
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A OB B B Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.1

AR

TSR R B R 1972 EEAE MR P I LR
MR B ERAT - 200841 28 H » LRATIK
3L ERAT 79.93% W Ay » BG4y e AR HE IR
W) o TR SRATAE 2000 2 2010 ] [ 4 — 2 39
THE TR M AR LB o BE20154E 12
31H » TRRATHE THBM R 89.33% M ik
RELEH (2014 ¢ 89.33%) ©

AATBA 18447 ~ SRHIMHE A 7 K& 894 4% B
Too RTER AR MHRLERAT - BAF KA
RS o ASAT I vk Ah 0 2t 206 YL P58 10 e A i
KIEBE 555 55 B bR 3G T8R (PR ) dty 1848 o

SV 005 A 1 2 ) R
B

WA O B s i 3R 4 BROR [ 4 58 32/93/M 5%
4> B8 R A R RE DL WP R AT B D AR
25/2005 %47 B KL BT 0 B 5 s 46 3 R (TR
P Bk - R 1) AR o PR S 4 R A
A &Rl THPLA R AR A > ARBF R 53R
JH R o2 AR Y A

B 55 45 W1 8h > 86 5 OF 10 B 3R 5% B P o
(Mop) #at &8 > AR TI0 -

1.

2.1

ZZ—HETZHZ+—H 31 December 2015

Corporate information

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau)
Limited (the “Bank”) is previously known as Seng
Heng Bank Limited (“SHB”) which has been operating
as a licensed bank in Macau since 1972. On 28 January
2008, 79.93% of the share capital of SHB was acquired
by Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
(“ICBC”) and since then, ICBC become the Bank’s
ultimate holding company. ICBC further increased
its shareholding of the Bank during the years of 2009
and 2010. As at 31 December 2015, ICBC maintained
89.33% (2014: 89.33%) shareholding of the Bank.

The Bank has 18 branches, 3 subsidiaries and a work
force of 894 staff members. The principal activities
are the provision of banking, financial and related
services in Macau. The Bank’s registered office is 18th
Floor, ICBC Tower, Macau Landmark, 555 Avenida da

Amizade, Macau.

Basis of preparation
Statement of Compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the requirements as
set out in Decree-Law No. 32/93/M and the Macau
Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”) issued
under Administrative Regulation No. 25/2005 of the
Macau Special Administrative Region (“Macau SAR”).
These financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis, except for the available-for-
sale investments and derivatives financial instruments,

which have been measured at fair value.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Macau Patacas (“MOP”) and all values are rounded to

the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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22’

£ P A i S e

BE 2015412 H 31 H A 0F W 7 ik 19 (65 4R
A7 Te B 23 W) (B A AT AS AT 1) A 31 A Bt 286 i
o B 2RI A B e A ) P B SRAT M IR o
FI— BB st BOR o FHE A w) i 488 22 4%l i
W H 39T (B A 47 B A 4 il W 2 H 9T ) R 6 O R
5L WA R B ALK L o AAT N AL 5 B
FEAE W AL - RORE B DL R AR &
P 2 8T ARG S o

1 uhBORA B % e S L

ACAR FEAAT e A0 R I R S 25 i o ) 1 f
BRI B o

oKk BOR B
(a) MWEBEAY

WEF S 2 ) s A S B ) 2 T o AR
M N 2 BT 4 W) S R R R A
oy 52 W) 4 [ 4R - N HLAT RE ) 7 0
% T PR BB S TR IR 5 B 3B
TEHELAT P BE o B PEAG AR 4 % S
JyIRE s 378 R TR W e by A 4 ) e
HAbFI 25T F547) -

WEF S 2~ ) Y 3 A DA W % B T G s R
WEARAT Z iR o R BB A5 D
B H B B 7 AR AT I B JBS 4 ) 1 E 2
VI AR i 3 i A 1 2 7 M

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2015. The financial statements of
the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Bank, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases. All intra-group
balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends

are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Changes in accounting policy and
Disclosures

During the year, the Group did not have any changes in

accounting policies under MFRSs.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed or has rights to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group

and other parties) are considered.

The results of subsidiaries are included in
the Bank’s income statement to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Bank’s
interests in subsidiaries that are not classified
as held for sale are stated at cost less any

impairment losses.
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(b)

e 4 i A AL

B EEWESR > KEARERE
TR AT A TR A s (B 4 S A 4
P HURE ) o AT B VT I R
HEATAME o BRIEFEBUR o 2k 2 Bl it
NI BB S i LAt 2 R 20 T i
A Z B (TR VLT > 7T [l i 41
R0 353 7 o 2 B s A LA B E ) > A
SIS 7 = T[] o 9 A B i S
FOO o B B AR Z B A %
IR 1) 5 e o

By YR A 2 M T 4 AR A8 L T ] W 4
WURE » JH 3 IRAE R 1R T DAHE R o WAl B
3 P AR IR 5t L0 Py R 20 B 4 i
VAR iy 7 B R I 5 2 B > %I BL R M
T R T 3 3 4 8 . AR A
Be i VA 7 2 AT LB o 9L 1R P
B A T ] 2 W i e v AT B > W A0
S v i 3K e

(b)

ZE-REFZHZ+—H 31 December 2015

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset
is required (other than financial assets and
investment properties), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash
generating unit’s value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset

belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the

function of the impaired asset.
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(©

o Ml B S R R R A R R Y
WA EBATHEAELC D R - W
BB A > Al ST Il 2 A o
I 2 O A B b Al
UL A 5 8% > AH ED 48 2 A RO 758 0 %
T A 8w D 1 P R i < (1 R B
B BLHES ) o 198 IE] 2 1M AL A P O E A
Wi Z Wk R AR > B OB B A A
B A BRSN > fEBEIG UL T > MR B &
i 3 Y BORGH S AR K -

B 186 75

() —MHEAAN REAANRERIE
BURE > gL T REUL > AR
AT Z BT

(i) PEHISI G EERAAT 5

(i) AARGTHERBE 5 &

(i) REARAT B AT BE A F] i B S
HHABMREZ—

2 fE—EME> WED THEY > BHR
T AAT Z B Iy

() ZEMEEARGEEE LR —E
4 g B (H 4 — [ B 5]
i Jig 2 ) J% ] 2R o Jigg 2 ) B
HAbA B o

(©)

An assessment is made at the end of each
reporting period as to whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to the income statement in the period
in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance
with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

Related parties

(1) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if

that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the

Group;

(i1) has significant influence over the

Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the

Group’s parent.

(2) An entity is related to the Group if any of

the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).
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(i) —EMEN —EBNEEL
DESE-ANICT A -8
Al B A AT B —
By — ) -

(i) FEEELEE—EEZF0E
BT o

(iv), —HBE-E=FNEEA
AW —EEAEZE =S
H B A ] o

(v)  EEBERAEN AL
i BAC SR A R O
1 B B4R < w A )

(vi) %8 A2 A (1) JE BT PRk
A 18 N P 42 i s 2 [l e i o

(vii) FE)(G)TE BT Bk 8 A
Mz ASZESARERY
2y s o MmN % R
(SRR BB A ) M 3
EEMABZHE -

(viii) AR f] % 45 B sl 45 1] RE 23 W] $2
IR e vy N S8 BRI 25 1Y
TSR M PR E -

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the

other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the

same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an

associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an

entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly

controlled by a person identified in

(1).

(vii) A person identified in (1)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity

(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to

the Group or to the Group’s parent.

(EPNGRE TSI A=Ei-E - X BN a3 Close members of the family of a person are
AN T - A A B B 8 AR ) 1) R those family members who may be expected to
H o influence, or be influenced by, that person in

their dealings with the entity.
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(d)

ZE-REFZHZ+—H 31 December 2015

Property, plant and equipment and

depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. the cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its

intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property,
plant and equipment have been put into operation,
such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the income statement in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates

them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property,
plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. the principal annual rates

used for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land

Leasehold land under

Not depreciated

over the shorter of
finance leases and the lease terms and
buildings 50 years
Furniture and fixtures 1 to 10 years
Motor vehicles and 4 to 10 years

equipment
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ZE-REFZHZ+—H 31 December 2015

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,

at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and
any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the income statement in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying

amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the
ordinary course of business. The Group adopted
the cost method for its investment property
in which the property are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-
line basis to write off the cost of each investment
property to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for

this purpose are as follows:

— Lease land under  Over the lease terms

finance leases

— Buildings Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 50

years

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal
of an investment property are recognised in the
income statement in the year of the retirement or

disposal.
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Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards
and risks of ownership of assets to the Group,
other than legal title, are accounted for as finance
leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the
cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the
present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding
the interest element, to reflect the purchase and
financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments
under finance leases, are included in property,
plant and equipment, and depreciated over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets. the finance costs of such
leases are charged to the income statement so as
to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over

the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets remain with the
lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by
the Group under operating leases are included
in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases net of any
incentives received from the lessor are charged
to the income statement on the straight-line basis

over the lease terms.
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ZE-REFZHZ+—H 31 December 2015

(g) investments and other financial assets

0

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments, and available-for-
sale investments, as appropriate. The
Group determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition.
Financial assets are measured initially at
fair value, which normally will be equal
to the transaction price plus, in case of
a financial asset not held at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Transaction costs on
financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss are expensed immediately.

All regular way purchases and sales
of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace.
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(ii)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial
assets depends on their classification as

follows:

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss include financial assets held for
trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of sale in the
near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated

as effective hedging instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are carried in the balance sheet
at fair value with changes in fair value
presented as other operating income in
the income statement. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends or
interest earned on these financial assets,
which are recognised in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in note
2.3(1).

Financial assets designated upon initial

AR R RS AHG & recognition at fair value through profit or
Tl AR G E I DL A loss are designated at the date of initial
RBUERE - recognition and only if the criteria are

satisfied.
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The Group evaluates its financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (held for
trading) to assess whether the intention to
sell in the near term is still appropriate.
When, in rare circumstances, the Group
is unable to trade these financial assets
due to inactive markets and management’s
intention to sell in the foreseeable future
significantly changes, the Group may elect
to reclassify them. The reclassification
from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss to loans and receivables,
available-for-sale assets or held-to-maturity
investments depends on the nature of the
assets. This evaluation does not affect any
financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss using the fair value
option at designation, as these instruments
cannot be reclassified after initial

recognition.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are
accounted for as separate derivatives and
recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and
the host contracts are not held for trading
or designated at fair value through profit
or loss. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair

value recognised in the income statement.
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Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such
assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and includes fees
or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in interest
income in the income statement. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in

the income statement.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity are classified as held to
maturity investments when the Group has
the positive intention and ability to hold
the financial assets to maturity. Held-to-
maturity investments are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition
and include fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in interest income in the
income statement. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the income
statement.
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Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are non-
derivative financial assets in listed and
unlisted equity investments and debt
securities. Equity investments classified
as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor
designated at fair value through profit or
loss. Debt securities in this category are
those which are intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time and which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or in

response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-
for-sale investments are subsequently
measured at fair value, with unrealised
gains or losses recognised in the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve
until the investment is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss
is recognised in the income statement, or
until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or
loss is reclassified from the available-for-
sale investment revaluation reserve to the
income statement. Interest and dividends
earned whilst holding the available-for-
sale investments are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively
and are recognised in the income statement
in accordance to the accounting policies set

out in note 2.3(r).

When the fair value of unlisted equity
investments cannot be reliably measured
because (a) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the
probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any

impairment losses.
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(h)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part
of a financial asset or part of a group of similar

financial assets) is derecognised when:

—  the rights to receive cash flows from the

asset have expired; or

— the Group has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group
has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the

asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if
and to what extent it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in
the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the

Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration

that the Group could be required to repay.
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Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any objective evidence
that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group
of financial assets is deemed to be impaired
if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the Group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
restructuring and observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or

economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

(i)  Loans and receivables

For loans and receivables, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists for
financial assets. Evidence of impairment
for loans and receivables include default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment
loss is, or continues to be, recognised are
not included in the assessment of collective

impairment.



A

Annual Report 2015

INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED ' B . % 4R 47 (3R 9 ) Bt 4 A FR & &

51

B AR S B (KRR M Bt 5 Rl ) Financial Information Disclosure (in Accordance with MFRSS) (4 Continied)
BB Financial Statements (4 Continued)

AR B R B EE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements(# comimed)  ~%—F%+=H=+—H 31 December 2015

(ii)

i 45 7 8L W % WA s 1R
A B & B 199348 H27H
AMCM %8 18/93 5% 4 1% vf Bt U8
WL > AR 6B R o

I T 4 9 T L O R
AR H R AR > TR 4R 4 R M
2 T o B AR S E Wi MR T 2 [R)
A Ao A S8 486 0P YA S S e D) A
frclEl > HRBTA AR A ASE B
BHEBERBOCEHEERTLT
o T AR -

il s O S T < U e R I
BB Ay - P 5 e R A A
355K 725 4% 135 A6 M 1 S0 I 8
ik A% 8 B RS L A% W Jel > i Wi el
ZEBUE R AW

22y #F

i 2 B B 2 WA A Bl %
g % o T ROR &
K> 1 T A 4 A 4 B R T
> B AW BE AR AR B 4 3 % B IR
ARZHBMMRFHRHBME > D=
#HZ WA ALK -

(ii)

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured in
accordance with the notice No. 18/93-
AMCM of 27 August 1993 and are adjusted

when necessary.

The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced either directly or through the
use of an allowance account and the loss
is recognised in the income statement.
Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised

or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of
the estimated impairment loss increases or
decreases because of an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusting the
allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to the

income statement.

Held-to-maturity investments

Impairment on held-to-maturity
investments is considered at both an
individual and collective level. The
individually assessed impairment allowance
is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate, where the effect of

discounting is material.
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(iii)

All significant assets found not to be
individually impaired are then collectively
assessed for any impairment that has been
incurred but not yet identified. Assets that
are not individually significant are then
collectively assessed for impairment by
grouping together financial assets with

similar risk characteristics.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through the income statement. A reversal of
impairment losses is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been

recognised in prior years.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss has been incurred on an
unquoted equity instrument that is not
carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Impairment losses on these assets are not

reversed.
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(iv)

Available-for-sale investments

For available-for-sale investments,
the Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of

investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an
amount comprising the difference between
its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less
any impairment loss previously recognised
in the income statement, is reclassified
from investment revaluation reserve to the

income statement.

In the case of equity investments classified
as available for sale, objective evidence
would include a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. The determination of what
is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment
and “prolonged” against the period in
which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence
of impairment, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognised in the
income statement — is reclassified from
investment revaluation reserve to the
income statement. Impairment losses on
equity instruments classified as available
for sale are not reversed through the
income statement. Increases in their fair
value after impairment are recognised

directly in investment revaluation reserve.
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In the case of debt instruments classified as
available for sale, impairment is assessed
based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However,
the amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the amortised cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on
that investment previously recognised
in the income statement. Future interest
income continues to be accrued based on
the reduced carrying amount of the asset
and is accrued using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. The interest income is recorded in
the income statement. Impairment losses
on debt instruments are reversed through
the income statement if the increase in fair
value of the instruments can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in the

income statement.

(j)  Financial liabilities

0

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as
financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and loans and borrowings,
as appropriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at

initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised
initially at fair value and, in the case of
loans and borrowings, directly attributable

transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include
deposits from banks and customers, other
liabilities, derivative financial instruments,
debts and certificates of deposit issued, and

interest-bearing loans and borrowings.
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(ii)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial
liabilities depends on their classification as
follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss includes financial liabilities
held for trading.

Financial liabilities are classified as held
for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of selling in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that
are not designated as hedging instruments
in hedge relationships. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Gains or
losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the income statement. The
net fair value gain or loss recognised in
the income statement does not include
any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or
loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria are

satisfied.
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(k)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing
loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the
income statement when the liabilities are

derecognised.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and include fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in interest expenses in the

income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged,

cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in the income statement.
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ZE-REFZHZ+—H 31 December 2015

Repurchase agreements

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase
at a specified future date are not derecognised
from the consolidated balance sheet as the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership. The corresponding cash received is
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet as
an asset with a corresponding obligation to return
it, including accrued interest as a liability within
“Other liabilities”, reflecting the transaction’s
economic substance as a loan to the Group. The
difference between the sale and repurchase prices
is treated as interest expense and is accrued
over the life of agreement using the effective
interest rate method. The Group classifies the
securities sold under repurchase agreements
in its consolidated balance sheet to “Held-to-
maturity investments pledged as collateral” or
as “Available-for-sale investments pledged as

collateral”, as appropriate.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are
traded in active markets is determined with
reference to quoted market prices or dealer price
quotations, without any deduction for transaction
costs. For financial instruments where there is no
active market, the fair value is determined using
appropriate valuation techniques. Such techniques
include using recent arm’s length market
transactions; reference to the current market value
of another instrument which is substantially the
same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and other
valuation models.
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Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments,
such as forward currency contracts and interest
rate swaps, to hedge its foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk, respectively. Such derivative
financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried
as assets when the fair value is positive and as

liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair
value of derivatives are taken directly to the

income statement.

The fair value of forward currency contracts
is calculated by reference to current forward
exchange rates for contracts with similar maturity
profiles. The fair value of interest rate swap
contracts is determined with reference to market

values for similar instruments.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short
term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash

management.

For the purpose of the consolidated balance sheet,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits and assets
similar in nature to cash, which has no restriction

on use.
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Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present
obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as
a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the

obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation at the end of the
reporting period. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in interest expenses in the

income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax is recognised in the income statement
except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised directly in equity, in which case
the relevant amounts are recognised directly in

equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current
and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group

operates.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for

financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all

taxable temporary differences, except:

—  when the deferred tax liability arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

and

— in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for
all deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax

losses can be utilised, except:

—  when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises
from the initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting

profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
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— in respect of deductible temporary
differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary

differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
year when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable

entity and the same taxation authority.
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(r)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when the revenue can be measured reliably. The
following specific recognition criteria must also

be met before revenue is recognised.

(i)  Interest income and expense

For all financial instruments measured at
amortised cost, interest bearing financial
assets classified as available-for-sale
and financial instruments designated at
fair value through profit or loss, interest
income or expense is recorded using the
effective interest rate method, which is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, where appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the financial
asset or financial liability. The calculation
takes into account all contractual terms
of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment options) and includes any
fees or incremental costs that are directly
attributable to the instrument and are an
integral part of the effective interest rate,

but not future credit losses.
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(ii)

The carrying amount of the financial asset
or financial liability is adjusted if the
Group revises its estimates of payments or
receipts. The adjusted carrying amount is
calculated based on the original effective
interest rate and the change in carrying
amount is recorded as “Other operating
income”. However, for a reclassified
financial asset for which the Group
subsequently increases its estimates of
future cash receipts as a result of increased
recoverability of those cash receipts, the
effect of that increase is recognised as an
adjustment to the effective interest rate

from the date of the change in estimate.

Once the recorded value of a financial asset
or a group of similar financial assets has
been reduced due to an impairment loss,
interest income continues to be recognised
using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of

measuring the impairment loss.

Fee and commission income

The Group earns fee and commission
income from a diverse range of services
it provides to its customers. Fee income
can be divided into the following two

categories:

—  Fee income earned from services that
are provided over a certain period of

time

Fees earned for the provision of
services over a period of time are
accrued over that period. These fees
include commission income and
asset management, custody and other

management and advisory fees.
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and recognised as an adjustment
to the effective interest rate on the
loan. When it is unlikely that a
loan will be drawn down, the loan
commitment fees are recognised over
the commitment period on a straight

line basis.

—  1ROBER 5 s e i i — Fee income from providing
A transaction services
e WO B A 7 B B R A Bk Fees arising from negotiating or

2 B fh ) W TG 32 B W LR R
A s L R R SO
i 5% o O S T
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participating in the negotiation of a
transaction for a third party, such as
the arrangement of the acquisition
of shares or other securities or the
purchase or sale of businesses, are
recognised on completion of the

underlying transaction.

M B B & ALk oC & Fees or components of fees that
BRLRR S8 14 AT A A R R are linked to a certain performance
TE B AT FH B 1) B R 2 75 1% W are recognised after fulfilling the
TR o corresponding criteria.
(iii) REBBA (iii) Dividend income
T8 L WA A AT A R W B S R Dividend income is recognised when the
TR o Group’s right to receive the payment is
established.
(iv) RIEHBA (iv) Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a time

proportion basis over the lease terms.
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(v)  Net trading income

Results arising from trading activities
include all gains and losses from changes
in fair value and related interest income or
expense for financial assets and financial

liabilities held for trading.

Employee benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution
retirement benefits scheme for all of its
employees, including key management personnel.
Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the participating employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of

the scheme.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Macau
Pataca (“MOP”), which is the Bank’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. All differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are

taken to the income statement.
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Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the

item.

The functional currencies of one overseas
subsidiary and one overseas branch office are
currencies other than the MOP. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Bank at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their income statements are translated into MOP
at the weighted average exchange rates for the

year.

The resulting exchange differences are
accumulated in the foreign exchange reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the amount
recognised in the foreign exchange reserve
relating to that particular foreign operation is

recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, the cash flows of overseas entities
are translated into MOP at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas entities which
arise throughout the year are translated into MOP
at the weighted average exchange rates for the

year.
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3. Related party transactions

(@)

Related party transaction

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere

A > R AARERERST T LT BB A in these consolidated financial statements,
5 the Group had the following transactions and
balances with related parties during the year:
B4 ] Ultimate holding company
2015 2014
WM T T WHET T
MOP’000 MOP’000
45 B LT The Group and the Bank
B WA Interest income 881,274
B2 H Interest expense 96,889
[7] SEAF T (1) Deposits from banks (note (i) 8,419,012
CETEHF R Debt issued and borrowed funds
& N& 4 (ii) (note (ii)) 1,527,490
Bl & MERITTE 3K Cash and balances with banks 323,252
) &7 185 (iii) Placements with other banks (note (iii)) —
& PR EGK (iv) Loans and advances to customers
(note (iv)) 14,743,029
FEAE ¢ Notes:
(i) HWEWIKR > AT BLBEA B [ W R (i)  The Group’s inter-bank deposits taking with its
i [ S A5 B A A B R R A A 0 & ultimate holding company pays effective interest
3.1% (2014 : 0% % 1.8553%) ° rates of 0% to 3.1% per annum as at the end of
the reporting period (2014: 0% to 1.8553% per
annum).
(i)  HWEMAK > HEBARRERART O (ii) The Group had issued subordinated debts

1T B R B8 5 % 1,527,490 1F ¥ 1 o6
(2014 4F %5 1,527,490 M [ 5¢ ) » &
AR B s AR > H 600,490 1T WM
Jt % fit6f# H HIBOR+100bp H9 ¥ B
Fl B > 566,5001F M M 7 3£ fF6fd H
HIBOR+130bp 19 % B #] & > 360,500
AT WAL 56 32 A4 45 1) 2R 2% 4.5% 1 ] 2 A
B oo MAE EF > 927,000 1T B T 8
8 % 31 AE20234E 12 H27 H 532 > F
2119 600,490 1T ¥ [ 72 3z JiE [7] 22 4 2 401
[{ﬁ °

held by its ultimate holding company of
MOP1,527,490,000 (2014: MOP1,527,490,000)
as at the end of the reporting period. The
subordinated debts are unsecured, and paying
floating rates linked to 6M HIBOR plus 100bp
per annum for MOP600,490,000, 6M HIBOR
plus 130bp per annum for MOP566,500,000
and at fixed rate of 4.5% per annum for
MOP360,500,000. Of the total amount,
MOP927,000,000 is repayable on 27 Dec 2023
and the remaining MOP600,490,000 has no fixed
term of repayment.
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AR S B (KRR M Bt i X R )- Financial Information Disclosure (in Accordance with MFRSS) (4 Continied)
BB Financial Statements (4 Continued)
A BB B B B E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (4 comtined)  ~%—%i4+—A=+—H 31 December 2015

(i) BRI » ARFT AT ) SEPRAE (iii)  As at the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
BA 2,315,186 WM IC (201445 F) © inter-bank placement with its ultimate holding

company was MOP2,315,186 (2014: Nil).

(v) A AT BB\ ] A B KR B (iv)  The Group’s loans and advances to its ultimate
i) BB R R HE B A€ 0.4414% FE 4.4% holding company earns effective interest rates of
(2014: 1.4551% %.5.5%) ° 0.4414% to 4.4% per annum (2014: 1.4551% to

5.5% per annum).
M 2 il Fellow subsidiaries
2015 2014
WP WT e WMo
MOP’000 MOP’000
4 1M BT The Group and the Bank
FlEWA Interest income 65,200
D=4l Interest expense 541
7] A7 T (v) Deposits from banks (note (v)) 510
B & R SRITAF K Cash and balances with banks 286,459
[a] ZE A Placements with other banks 3,315,816
& BB Bk Loans and advances to customers —
M The Group
E i BN Fee and commission income
JREE W e ik B LAt Receivables and other assets

AL Notes:

(v) BHE WK 5 AT B R 4 ] W) 2E AR (v)  As at the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
N ] 3 45 % 1A A A5 2% 50.9 #5 IR M o inter-bank deposits taking with its fellow
(2014 4% 7 S1H 0 ) » JL B B A % subsidiaries amounted to MOP509,000 (2014:
F50% (2014 : 0%) ° MOP510,000), which bears an effective interest

rate of 0% per annum (2014: 0% per annum).
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B AR S B (KRR M Bt 5 Rl ) Financial Information Disclosure (in Accordance with MFRSS) (4 Continied)
BB Financial Statements (4 Continued)

AR RS B EE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (# coninied)

(b)

ZE-REFZHZ+—H 31 December 2015

2015 2014
WM T o0 WFHEToT
MOP’000 MOP’000

#47 The Bank
FlEWBA Interest income —
FlE#EH Interest expense 2,004
B WA Fee and commission income 595
i ik s Fee and commission expense 3,296
JRE WA B sk e L A Receivables and other assets 95,385
& PR Loans and advances to customers —
% FAE# (vi) Deposits from customers (note (vi)) 177,728
HoAth £ 1 Other liabilities 40,069

AR Notes:

(vi)  EHEWIAR > AAT BT A A
17 3K $5156,6544T W ™ JC(20144F %
177,728 FFIRMIE) » BB AR FI R 2y
0-3.25% (2013 4E %5 0-3.2%) ©

(vi)  As at the end of the reporting period, the Bank’s
deposits taking with its subsidiaries amounted
to MOP156,654,000 (2014: MOP177,728,000),
which pay effective interest rates of 0% to 3.25%
per annum as at the end of the reporting period
(2014: 0% to 3.2% per annum).

A5 B B G B S 4 L i o L S T (b) Compensation of key management personnel
of the Group and the Bank:

2015 2014
W T 0 WL W Too
MOP’000 MOP’000

e 0| The Group
R B 4w Short-term employee benefits 131,586

AT The Bank

FE AR B AE A Short-term employee benefits 129,137
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FRERS B8 (R4 R ™ B 87548 ) Financial Information Disclosure (in Accordance with MFRSS) (4 Continied)

M5 Financial Statements (4 Continued)

A BB B B Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (4 contined)  —%—Fi4+—=H=+—H 31 December 2015

4. IABBEWA

HAEMAEIWA  Fee and commission income
GRS ] Fee and commission expense

HHEMEW A Net fee and commission

i income
AL ERE 2 Dividend income from
JBEFI A available-for-sale
investments
AN SE A Net gains from foreign
exchange

SMEEARM  Net losses from financial
A 5% B R R assets at fair value through
profit or loss

EEAMEHER  Net gains from disposal

jagul @R of available-for-sale
investments
ik &m T HE  Net (lossed)/gains arising
&= from derivative financial
instruments
BEEEEEEE  Losses on disposal of
P property, plant and
equipment
A WA Rental income
HAty Others

Other operating income

EL ar
The Group The Bank
2015 2014 2015 2014

WHRTX  WMWTC MPWTE WMETT
MOP’000  MOP’000  MOP’000  MOP’000

1,120,132 842,362 EKLERYY) 822,388
(242,359) (205,579) (241,700) (205,650)

877,773 636,783 854,147 616,738

1,784 1,784

126,312 126,844

(23)

7,514

(3,532) (3,532) 6,628
(824) (824) (1,024)
2,720 == —
23,131 23,073 44,600

981,532 824,699 956,446 803,061

AAT B A A At ) S0 3 v A 2 A
EA -

The Group has no fee and commission income derived

from trust or other fiduciary activities.
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FRERS B8 (R4 R ™ B 87548 ) Financial Information Disclosure (in Accordance with MFRSS) (4 Continied)
W% Financial Statements (4 Continued)

A B BEEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 continied)

5. BELRM
ieg Depreciation
T T2 Operating lease rentals on
KGRI B4 land and buildings
BTEH Staff costs
T E&EH Pension costs
HERH Professional fees
Fal & Auditors’ remuneration
HivgEm Other operating expenses

S.

Operating expenses

EL
The Group
2015 2014

WPWTE WM T
MOP’000 MOP 000

50,194 45,488

97,299 75,292
335,255 427,913

13,073 11,432
2,256 3,449
3,198 3,122

156,632 148,358

657,907 715,054

R —HEFZH=F—H 31 December 2015

HAr

The Bank
2015 2014
WMWTE  WM% T
MOP’000 MOP’000
49,426 44,720
96,880 74,896
329,845 421,525
12,857 11,254
1,740 2,897
2,821 3,156
154,708 146,537
648,277 704,985
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A0 B S IEEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (4 coninied)

6. AT M

B R BB A YR A PR A

ZZ—HFEFZHAZE4—H 31 December 2015

6. Impairment allowance for impaired assets

advances to customers:

Movements in impairment allowances on loans and

5 W ALY The Group and the Bank
— WA AR G
Collective Individual
impairment impairment
allowance allowance Total
WP T o0 WHEToT WFNETo0

MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
20154-01 Ho1 H At 1 January 2015 188,170 35,523 223,693
EIERLACEES Charge for impairment losses 2,210 6,462 8,672
[0 43 1 D AB 4R 2R Write-back of impairment losses — (533) (533)
BRI F) LMWL Impairment allowance charged to

bi Y7 the income statement 2,210 5,929 8,139
CAZ 8 I 44 Uncollectible amounts written off — (2,706) (2,706)
2015412 H31H At 31 December 2015 190,380 38,746 229,126
20144E01 H 01 H At 1 January 2014 139,410 35,595 175,005
wh AR B 2R Charge for impairment losses 48,760 2,567 51,327
[i] % 1) Yk L L 2 Write-back of impairment losses — (402) (402)
TE 1B i 2 51 3% B A Impairment allowance charged to
by the income statement 48,760 2,165 50,925

CAZ 8 1 44 Uncollectible amounts written off — (2,237) (2,237)
20144E12 431 H At 31 December 2014 188,170 35,523 223,693




% HAE
Annual Report 2015

INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED H B . 7% 4R 47 (¥R 9 ) Bt 4 A FR & &

B AR S B (KRR M Bt 5 Rl ) Financial Information Disclosure (in Accordance with MFRSS) (4 Continied)
A Financial Statements (4 Continued)
A BB B B B E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (4 comtined)  ~%—%i4+—H=+—H 31 December 2015

7. Pifasi 7. Income tax
AT AAE Y BEIE S AL 35 W P B Al R L i The Group’s tax charge for the year includes provisions
AMRAN TS BL, HEAZ B3 BE o WL T 454l 70 A for Macau complementary tax and withholding tax
YAl s RERLZ A DL R BLRGE > Bem W 12% paid/payable to overseas tax authorities. Macau
(2014: 12%) ° complementary tax has been provided at the progressive

rate to a maximum of 12% (2014: 12%) on the

estimated taxable profits.

£t w47
The Group The Bank
2015 2014 2015 2014
WMW¥TE WPWTIE WM¥%TE WP T
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000

A< B Bt I Current tax 206,639 205,060
A FLIH — Current tax — overseas
WM withholding tax 69,594 69,594
PEHEBEIE Deferred tax 47,186 47,082
AAERLTE 37 Tax charge for the year 323,419 321,736
55 FH B8 AT R R e B B R S A R B TE Y A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
AR T RIE I AR ST before tax at the statutory rate to the tax expense at
the effective tax rate of the Group and the Bank are as
follows:
| The Group
2015 2014
WMWT o L ¥ T oo
MOP’000 MOP’000
oA IR Profit before tax 2,017,994
BT Z B Tax at the applicable tax rate 242,123
AR HIBRE H Z BB Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 209
FEEBEM A Z Bt UK e Tax effect of non-taxable income (1,361)
D) A 4 R B B B A Over-provision in prior years (8,312)
WEAMR AT B3 AL Overseas withholding tax 69,594
HiAty Others 21,166

LA RBRT ZHIE Tax charge at the Group’s
b1 effective rate 323,419
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a7 The Bank
2015 2014
WM T T WMHET T
MOP’000 MOP’000
T8 1 Profit before tax 2,004,321
T BLR T ZBLIH Tax at the applicable tax rate 240,483
ARHIBRE 2 BB Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 209
I E AL WA =2 B ek e Tax effect of non-taxable income (1,333)
DIAEAE BE R R B A Over-provision in prior years (8,302)
WM A Overseas withholding tax 69,594
HiAty Others 21,085
SRATABBR T ZFiIE Tax charge at the Bank’s
S effective rate 321,736
8. Vil 8. Placements with other banks
v T80 7] 3 R JEE A B B MR AR R R AR B AR Placements with other banks earned effective interest
0.1% %1 4.90% (2014 4E = 0% £ 7.90%) ° rates ranging from 0.1% to 4.90% (2014: 0% to 7.90%)

per annum.
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FRERS B8 (R4 R ™ B 87548 ) Financial Information Disclosure (in Accordance with MFRSS) (4 Continied)
W% Financial Statements (4 Continued)

A B BEEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 continied)

9.

% P RSO Sk

P B ORGP AR R AE 1.22% =
28.80% (2014 4F : 0.79% % 28.80%) ©

Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to customers earned interest

income at effective interest rates ranging from 1.22% to

R —HEFZH=F—H 31 December 2015

28.80% (2014: 0.79% to 28.80%) per annum.

gL
The Group

2015 2014

Mt WM T W0

Note MOP’000 MOP’000

% 7 ARGk Loans and advances to customers 117,241,058 98,040,129
[LE 55 Trade bills 6,511,523 19,470,284

KPR - Bk L Gross loans, advances and trade

IR bills to customers 123,752,581 117,510,413
HEFHA S Accrued interests 441,009 520,220
124,193,590 118,030,633

I ¢ JRAE R Less: impairment allowances 6 (229,126) (223,693)
123,964,464 117,806,940

A7
The Bank

2015 2014

it WM T WP T

Note MOP’000 MOP’000

% PRk s B3GR Loans and advances to customers 117,840,228 98,040,129
[LEZZ Trade bills 6,511,523 19,470,284

BEEH -~ B w2 Gross loans, advances and trade

HRR A bills to customers 124,351,751 117,510,413
R Accrued interests 441,924 520,220
124,793,675 118,030,633
il : PR A Less: impairment allowances 6 (229,126) (223,693)
124,564,549 117,806,940
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FF R~ RO SRS R AR &

An analysis of the gross amount of loans and advances

T to customers and trade bills based on the usage is as
follows:
0|
The Group
2015 2014
WM T WM Too
MOP’000 MOP’000

T3 - BRI S

Industrial, commercial and financial

purposes 79,373,639 66,011,807
PN Individual 37,867,419 32,028,322
B o mha Trade finance 6,511,523 19,470,284
PR~ B M Gross loans and advances to customers and
SR trade bills 123,752,581 117,510,413
TG BRBE R AR Gross impaired loans before deduction of
[53% B T 1 ¥4 £ 10 K individual impairment allowance
ok 58,017
47
The Bank
2015 2014
WM T WM T8
MOP’000 MOP’000
T3 - HEME RS Industrial, commercial and financial
purposes 79,972,809 66,011,807
PN Individual 37,867,419 32,028,322
B 5 hE Trade finance 6,511,523 19,470,284
BPEHR -~ Bk L% Gross loans and advances to customers and
HRRAEE trade bills 124,351,751 117,510,413
T — MR RE# R Gross impaired loans before deduction of
[o3% 2 9k L 48 45 1) R K individual impairment allowance
Fsk 58,017




ZR-HEER
Annual Report 2015

INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED ' B T % R 47 (M 9 ) B 4 A R A &

77

FRERS B8 (R4 R ™ B 87548 ) Financial Information Disclosure (in Accordance with MFRSS) (4 Continied)

W45 Financial Statements (4 Continued)

A B BEEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 continied)

SRATHFEA 14 R ) W7 0 Ak i S I 2
SRATAT HOR 55 MO B 3G o RAT 3B VT I i B o
A7 BRI BT A 1T 5 2% B AR (B A A
S HFEE 0.52 5 WL M G I B0 I A e A R A
(20144F : 037/ MM L) » % 8 B K30 4
fH o A6 FEA M (0 L Vo P AR AR > A K
14 R 5 7 A R 3 A AR M) 8 40 A L G
IIIII °

R —HEFZH=F—H 31 December 2015

The collaterals that the Group held relating to the
impaired loans mainly consisted of bank deposits and
properties. The Group takes into account the collateral
values when performing its individual assessment on
impaired loans. Amount of collateral which has been
taken into account in respect of the calculation of
individual impairment allowance amounted to MOP52
million (2014: MOP37 million). Where collateral
values are greater than gross advances, only the amount
of collateral up to the gross loan and advance was

included.

10. ¥FA2IWEE 10. Held-to-maturity investments
L] a7
The Group The Bank
2015 2014 2015 2014
WP T WPWTC BMWTL MW T
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
DBy sigiil Held-to-maturity
HEORAR A investments, at amortised
R - cost:
i : Quoted:
— B EER — Debt securities 7,032,244 6,742,257 6,978,207 6,735,844
— B RS — Treasury bills 3,948,738 949,996 3,948,738 949,996
— i WA — Less: impairment
we allowances (83,428) (99,790) (83,428) (99,790)
10,897,554 10,843,517 7,586,050
AT LW b Held-to-maturity
WL P8l investments, at amortised
Wt AR cost analysed by category
it 25 W8 of issuer as follows:
% :
B i 2 Government 3,948,738 949,996 3,948,738 949,996
NGk | Corporate entities 2,495,076 2,708,057 2,441,039 2,701,644
SRAT M A4 Banks and other financial
AR institutions 4,453,740 3,934,410 4,453,740 3,934,410
10,897,554 10,843,517 7,586,050
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11. WEBEmEE 11. Available-for-sale investments
45 BLSR AT
The Group and the Bank
2015 2014
WM T BT
MOP’000 MOP’000
W AR Available-for-sale:
b e Quoted:
— B EESR - UAR — Debt securities, at fair value
AT 15,735,555 13,387,378
/I Unquoted:
— AR E R R 2 — Equities, at cost 10,176 10,176

15,745,731 13,397,554

O WL A% © Available-for-sale investments pledged as

collateral:
b e Quoted:
— BB EER > UAR — Debt securities, at fair value
e R 2,001,296 930,819

17,747,027 14,328,373

AT WAk Available-for-sale investments analysed

B - by category of issuer as follows:

BUR R % 7% 5 Government - 330,744
NGk Corporate entities 8,066,224 9,551,942
SRAT B b 4 il A A 0 Banks and other financial institutions 7,679,507 3,514,868

15,745,731 13,397,554
AT A TN Available-for-sale investments pledged

B BB - as collateral analysed by category of
issuer as follows:

NGk Corporate entities 2,001,296 930,819

2,001,296 930,819
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AR B 3 (ARG B A 5B Financial Information Disclosure (in Accordance with MFRSS) (4 Continied)

M E+E Financial Statements (4 Continued)

AR RS B EE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (# coninied)

i e e B 2 A B TS 2 7% i B A
R o O AR HEM T SE M w2 I b eT
BIE > HRA BRI S AR -

ZZ—HFEFZHAZ4—H 31 December 2015

The fair values of quoted available-for-sale debt
investments were based on quoted market prices. The
unquoted available-for-sale equity investments for
which the fair values cannot be measured reliably, have

been stated at cost less any impairment loss.

12. BB A A 12. Subsidiaries
#_47
The Bank
2015 2014
WM T o0 WFNETo0
MOP’000 MOP’000
PLBAGEHEZ AR Edi4r  Unlisted shares, at cost 79,980
F AR B EERS I E Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:
e
%H S 1 5 220 e A i ASAT MEAN B 23 e LR
Nominal
value of Percentage of
Place of issued ordinary equity attributable Principal
Name incorporation share capital to the Bank activities
A I 4%
Direct indirect
WA A AT (R il EERCEUES
Seng Heng Development Company limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 — property holding
TSR IR ) B et A R A ) WM W BREEH
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Macau MOP50,000,000 99.60 0.40 investment
(Macau) Capital Limited management
TSR IR ) A G BB A A B A4 ) W WM BARE S B
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Macau MOP30,000,000 99.93 0.07 pension fund
(Macau) Pension Fund Management management

Company Limited
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13. W3 - WA e i 13. Property, plant and equipment
] The Group

BB R R 5L

ER(Y2 S5 FH G| it
Motor
Land and Furniture  vehicles and
buildings  and fixtures equipment Total

WARTE  WAWTC  WMWTE  Wh%TR
MOP’000  MOP’000  MOP’000  MOP’000

WA Cost:
20154E01 HO1 H At 1 January 2015 214,029 179,435 173,239 566,703
TRE Additions — 7,221 28,824 36,045
BE Disposals - (7,632) (11,896) (19,528)
2015412 H31H At 31 December 2015 214,029 179,024 190,167 583,220
Fathie - Accumulated depreciation:
20154£01 HOL H At 1 January 2015 66,033 86,996 108,244 261,273
AN EHE Depreciation Provided
during the year 3,987 17,082 28,408 49,477
Hi £ i o] Disposals — (7,113) (10,955) (18,068)
20154612 H31H At 31 December 2015 96,965 125,697 292,682
I i Net carrying amount:

2015412 431 H At 31 December 2015 144,009 82,059 64,470 290,538
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Wi The Bank
TRAL B I s i L
ER)2 Sd RE Bl it
Motor
Land and Furniture  vehicles and
buildings  and fixtures equipment Total
MWL RPWTE RPAWTE RP%TR
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
B Cost:
20154E01 H01 H At 1 January 2015 214,029 178,755 171,568 564,352
wE Additions — 7,221 28,821 36,042
JEE Disposals — (7,632) (11,896) (19,528)
20154F 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2015 214,029 178,344 188,493 580,866
Rl - Accumulated depreciation:
2015401 H01 H At 1 January 2015 66,033 86,517 106,619 259,169
N Depreciation Provided
during the year 3,987 17,053 28,386 49,426
Hi £ ] Disposals — (7,113) (10,955) (18,068)
20154F 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2015 70,020 96,457 124,050 290,527
G i 5% 2 : Net carrying amount:

201541231 H At 31 December 2015 144,009 81,887 64,443 290,339




T L F ]

=

Annual Report 2015

82 B TR SR AT (IR ) B4 A PR A W] INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED

FA AR B 3 (ARG B A 5B ) Financial Information Disclosure (in Accordance with MFRSS) (4 Continied)
BB Financial Statements (4 Continued)
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ZZ—HFEFZHAZE4—H 31 December 2015

£ 3c] The Group
BB I 2 i 5L
ER)2 Sd KE i ft
Motor
Land and Furniture  vehicles and
buildings  and fixtures equipment Total
WPWTE  WPWTE A% TRE  WmPWTR
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
B Cost:
20144E01 H 01 H At 1 January 2014 214,029 163,338 162,278 539,645
NE Additions — 17,714 18,955 36,669
BE Disposals — (1,617) (7,994) (9,611)
2014412431 H At 31 December 2014 214,029 179,435 173,239 566,703
Bt hid - Accumulated depreciation:
20144F01 H 01 H At 1 January 2014 62,046 73,396 89,578 225,020
SENEHE Provided during the year 3,987 14,420 26,364 44,771
H ] Disposals — (820) (7,698) (8,518)
2014412431 H At 31 December 2014 66,033 86,996 108,244 261,273
W i 5 2 : Net carrying amount:
20144F 12 H31H At 31 December 2014 147,996 92,439 64,995 305,430
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Wi The Bank
TR B 5 i L
ER)2 Sd KE i it
Motor
Land and Furniture  vehicles and
buildings  and fixtures equipment Total
WML WABTE RARTE RA%TE
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
B Cost:
20144E01 H 01 H At 1 January 2014 214,029 162,710 160,610 537,349
RE Additions — 17,660 18,952 36,612
BE Disposals — (1,615) (7,994) (9,609)
2014412431 H At 31 December 2014 214,029 178,755 171,568 564,352
Bt hid - Accumulated depreciation:
20144F01 H 01 H At 1 January 2014 62,046 72,947 87,973 222,966
EREHE Provided during the year 3,987 14,390 26,343 44,720
H ] Disposals — (820) (7,697) (8,517)
2014412431 H At 31 December 2014 66,033 86,517 106,619 259,169
W i 5 7 Net carrying amount:
20144F12H 31 H At 31 December 2014 147,996 92,238 64,949 305,183

AT Y e T M 45 BE A AP AT AN T

A geographical analysis of the Group’s land and

buildings is as follows:

4 1 SLRAT
The Group and the Bank
2015 2014
WL W T 0 WL W Too
MOP’000 MOP’000

WM

Macau

147,996
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14. &P A 14. Investment property
e L
The Group
W W T 70
MOP’000
JEAS Cost:
201441 H1H > At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014

20144E 12 H31 HU K
2015412 H31H

and 31 December 2015

Bl -
20154£01 Ho1 H
AAEGH YT

Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2015

Depreciation provided during the year

20154E 12 H31H

20144£01 Ho1 H
AAEGH YT

At 31 December 2015

At 1 January 2014

Depreciation provided during the year

20144E 12 H31H

i i ¥ 2
20154E 12 H31H

At 31 December 2014

Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2015

2014412 H31H

At 31 December 2014

B R EMA AR s DRI E A H The Group’s investment property is situated in Hong
A oo HAN Ao A8 Ry & B o 2% i ) R T Kong and is held under medium term lease. The fair
BB BR SRR E - 58— EEH% value of the investment property is determined by
JE T AR AR TG A 4 0 FE A DL K i 2R B discounting a projected cash flow series associated
BR o UL M 350 5B AN H B % Rl with the property using risk-adjusted discount rates.
B2 0 20154E 12 H 31 H B2 oo 8 4 The value has taken into account of expected market
90,330,000 ¥ 4 JC (2014 4 % 95,085,000 1 P4 rental and occupancy rate of the respective property.
JC) ° The discount rates used have been adjusted for the

quality and location of the building. The fair value
of the investment property on 31 Dec 2015 was
MOP90,330,000 (2014: MOP95,085,000).
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15. FZEHFK 15. Deposits from banks
e AT
The Group and the Bank
2015 2014
WM T o0 WPHEToT
MOP’000 MOP’000
BTGB MERITARE  Money market acceptances and bank
balances 10,191,517
16. B P1EE 16. Deposits from customers
/L] #47
The Group The Bank
2015 2014 2015 2014
WMo WM%Tor BM%Te mP% T
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
TR B A2k MR B Demand deposits and current
accounts 8,426,001 8,490,029
& Ek Savings deposits 26,113,171 26,114,333
€ W BB AE K Time and call deposits 104,814,561 104,927,099
139,353,733 139,531,461

FA & P A o DT B e A - & P
V1 7 K S 1 BT B 4 ) 2 6 L A 0% 2 7%

(20144F : 0% % 4.48%) °

All deposits from customers are measured at amortised
cost. The interest-bearing deposits from customers bear
effective interest rates ranging from 0 % to 7% (2014:
0% to 4.48%) per annum.
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17. EEBHE 17. Deferred tax
JEREBL G R (£ fE) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
IRAERLIE B 2 e B ARE BT The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities

during the year are as follows:

Sl The Group
SM¥EN  TREERY s BAmE
WA B Bifhi L i it
Revaluation
reserve of
Impairment available- Overseas  Accelerated
allowance on for-sale  withholding tax
financial assets investments tax  depreciation Others Total
WA WPRTE O WMWTE O WAWTR WAWTX WRTR
MOP000 MOP*000 MOP*000 MOP’000 MOP000 MOP000
2015401 JO1H At 1 Tanuary 2015 (120,943) 86,233 @1,1M)
AN F R RN A4 Deferred tax (charged)/credited to the
income statement during the year (12,308) 42,043 5 30,030
IR R Deferred tax charged to the equity
during the year 4,855
014 12A31H At 31 December 2015 (133,251) 128,276 (12,886))
i The Bank
2015401 JO1H At 1 January 2015 (120,943)
R REERTE 4 Deferred tax (charged)/credited to the
income statement during the year (12,308)
Xy A Deferred tax charged to the equity
during the year

WISE1A31H At 31 December 2015 (133,251) 128,276
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£l The Group
MR Wik ALY ] B
Wl Tt Bi bt il LY it
Revaluation
reserve of
Impairment available- Overseas Accelerated
allowance on for-sale  withholding tax
financial assets investments tax  depreciation Others Total
WM MR WOWTR WAWTx WORTR WPl
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP000 MOP000 MOP000
201440101 At 1 January 2014 13,198 24,186 = (9,637) 580 8307
AN R R 4 Deferred tax charged to the income
statement during the year (134,141) — 86,33 1,302 (580) (47,186)
KRR AR Deferred tax credited to the equity
during the year - (28912) - - (28912)
14412311 At 31 December 2014 (120,943) (4,726) 86,233 (8,333) = @7,1M)
iy The Bank
201440101 A At 1 January 2014 13,198 24,186 = (7.938) 580 30,026
RO B R Deferred tax charged to the income
statement during the year (134,141) = 86,233 1,406 (580) (47,082)
AR Deferred tax credited to the equity
during the year — (28912) - - — (28912)

WIERA3A At31 December 2014 (120943) (476) 86,233 (653) - (45.968)
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18.

19.

JBEAR 18. Share capital
2015 2014
WM T WM¥ETT
MOP’000 MOP’000
e Authorised:
—HEK > HK1,0005T 1,000,000 shares of MOP1,000 each
W 7e 1,000,000
OB CHR : Issued and fully paid:
1 H1H 461,194 B 461,194 (2014: 461,194) shares of
(2014 : 461,194 %) » MOP1,000 each at 1 January
A8 1,000 S o0 461,194
127,726 (2014 : &) > 127,726 (2014: Nil) shares of
B 1,000 G M G MOP1,000 each issued
12 H 31 H 588,920 & 588,920 (2014: 461,194) shares of
(2014 : 461,194 %) » MOP1,000 each at 31 December
A8 1,000 JGH M o8 461,194

R Z AT P R BB > AT B AR R
Z VB 2 W) 2B e 0 R SR A A BLAR B 20%
RN EREHEE > HEZREEZEH
TSR AT R HAEW P Z Wi A W & B C8# 1T
Be R BEAZ 50% #y 1k o BEAR 8 2 WA b
IRRFFAEAE ZEBR B H D 10%KF » HE
%A 4 2 U SR AT B AR IR 2 e
AT A CBAT RMUE AT 1L o B S 1
FERHIBLE Z HE LA R AT L T A WUk > I
A 2 ST A JBE SO e SR AR A & b ik e A%
BAFEEBRBA -

19.

Legal reserve

Under the Macau banking and insurance legislation, the
Bank and its subsidiaries incorporated in Macau (the
“Macau subsidiaries”) are required to transfer to a legal
reserve an amount equal to a minimum of 20% of its
annual profit after tax until the amount of the reserve is
equal to 50% of their respective issued and fully paid
up share capital. Thereafter, transfers must continue
at a minimum annual rate of 10% until the reserve
is equal to the Bank’s and the Macau subsidiaries’
respective issued and fully paid up share capital. This
reserve is only distributable in accordance with certain
limited circumstances prescribed by statute and will
be transferred from the annual profit after tax upon
the approval by the shareholders in the annual general

meeting after the end of reporting period.
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20. HAAM 20. Contingent liabilities
A 1 LAY
The Group and the Bank
2015 2014
WM T WM T
MOP’000 MOP’000
AR B AR Undrawn loan commitments 26,837,240
PR o Guarantees 1,501,408
T 7% 7 B e i AR 1 AR Liabilities under letters of credit on behalf
of customers 127,996
28,466,644
21. BAERAELH 21. Operating lease arrangements
(a) ZHBALA (a)  As lessor

AT DL A 5K P AL B 3 (Y
B W B RE SR 1536 o SRR B 2 AL
iy W T 2 4F o LB R K R AL P SO AR
it 4 M AR T 5 0 A i 3t A

2015412 H31 H > 184 o] fi & 1Y %%
BEMEGRT » RTHEA AR Rk

The Group leases its investment property (note
14) under operating lease arrangements, with
a lease negotiated for a term of two years. The
terms of the lease require the tenant to pay
security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the prevailing market

conditions.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had total

future minimum lease receivables under a non-

REW Ry 2B R S WA T ¢ cancellable operating lease with its tenant falling
due as follows:
g 30|
The Group
2015 2014
WM T WM o0
MOP’000 MOP’000
K30 Within one year 2,719
582 4E In the second year 1,360

4,079
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22.

(b)  BIRALA

AT L8 AN B 2 R AR e b
BCIEA B Z AL 2 1 1 BI04 AR5 o
TEN T W 2 A B R T > AT HE
HAELBE P REC AWM E A
T

ZE-REFZHZ+—H 31 December 2015

(b)  As lessee

The Group leases land and buildings under
operating lease arrangement with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 10
years. The Group and the Bank had total future
commitments of lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants

falling due as follows:

4 1 S RAT

The Group and the Bank
2015 2014
W W T 0 LR W Too
MOP’000 MOP’000
14D A Within one year 79,150
154 (&) In between one to five years 193,313
SEEPLE After five years 72,121
344,584

A2 2 4 1l B i I £ A6

AT AT BT A 4 B DL 3E 5 I A R L
BN M R Z R AR B 2y H Y -

FL 0 440 i B D A — T B0 0 28 40— A T
Z Bl

I 3 A0 A I — R AR H 9 DR S A% Y I
ST HZAHIEH -

PR SRk B R S AT AR TR A - i
O S 54 A — R AT R A A AL
HEREEDBBANR > GRS TR
B B A S o % 8 AR B R Y 32 5 i
W WEASRE LA 45 vl 5 B o oA B L
A5 B

20

Derivative financial assets and liabilities

The Group uses the derivative financial instruments for
trading or for hedging future fluctuations in interest

rates and foreign exchange rates.

Swaps are contracts in which two parties exchange
cash flows on a specified notional amount for a

predetermined period.

Forwards are contractual obligations to buy or sell
a financial instrument on a future date at a specified

price.

The table below shows the fair values of derivative
financial instruments recorded as assets or liabilities
together with their notional amounts. The notional
amount is the basis upon which changes in the value of
derivatives are measured. The notional amounts indicate
the volume of transactions outstanding at the year end
and are indicative of neither the market risk nor the

credit risk.
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EE AT The Group and the Bank
2015
A AVBEY A
&% ¥ e ] 1145
Notional Notional
amount Assets amount Liabilities
WMETT WM¥Te WM¥BTe WM¥ET
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
b EE £ 29 Foreign exchange contracts
HU A Forward contracts 3,742,706 130,558 2,672,076
jgizt] Currency swaps 11,951,095 125,793 1,510,321
15,693,801 256,351 4,182,397
FEREH Interest rate contracts
) 2R i 14 Interest rate swaps 7,998,496 8,696 5,000,600
23,692,297 265,047 9,182,997
4 M L gy The Group and the Bank
2014
BRI BRI
En| BE S A 1
Notional Notional
amount Assets amount Liabilities
WMTE  WM%Toe BT WMo
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
A EE A &1 Foreign exchange contracts
wHM AL Forward contracts 9,230,151 103,897 8,599,133 94,753
5 s Currency swaps 7,152,271 3,122 19,097,442 21,792
16,382,422 107,019 27,696,575 116,545
FEEE Interest rate contracts
] 3 1 Interest rate swaps 7,843,359 25,205 5,805,935 18,562
24,225,781 132,224 33,502,510 135,107
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23.

—BA% > AT A THIE N W R A 5 ML TR A R
i ROEEAGY LEE NS - (HZHT
LI W A e A A B K H B B ¢ o

LR 38 By WA 2 E i v R o O SR T B R A
T35 AR 1 5 L Fr P A% IR B

AT HIAT A i 1 400 2 AL R 355 e A L P
ARy 2 — > ZFIFHNEE -

1o Uk Tk vkt

AT A A 1o i b e [T J ) S 1) 5 S Rl o

B F20154F 12431 H > # W m o
£ 3% % IR % 1,904,277,000 8 [ o6
(20144 : 878,402,000 W Y 75 ) o T 55 1 1K %5
2,001,296,000 ¥ [ 76 (2014 4 : 930,819,000 I
' 76 ) 1) 8 27 4 43 48 % v Bt 1 B (O B 5 A
11) o 22 5% F 4 ) £ 3 A 4T o 35 v DA A% =
W BB - IS S IR AE A O B S
TR B 2 [ 2 AR 4 i W] 4 Y 5 4R ] o
ARATARYRAAT BLAZ 5 34 T 55T 1 =52 [ i Bt e
A R A T AR

pas

ZE-REFZHZ+—H 31 December 2015

At inception, derivatives often involve only a mutual
exchange of promises with little or no transfer of
consideration. However, these instruments frequently

involve a high degree of leverage and are very volatile.

Over-the-counter derivatives may expose the Group to
the risks associated with the absence of an exchange

market on which to close out an open position.

The Group’s exposure under derivative contracts is
closely monitored as part of the overall management of

its market risk.

Repurchase agreements

The Group has a programme to sell securities under

repurchase agreements (repos).

The carrying amount of securities sold by the Group
and the Bank under agreements to repurchase at
31 December 2015 was MOP1,904,277,000 (2014:
MOP878,402,000) of which securities with market
value of MOP2,001,296,000 (2014: MOP930,819,000)
were classified as available-for-sale (note 11). Those
securities are presented in the consolidated balance
sheet as “Available-for-sale investments pledged as
collateral”. The Group conducts these transactions
under the terms that are based on the Master
Repurchase Agreement entered between the Group and

the counterparty.
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24, UBIOEBERMEAES 24. Debt issued and borrowed funds
A M T

The Group and the Bank
2015 2014
WM WT e WMHET T
MOP’000 MOP’000
SRR Variable coupon rate notes 1,166,990 1,166,990
TR Fixed coupon rate notes 2,901,345 2,900,258
4,068,335 4,067,248

PR AT E SR Y DR U= - All debt securities issued are measured at amortised
cost.
25. UEHTERKGE 25. Certificates of deposit issued
5 P ST

The Group and the Bank
2015 2014
WP WT e WMHEToT
MOP’000 MOP’000

J B R HLT PR 3 months or less but not repayable
JINA S 3 1 H on demand 791,323 5,041,684
3THLE1EDN 1 year or less but over 3 months 710,127 3,706,452
1,501,450 8,748,136
P CBAT A Gl 3 DU s st = o All certificates of deposit issued are measured at

amortised cost.
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TIUR R G TS B RAR s OF B 5 A 1
i BB T 0 45 R Y o Sl A R £ OF B B R
i AL B 4

1. b BE A B H BRI

BrAiE TRUAN » AT EEFFH &M T ABE
E SN C O T O3 C L RNLEVE IEF
o AEINERE > HEEIHRYE > HER
FLIAEK o

AT IR IR LG R & 2 R B A A
S5 A A 4 E i DA A B PR A e i A AR 2 A
2l oz B I R

ACAT B O B B 8 K w51 o E b s
BB IR > W] B 2 B 2 R R LA AT
B W or Y B AT RE R WRF L~ e b
Bive B 22 5 o M B 5 517 44 9 DA DRl
6 B RS RR o B B S R
B BRTT I B At e I SR B S B o % B
Z B Ay 6T A PSR o 9 TR
2R ~ BRI A Sl 1 A I A B e L o e ik
A% JR g AR T RS o

AT R Z 4 b T HL 3 i i B R 9 (B Ak
THE JE 6% B 1 3R L BG ) A R B % 3 Bl SR
Bt o Fh o o € 70 A I ol 8 AH R B R A B b A
T JE B > R B R A R . AR AT % E AT
A TH 2 fr 51 BRI B i B Rk 2.3 (n) 4
B o

Unaudited supplementary information

The following unaudited supplementary information is
disclosed as part of the accompanying information to the
consolidated financial statements and does not form part of

the audited consolidated financial statements.

1. Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise loans and advances to customers
and trade bills, deposits from banks and customers,
available-for-sale investments, held-to-maturity

investments and cash and short term deposits.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions,
including principally interest rate swaps and forward
currency contracts. The purpose is to manage the
interest rate and currency risks arising from the Group’s

operations and its sources of finance.

The Group has written risk management policies and
guidelines, which set out its overall business strategies,
its tolerance for risk and its general risk management
philosophy, and has established processes to monitor
and control hedging transactions in a timely and
accurate manner. Such written policies are reviewed
annually to ensure that the Group’s policies and
guidelines are appropriate and adhered to. The board of
directors is responsible for the overall risk management
approach and for approving the risk strategies and
principles. The Asset and Liability Committee has
the responsibility for developing risk strategies and
implementing principles, frameworks, policies and
limits. It is responsible for managing and monitoring
fundamental risk issues and to make relevant risk

decisions.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are market risk (i.e. foreign currency risk
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
board of directors reviews and establishes policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below. The Group’s accounting policies in relation to
derivatives are set out in note 2.3(n) to the financial

statements.
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(a) i (a) Market risk

i 35 R i 455 A/ I % ) 3 L e <5 T 9L ¢

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from

Z i AV B A 2 e 1R LB movements in observable market variables such
as foreign exchange rates and interest rates.
i) R R 7 (i) Foreign currency risk
A AT R % W T 35 A E E R B The Group takes on exposure to effects
HAEMBERUARISHRZE of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign

BoATORETHEWHEZFA
FRAT > &5 H 3% P ik e 2 PR 5
B A IR -

currency exchange rates on its financial
positions and cash flows. The Group has set
limits on positions by currency. Positions
are independently monitored against the
approved limits on a daily basis.

AAT 2 AT Al R - AR AR

An analysis of the currency concentration

Feim WA E A 4 2 & W BRI positions of the financial assets, financial
SHTIE ¢ liabilities and forward foreign exchange
contracts of the Group is as follows:
(A T i E )
(Equivalent in MOP million)
£ The Group
015
W #r ¥ ARH e it
MOP HKD USD RMB Others Total
(A Assets
RERBATERR Cash and balances with banks
e R and deposits with monetary
authority 3,167 6,538 17,743
Tt Placements with other banks 380 11,201 20,007
% PR EER Loans and advances to customers 16,014 20,781 123,964
W fk R Available-for-sale investments 2 10,612 15,746
AR A Bt s 1 Available-for-sale investments
pledged as collateral 2,001 2,001
WHEH NG Held-to-maturity investments 4978 10,898
TitemEE Derivative financial assets 256 9 — 265
RN R g Receivables and other assets 134 242 141 856

3,902

13,582

191,480
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2015
WM i i AR o it
MOP HKD Ush RMB Others Total
fif Liabilities
KFfR Deposits from customers 38,387 149,870
GEi¢ Deposits from banks 10,979 66 16,045
fitemAK Derivative financial liabilities 7 — ki
RGN Debt issued and borrowed funds 2,541 = 4,068
CRTHRE Certificates of deposit issued 1,139 182 1,501
s i Other liabilities 2,121 265 3,082
19,838 55,174 16,279 174,603
B Net position 4,004 1,188 7303 16,877
TN 2 2 Forward foreign exchange
contracts net notional position
AT The Bank
2015
WK # ¥ N i it
MOP HKD Ush RMB Others Total
i Assets
RARBITHH R Cash and balances with banks
FHEREREL and deposits with monetary
authority 17,143
b3 Placements with other banks 20,007
% PR Loans and advances to customers 124,565
Wi ERE Available-for-sale investments 15,746
S A A B e Available-for-sale investments
pledged as collateral — 2,001
HEEHN R Held-to-maturity investments il 10,844
it emEE Derivative financial assets — - 265
Rl B Receivables and other assets a1 141 956

B

81,269

13,576

191,527
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2015
W #i ¥ ARH b it
MOP HKD Ush RMB Others Total
fif Liabilities
KRG Deposits from customers 150,027
GEL Deposits from banks 66 16,045
it ama K Derivative financial liabilities - R
CRAERREALS Debt issued and borrowed funds — 4,068
[RE i Certificates of deposit issued 182 1,501
s i Other liabilities 264 3,101
19,952 16,294 174,719
BT Net position 3,959 7,82 16,748
RAINEE 5 A5 Forward foreign exchange
contracts net notional position
£ The Group
2014
W #i ¥ ARH b it
MoP HKD Ush RMB Others Total
i Assets
RERRTTHR Cash and balances with banks
e R RS and deposits with monetary
authority 2928 1,852 608 S11 159 6,058
b3 Placements with other banks = 7,045 1,738 20,594 203 29,580
% PR Loans and advances to customers 14,930 54,001 39,810 9,023 4 117,807
SR g Available-for-sale investments 2 62 4611 8723 - 13,398
CARAT T Bt e Available-for-sale investments
pledged as collateral — — 931 — — 931
EHERMRE Held-to-maturity investments 95(0 762 487 1,593 = 7,592
fikemgE Derivative financial assets 107 — 25 — — 132
FEWa St e e Receivables and other assets 91 509 187 567 5 1359
19,008 04,231 52,197 41,011 410 176,857
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014
WM i #i AR L) ik
MoP HKD Ush RMB Others Total
il Liabilities
Kl Deposits from customers 16,070 74,158 16,519 31,138 1,469 139,354
EEIi Deposits from banks 256 3,205 5,935 796 = 10,192
Tt ama Derivative financial liabilities 116 — 19 — — 135
CBIERREALS Debt issued and borrowed funds — 1,527 2,540 — — 4,067
R Certificates of deposit issued — 526 3329 4893 — 8,748
Fltsi Other liabilities 185 745 1079 79 17 2,820
16,627 80,161 29421 37,621 1,486 165,316
R Net position 2,381 (15,930) 2,776 3,390 (1,076) 11,541
EAINE 5 A5 Forward foreign exchange
contracts net notional position (419) 21,886 (19,264) (3,283) 1,062 (18)
R The Bank
2014
W i *i PN Y] it
MOP HKD Ush RMB Others Total
i Assets
HERRTENR (Cash and balances with banks
TR R and deposits with monetary
authority 2,928 1,852 608 511 159 6,058
Tl Placements with other banks = 7,045 1,738 20,59 203 29,580
E B Loans and advances to customers 14,930 54,001 39,810 9,023 # 117,807
Wk &R S Available-for-sale investments 2 62 4611 873 - 13,398
ELRAR AT g BB Available-for-sale securities
pledged as collateral — — 931 — — 931
BHENM RS Held-to-maturity investments 950 762 487 1,587 — 7,586
ik amgE Derivative financial assets 107 — 25 — — 132
WEWk B & Receivables and other assets 109 584 187 568 5 1453
19,026 64,306 52,197 41,006 410 176,945
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2014
W # 1 ARH L) ik
MOP HKD [IN)] RMB Others Total
fifg Liabilities
%Ftis Deposits from customers 16,147 74,184 16,578 31,153 1,469 139,531
B4 Deposits from banks 256 3,205 5,935 796 = 10,192
ik amafk Derivative financial liabilities 116 — 19 — — 135
CBIERRIEALS Debt issued and borrowed funds — 1,527 2,540 — — 4,067
RE i e Certificates of deposit issued — 526 3,329 4,893 — 8,748
L& Other liabilities bk} 739 1,079 794 15 2,840
16,732 80,181 29,430 37,636 1,484 165,513
R Net position 2,294 (15,875) 27 3370 (1,074) 11,432
RAINEE 5 A5 Forward foreign exchange
contracts net notional position (419) 21,886 (19,264) (3,283) 1,062 (18)
I E AT Sensitivity analysis

A AT T 36 DL SR O 6 2 W W
Fe STt A 2 Bl & M 5 0 4
SN T 0 T UVAEYE 95
R T A 2 M R o R
R R ACAT T 3 B % B
A > SN A 22 5 AR 43 A o

VLR R HUR R R R - A
FRMES MR R Y LT 6 A B i E A
P AR BE > T L At 5 B A AT B
B (R R EE R AR AR
L ¥ 58 B8l ) o A AT 3 Je A (3 7t
] A3k H B SR R G A SRR R S )
R R A o

The currencies to which the Group had
significant exposure at the reporting
dates on its monetary financial assets and
liabilities included Hong Kong dollars
(“HKD”), United States dollars (“USD”)
and Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”). Since
Macau Patacas is linked to the HKD and
USD, management considered the Group’s
exposure to HKD and USD is minimal. As

such, no sensitivity analysis is presented.

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity at the end of the reporting period
to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate, with all other variable held
constant on the Group’s and the Bank’s
profit before tax (due to changes in the fair
value of monetary assets and liabilities)
and equity (due to changes in the fair value

of available-for-sale investments).
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(ii)

BRI TG 5 0, (W) Increase/(decrease) in profit before tax
N 22 &n Wi
Change in RMB
exchange rate The Group The Bank
015 2014 015 2014
BIHT VLS BIHT Wi
MOP*000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP'000
FRMCHARHHE  IF the MOP strengthens against the RMB 5% (267) (268)
BN ARBER  1f the MOP weakens against the RMB 5% 267 268
s, (W A) Increase/(decrease) in equity
ARHERE &n Wi
Change in RMB
exchange rate The Group The Bank
015 014 015 2014
PR VL BHT Wk
MOP*000 MOP*000 MOP*000 MOP*000
FEMTCHNRETHE If the MOP strengthens against the RVB 5% 6 46
FMTCH AR  1f the MOP weakens against the RMB 5% (#56) (#56)
VES. g (ii)  Interest rate risk

A 2% B 75 ph R A 2% 5 ) W] e
BARBECHREREM T RZ A
Fefe T A o

ACAT AR 32 IR T ) AR 5 ) L
MBERAERBERBEZEE - B
% AT PR O 45 ) 1T 4 s ek A
A 5% e 2 B S 4 v R e PR
BUEAT A B - 3% 55 FRUBUTS L 4
231 AR AT BEAE > BEAh > I A
ANAT Z F A BB AR -

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility
that changes in interest rates will affect
future cash flows or the fair values of

financial instruments.

The Group takes on exposure to the effects
of fluctuations in the prevailing levels
of market interest rates on its financial
position and cash flows. Interest margins
may increase or decrease as a result of
such changes. Interest rate risk is managed
within risk limits approved by management.
Limits are set for each maturity band, in
addition, to an aggregate limit, for the

aggregate position of the Group.
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(b)

R BN A B A SR £ BT RE A
B> BPEFH R WA S0 M
TR Z SRR AT e %
B R S WA B 2 Y
B TIRR BN LR AT Z &
Al S R T T A R
VLt 5 o

The table below shows the sensitivity
analysis on net interest income of a
reasonably possible movement in interest
rates; i.e. a 50 basis points increase/
decrease in current interest rates. The
figures represent the effect of the pro forma
movements in net interest income based
on the scenario projected and the Group’s
floating interest rate financial assets and

financial liabilities.

e o T3 R S BOA 52 )
Changes in basis points Change in projected net interest income
e L] a7
The Group The Bank
W T oo L ¥ T oo
MOP’000 MOP’000
2015
+50
-50
2014
+50 (76,765) (76,164)
-50 76,765 76,164
L ) P b (b) Liquidity risk

L B A AT R — R R R B 2
W DU T AR BB 239 IhF 0 HE Ak 2 2
B o Ty R G L > B A O A R R
b > LG O LS AL E SR >
BILRE A INF RE L B 4 o A H EEAER
2B B 3 bk B A Y o LS T B
U A X v A AR i = T A
A I A AR BAN E 4 o ATBE
Jei 3 s O i A A B e T A
REHI UL -

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be
unable to meet its payment obligations when they
fall due under normal and stress circumstances.
To limit this risk, management has arranged
diversified funding sources in addition to its
core deposit base, manages assets with liquidity
in mind, and monitors future cash flows and
liquidity on a daily basis. This incorporates
an assessment of expected cash flows and the
availability of high grade collateral which could
be used to secure additional funding if required.
Management monitor the liquidity and solvency

position on a daily and weekly basis respectively.
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RITZERE - AfL-

A AR R AR

An analysis of the maturity profile of the Group’s

BERYEZ VBB R AT T assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities and
undrawn loan commitments is as follows:
(S8 T 3 B o) (Equivalent in MOP million)
E92) The Group
2015
SRZEMA IERMA 154 RksA hiel w5t
More than ~ More than
3 months 1 year
Less than and up to and up to Over
3months 12 months 5 years 5 years Undated Total
il Assets
RERBHEHR Cash and balances with banks
FHEHE R and deposits with monetary
authority 17,743
G % Placements with other banks 20,007
% P Loans and advances to customers 123,964
A E R G Available-for-sale investments 15,746
CARARI T gt e g Available-for-sale investments
pledged as collateral 2,001
Fih RE G Held-to-maturity investments 10,398
ik emeE Derivative financial assets 231 265
JE ek RS Receivables and other assets 483 856
38,504 55,118 52,597 191,480
fifg Liabilities
RRfEH® Deposits from customers 110,332 149,870
FEY3¢ Deposits from banks 10,305 16,045
itk eme 65 Derivative financial liabilitics 1 kil
CEITHEAREALE 2 Debt issued and borrowed funds — 4,068
BBHRE Certificates of deposit issues 791 1,501
Kk Other liabilities 2,231 3,082
123,666 174,603
o Net (liabilities)/assets (85,162) 16,877
HH A Contingent liabilities 1,106 5,356
ReEE&E Undrawn loan commitments 6,541 45,003
WA AR AR Total contingent liabilities and

commitments
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BT The Bank
2015
SREMA 3ERWA 158 RisE Al it
More than ~ More than
3 months 1 year
Less than and up to and up to Over
3months 12 months 5 years 5 years Undated Total
B Assets
RERRHTEIR Cash and balances with banks
TEHERE R and deposits with monetary
authority 17,143
A% Placements with other banks 20,007
Rt Loans and advances to customers 124,565
R Available-for-sale investments 15,746
TG A T Bt e d Available-for-sale investments
pledged as collateral R 2,001
MRS Held-to-maturity investments 10,844
ik AmgE Derivative financial assets 31 25
TEMCH RS P Receivables and other assets 96 956
45,187 191,527
fifs Liabilities
BRfER Deposits from customers 110,365 150,027
GET:4 Deposits from banks 10,305 16,045
it 2mA 6 Derivative financial liabilities 7 26 ki
DEGERREALE Debt issued and borrowed funds — — 4,068
CEER R Certificates of deposit issues 791 710 1,501
HibaE Other liabilities 2,231 7 3,101
123,699 44,147 3,468 174,779
it Net (liabilities)/assets (LAREA)] 1,040 49,129 16,748
RHAR Contingent liabilities 1,106 4,102 67 5,356
Atk Ak Undrawn loan commitments 6,541 12 16,845 45,093
WA A R Total contingent liabilities and

commitments

15,379
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#H The Group
2014
SREMA - 3ERMA 154 R4 FEH 3t
More than More than
3 months 1 year
Less than and up to and up to Over
3 months 12 months 5 years 5 years Undated Total
ji{id Assets
RERFTHHR Cash and balances with banks
BHEHE R and deposits with monetary
authority 6,058 — — — — 6,058
B Placements with other banks 24,986 4,594 = = = 29,580
LISNEE CE T Loans and advances to customers 22,458 17,893 38,611 39,069 (224) 117,807
R Available-for-sale investments 404 4,864 8,079 41 10 13,398
AT 4 Available-for-sale investments
pledged as collateral — — 931 — — 931
HHEIMRE Held-to-maturity investments 1,130 3,514 2,948 = = 7,592
it Amg e Derivative financial assets 92 16 24 — — 132
JEMER R q Receivables and other assets 711 28 = — 360 1,359
55,899 31,109 50,593 39,110 146 176,857
fif Liabilities
VIares | Deposits from customers 106,919 29,324 2,928 = 183 139,354
FEHH Deposits from banks 9,970 m — — — 10,192
it R i Derivative financial liabilities 106 1l 16 2 = 135
CETERRIEAES Debt issued and borrowed funds = = = 3467 600 4067
7Y G Certificates of deposit issues 5,042 3,706 = = = 8,748
Bl Other liabilities 2,188 324 33 — 275 2,820
124,225 33,587 2977 3,469 1,058 165,316
Bt Net (liabilities)/assets (68,326) (2,478) 47,616 35,641 (912) 11,541
JHAR Contingent liabilities 554 966 104 5 — 1,629
Rl Undrawn loan commitments 10,423 10,857 4218 1,339 = 26,837
B A Rkt Total contingent liabilities and
commitments 10,977 11,823 4322 1,344 — 28,466
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AT The Bank
2014
SREMA - 3ERMA 154 R4 HEH 3t
More than More than
3 months 1 year
Less than and up to and up to Over
3 months 12 months 5 years 5 years Undated Total
jifid Assets
RERFTHHR Cash and balances with banks
FHEHE R and deposits with monetary
authority 6,058 — — — — 6,058
B Placements with other banks 24,986 4,594 = = = 29,580
LISNEE CE T Loans and advances to customers 22,458 17,893 38,611 39,069 (224) 117,807
R Available-for-sale investments 404 4,864 8,079 41 10 13,398
AR g Available-for-sale investments
pledged as collateral — — 931 — — 931
HHEIN®E Held-to-maturity investments 1,130 3,514 2,942 = = 7,586
it Amg e Derivative financial assets 92 16 24 — — 132
JEMER R ql Receivables and other assets it 28 - — 454 1,453
55,899 31,109 50,587 39,110 240 176,945
fifk Liabilities
KRt Deposits from customers 107,089 29,331 2,928 = 183 139,531
FEHHK Deposits from banks 9,970 m — — — 10,192
ik amAa K Derivative financial liabilities 106 1l 16 2 = 135
CETERRIEAES Debt issued and borrowed funds = = = 3467 600 4067
BT Certificates of deposit issues 5,042 3,706 = = = 8,748
KAk Other liabilities 2,188 324 33 — 295 2,840
124,395 33,594 2,977 3,469 1,078 165,513
Bt Net (liabilities)/assets (68,4960 (2,485) 47,610 35,641 (838) 11,432
RHAR Contingent liabilities 554 966 104 5 — 1,629
Rl Undrawn loan commitments 10,423 10,857 4218 1,339 = 26,837
M A Rkt Total contingent liabilities and
commitments 10,977 11,823 4322 1,344 — 28,466
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TREFRMAEMRERNN B MG ESE
il EL AR ~ DL e A S 2 AT 2k A £
B IR R S T HIET
AITHEMZBE&RE - RNWBEZLEH
FAHRBINBIZB &R E > WA4T A
R TE U 2 AR A% 7 B B 4 U A L A

The table below presents the cash flow payables
by the Group under non-derivative financial
liabilities derivatives financial liabilities that will
be settled on a net basis and derivative financial

instruments that will be settled on gross basis by

remaining contractual maturities at the end of the

L B M L o reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows,
whereas the Group manages the inherent liquidity
risk based on expected undiscounted cash flows.

(A T 3 o) (Equivalent in MOP million)

E90 ] The Group

2015
SREMA 3E0MA 1-54 RIRS4 s it
More than ~ More than
3 months 1 year
Less than and up to and up to Over
3 months 12 months 5 years 5 years Undated Total

V9shct ¢ Deposits from customers 110,638 31,516 150,451

R Deposits from other banks 10,310 5,744 16,054

DRTEE > AELH Debt issued, borrowed funds and

DB certificates of deposit issued 849 m 7,546

HE g Total liabilities 121,797 174,051

ik B4 Derivatives cash flow

DA Derivative financial instruments

SMTA Settled on net basis:
TN — Total inflow
itk — Total outflow
DR E AT Derivative financial instruments
SWTR Settled on gross basis:
HE A — Total inflow 19,881
M — Total outflow 19,661
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A7 The Bank
2015

SREMA IEDRMA IS RisE 3] it
More than ~ More than

3 months 1 year
Less than and up to and up to Over
3months 12 months 5 years 5 years Undated Total
EPfR Deposits from customers 110,760 37,557 150,614
CET:4 Deposits from other banks 10,310 5,744 16,054
DRITEE > FAELH Debt issued, borrowed funds and
RE (Y € certificates of deposit issued 849 m 7,546
FARET Total liabilities 121,919 174,214
ik B4 Derivatives cash flow
DA E AT Derivative financial instruments
SMTA Settled on net basis:
BREA — Total inflow
A — Total outflow
DV RS AT A Derivative financial instruments
ABTH Settled on gross basis:
A — Total inflow

b — Total outflow
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#H The Group
2014

SRERA 3ENRMRA 58 RS v it

More than More than

3 months 1 year
Less than and up to and up to Over
3 months 12 months 5 years 5 years Undated Total
EPfR Deposits from customers 107,704 29,587 2,961 — 183 140,435
FEYeii Deposits from other banks 10,745 239 — 927 = 11,911
DEITER  fARER Debt issued, borrowed funds and
Y G certificates of deposit issued 1,486 11,182 532 4171 600 17,971
B Total liabilities 119,935 41,008 3,493 5,098 783 170317
ik LA Derivatives cash flow
DA E AT Derivative financial instruments
SRR Settled on net basis:
VN — Total inflow 10 26 47 = = 83
Hai — Total outflow 10 20 45 1 — 76
DERA A Derivative financial instruments
SHMTH Settled on gross basis:
BN — Total inflow 25,698 13,366 5,007 § = 44,079

Sl — Total outflow 25,716 13,367 5,006 8 = 44,097
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AT The Bank

2014

SRERA 3ENRMA 58 RitsE REH it

More than More than

3 months 1 year
Less than and up to and up to Over
3 months 12 months 5 years 5 years Undated Total
EPfR Deposits from customers 107,202 29,331 2,928 — 205 139,666
FEYei Deposits from other banks 10,745 239 — 927 = 11,911
DEITER  fARER Debt issued, borrowed funds and
DETHH® certificates of deposit issued 1,486 11,182 532 4171 600 17,971
B Total liabilities 119,433 40,752 3,460 5,098 805 169,548
ik B4R Derivatives cash flow
DA E AT Derivative financial instruments
SRR Settled on net basis:
VN — Total inflow 10 26 47 = = 83
Hai — Total outflow 10 20 45 1 — 76
DERA A Derivative financial instruments
SMTH Settled on gross basis:
BN — Total inflow 25,698 13,366 5,007 § = 44,079

Sl — Total outflow 25,716 13,367 5,006 8 = 44,097
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(©)

15 S B

5 LR\ B 2y I % P 28 5 T AR R 5
B I A4 T A A Z LB B R A AT
Z B H TR S R

AATHT A 5 B BT SRR > DLEHR
B R Pl 5 R B o AT Z A5 BEHE I
BEERZEY - EEAE - AL
FRMEE - WHMEE - REFRE
MR ZATBRKLES > EHA%
o B R S Bk Z S A LA o B A
B % A A (5 RS B W) Z A
FEWUE - 5 BB 2 B I KR AR AT A5
BRI A & 5 B2 A R
R PR % I At ) AR E (91 345 B R
B R JE B R R ) i B R AE S
oy > DARREORAE BB 1 % B AR R TR oL
AR o PR B 2 A B KB Wik o
/N ER -

ACAT — B DA 7 R ) L A R LB o
Wi Se % B SRR 91 A A A o S R e
I 3 R AR UL > B R E B A
HIREHE -

AAT 3 S S 4 BT A R Y Rk T B
AL » FEIEH SRR R A R - K
A7 B4 B 0 ) RO T AR WL ) )R HY
FORGRE A o AT 0 f5 LA BRAR I K
B WA K o — HEFEHARIE - &
LU SO B R A B SE EA — 4
BAEHR 5 > YT 90 R M BRI B 43
BRI — RBEEGK > AT
AP Al

(©

ZE-REFZHZ+—H 31 December 2015

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or
counterparty in a transaction may default and
arises mainly from lending, trade finance and

treasury activities undertaken by the Group.

The Group has a credit risk management process
to measure, monitor and control credit risk.
The lending authority of the Bank consists of
the credit committee, general manager, credit
department heads, marketing department heads,
chief executive officer and directors who
have extensive banking experience, and have
the ultimate authority in approving loans and
advances to customers. Each level within the
authority hierarchy has its own lending limit
which is specified in the credit memorandum.
The hierarchy of credit authority which approves
credit is in compliance with the Group’s credit
policy; exposures are monitored against credit
limits and other control limits (such as large
exposures and concentration limits); segregation
of duties in key credit functions is in place to
ensure separate credit control and monitoring;
management and recovery of problem credits is

handled by an independent work-out team.

The Group manages its credit risk within a
conservative framework. Its credit policy is
regularly revised, taking into account factors such
as prevailing business and economic conditions,

regulatory requirements and its capital resources.

The Bank has a policy of downgrading loans from
performing grade to non-performing grade when
it became overdue. The Bank’s loan monitoring
policy is in compliance with the requirements
set out by the AMCM. The Credit Management
Department of the Bank monitors the overdue
loans on a timely basis. Once the loans became
overdue, they are reclassified into level 2 —
special mention accounts. Loans overdue longer
than 90 days are classified into level 3 —
substandard accounts, and subject to impairment

assessment.
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W45 Financial Statements (4 Continued)

A B BEEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 continied)

() WHZ AT SR

TRIRAHREHARAFIEE (4
FEAT A T ) i 3 2 B R B
B o 5 KL I A 5 I R A R
b ke DA KA 1 e P S DA

BEABETHFFHER

15 K 5 0 T A

Ve 3543 Balances with other banks

s ER Deposits with monetary authority

iy {EES Placements with other banks

%P Loans and advances to customers

AR R Available-for-sale investments

BT A BE & Available-for-sale investments pledged
g as collateral

ik e Derivative financial assets

JEWGK R M % Receivables and other assets

WEZEBMIRE  Held-to-maturity investments

Mt Total

R Guarantees

WA%FMLfER  Liabilities under letters of credit on
AT AR A behalf of customers
At

R A Undrawn loan commitments

K Total

M4 FEBEMT  Total credit risk exposure

R —HEFZH=F—H 31 December 2015

(i) Maximum exposure to credit risk

The table below shows the maximum
exposure to credit risk for the components
at the end of the reporting period, including
derivatives. The maximum exposure is
based on the carrying amounts as reported
in the balance sheet, before the effect of
mitigation through the use of master netting

and collateral agreements.

Gross maximum exposure

%M #45
The Group The Bank
2015 2014 2015 2014
WM WMRTT WMRTE WM TE
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000

13,028,194 A 12,428,525 1,727,663

2,379,778 2,374,234 2,379,778 2,374,234
INIRT 29,579,704  IRINIGETORS 29,579,704
123,964,464 IRVERIXTUNM 124,564,549 [EROERIAIN)
15,745,731 13,397,554  [ERERIERA)] 13,397,554
2,001,296 930,819 2,001,296 930,819
265,047 132,224 265,047 132,224
856,269 1,359,296 955,786 1,452,542

10,897,554 7,592,463 10,843,517 7,586,050

189,145,775 174,900,924

EINOR O 174,987,730

4,811,207 1,501,408 4,811,207 1,501,408

544,586
45,093,353

127,996
26,837,240

544,586
45,093,353

127,996
26,837,240

50,449,146 28,466,644

50,449,146

28,466,044

239,594,921 203,367,568 239,640,817 203,454,374
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(ii)

1 B i

VAR BB B % PR S
ARARBIEE T

ZE-REFZHZ+—H 31 December 2015

(ii)  Credit quality

Distribution of gross loans and advances to

customers by credit quality are summarised

as follows:
HH
The Group
2015 2014
AL WM T WMo
Note MOP’000 MOP’000
A A e R IBAE Neither past due nor impaired (1) 117,016,386
BIH Y AE Individually impaired () 58,017
[N R E ST A Past due but not impaired ), (3) 436,010
HEEE Total 117,510,413
#47
The Bank
2015 2014
At WM W T e WM T
Note MOP’000 MOP’000
A 2 HH e R IFAE Neither past due nor impaired (/) 117,016,386
BH Y AE Individually impaired 2) 58,017
[B8E: SR E ST Past due but not impaired ), (3) 436,010
st Total 117,510,413
AR ¢ Notes:
(1) ARITPE S SRR E TR - (1)  The Group and the Bank has unrated

Q)  AfTHEA R O R O IR B E
{E 1 BE KA B R HE I o R
SRATAR sk A S ALY o AAT 3 B
WL B AR AT B R A B B
JE B EAE > R
BN & SR A Bk (3 1% b B )
B 8 00y L 3% o AR F20154F 12
B AT R A i AR R 48 A A
B% 21.65 5 WL J6 (201448 %
471 fEWMIG) -

(2

exposures for all these loans.

The collaterals that the Group and
the Bank held relating to loans which
are past due or individually impaired
mainly consisted of bank deposits and
properties. The Group and the Bank takes
into account the collateral values when
performing its individual assessment on
impaired loans. Where collateral values
are greater than gross advances, only
the amount of collateral up to the gross
loan and advance (secured balance) was
included. The total secured balance of
collaterals held by the Group and the
Bank as at 31 December 2015 amounted
to MOP2,165 million (2014: MOP471
million).
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(iii)

(3)  WEGEHIR > TR WA 4

ZE-REFZHZ+—H 31 December 2015

3) Distribution of gross loans and advances

B SR BB AR that were past due but not impaired
at the end of the reporting period are
summarised as follows:

S5 BT The Group and the Bank
2015
PR30K  31-60K 6190k KiRIORK At
Less than 31-60 61-90 More than
30 days days days 90 days Total
WMWETE WPIW T BPW T BM% T mM% T2
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
%K Loans and advances to
customers
2014
PR30K 31-60K 6190k KiR9IOK 5k
Less than 31-60 61-90 More than
30 days days days 90 days Total
WML BT oC WM%Te RMW% T ®M%TL
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
%P7k  Loans and advances to
customers 367,698 52,754 15,558 — 436,010
AAE > AT Sl 48 S O 4 Tl R T During the year, no financial assets of the Group
A have been renegotiated.
AP i B 7 £ 42 T (iii) Collaterals and other credit enhancements
TE e S WO BT 75 2 H AT i 4 A The amount and type of collateral required

TR 250 IR 2 ML P 22 5 3 F 2 A R
B Al o BUAG Z HG A A R R
Ty SRATHE K e 3

B B A IR A AR
5 A B i vk B SR B AR A L >
TP A e I L M L 9 A 2 TR e
B MUG Z R i

depends on an assessment of the credit
risk of the counterparty. The main types of
collateral obtained are bank deposits and

properties.

Management monitors the market value of
collateral, requests additional collateral in
accordance with the underlying agreement,
and monitors the market value of collateral
obtained during its review of the adequacy

of the allowance for impairment losses.
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(iv)

AAT 2 BOSR 2 B PP B ©OW el
S o T Ak JE DA WA AR R
WHR o« — ]I FH > A47 A& Al
A E e Iy S AR S RO

T e R > A AT 3 2 2 K e
o

B ST B

A R ARAT R o e
A ) Z SR TBURAN AR AT & 4%
(2014 4F %5 9% ) i A7 A6 f5 B 42 P
JRBE > #F B R 3(a) ©

T H R 5 B T 3B g A A )
Al A4 v R B > A AT I S8 At
TR v R Bt 22 5 3 T B A
17 % B A7 8 22 B 4 T BE R o AR
A7 DA T % A K 2 WO JE HER AT
BB A sk A IRAAS PR

(iv)

It is the Group’s policy to dispose
repossessed properties in an orderly
fashion. The proceeds are used to reduce
or repay the outstanding claim. In general,
the Group does not occupy repossessed

properties for business use.

As the end of the reporting period, the

Group has no repossessed assets.

Concentration of risks

As at end of the reporting period, the
Group has certain concentration of credit
risk as 4% (2014: 9%) of the Group’s and
the Bank’s credit risk exposure are with its

ultimate holding company as shown in note

3(a).

Other than the concentration risk with
its ultimate holding company, the Group
did not have any material concentration
risk from credit exposure with other
counterparties as at the end of the
reporting period. The Group’s measures for
mitigating its credit risk include solicitation
of tangible collaterals or pledged deposits

from the borrower.
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(d)

A A

AITEAE B2 FEH RS T HERA
FTRESF AR RT Z EACEER > AT 4
45 508 55 5 B P A B R A A B R D) S A
FUSE W 55 ) 1 e IR P

AAT A PLIL ARG > AR SR AR R D
T 30775 ) L o e e =2 W S A A AR
TR o T MR B B AL s AT
AR R 1) e SRR 2 B AR B R
MERLBITEARB S o BAHE A B
B R~ IR O AR R S A A N A
WA o FHUEE A RBAEA - 48R
TREE E R EAR TR REREAR T L
Ko

()

The Group

ZE-REFZHZ+—H 31 December 2015

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to ensure that the Group
complies with externally imposed capital
requirements and that the Group maintains
strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios
in order to support its business and to maximise

shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to Shareholders or issue capital
securities. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies and processes from the
previous years. The management monitors the
capital adequacy on a monthly basis, based on the
information on total capital, total risk-weighted

assets and the capital adequacy ratio.

M #47
The Bank

2015 2014 2015 2014

BAT R R

Capital adequacy ratio

13.82% 13.67%
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2~ AnfEREHER

(a)

(b)

A R fefi

EFRA LR A2 &M TR AR
AL 7 45 U AR P i 2 T R AT o i
MR A H > POl E R BUA B 5
i 9 < B 5 o O R i AR A BT
HH

i T 4 b L S R 4 R 355 58 B (4
WGHR BATETH) » LA AR
PR T e SE o

A A 4 b T AR PRI & R T B
1B 9l e o SC O U AE o A7 A G b
B BB 2 SRR B SCRR RE 22 450 8% o

B FAf I B R

TR B R AR B R Y R 1 R R
HHE DL BOE S TR Z AP > 5=
BN EES S PP —SHZA
S8 A 7 5 TR T DA B 4R A A
K2 W2 v B R B

— W ARAGME B AP R R
FASE— 2> WA E H A
i i 35 A T AR A A AR A
BT -

—  BTARAGME R A CFEERA
BB WA AW
ABE2Y > RORTR M EZERIE
ABR2Y - EABE 2 B R
BANGERZ2H -

—  BEMAANE  BOE A CFREERA
HEMIETBIEZY -

ZE-REFZHZ+—H 31 December 2015

2.  Fair value and fair hierarchy

(@)

(b)

Fair value

The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets is based on market prices
quoted at the end of the reporting period. For
financial assets, the current bid price is quoted;
for financial liabilities, the current ask price is
quoted.

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example, over-
the-counter derivatives) is determined by using
valuation techniques.

Derivative financial assets and liabilities are
recorded at fair values obtained from discounted
cash flow model valuation techniques. The
amounts of derivative financial assets and
liabilities are disclosed in note 22.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

—  Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities at the measurement
date.

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

—  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.
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2P AT The Group and the Bank
2015
BV BN BN Bt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
WMWTE  WMWTE  WMWTE WP%TR
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
SRR Financial assets

kR Available-for-sale investments:

— EBEHR — Debt securities 8,053,884 17,736,851
it & Derivative financial assets 265,047 265,047
8,318,931 18,001,898
Al Financial liabilities
A 4 it £ 4 Derivative financial liabilities (37,066) (37,066)
E-J L ¥ o The Group and the Bank
2014
B B W= b
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
WMWTe  WMWTC WM%TE BB
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
L R Financial assets

AL AR HE  Available-for-sale investments:

— BB E S — Debt securities 3,965,722 10,352,475 — 14,318,197
kA e B Derivative financial assets — 132,224 — 132,224
3,965,722 10,484,699 — 14,450,421

LA lE Financial liabilities

PiA: AT Derivative financial liabilities — (135,107) = (135,107)
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S — J Bl g A Transfers between level 1 and 2
DL S AE A AR B 55 — g B 5E — ) 4 The following table shows transfers between
B EEL R TR level 1 and level 2 of the fair value hierarchy for

financial assets and liabilities which are recorded

at fair value:

2 [ B8R 17 The Group and the Bank
TS ks 5 — 5 — e 2 58—
Transfers from level 2 to level 1 Transfers from level 1 to level 2
2015 2014 2015 2014
TR0 WET L YT L WL
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000

43k ol i B Available-for-sale investments

BB EER Debt securities 576,443 2,785,194
AAE > NG B B O M E A A During the year, there were transfers of financial assets
TEAE - PESE g AR RS — g A & of MOP750,440,000 from level 2 to level 1 (2014:
& & 750,440,000 [ JC (2014 4F MOP576,443,000) and the fair value was determined
#5 576,443,000 [ o5 ) o 55 A > using active market quotes. In addition, there were
IE I BRI M A A R AE transfers of financial assets of MOP745,674,000 from
TR —EHEERE RN ST level 1 to level 2 (2014: MOP2,785,194,000) and the
B 5 745,674,00088 P JG(20144F % fair value was determined using observable inputs other
2,785,194,000 YT o than active market quotes.

AR EHAREERBY  BRAKE There were no transfers into or out of level 3 fair value

P50 = Jig A A\ Sl (2014 4R 86) © measurements (2014: Nil) during the year.
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(©)  AMEAA REAEHE S TR (¢) Financial instruments not measured at fair
value
@) BETH 4T JHAb > A E KR (i)  The carrying amounts of the Group’s and
AT AR B 4 B A A R 1 2 4 the Bank’s financial instruments carried at
il TR R A - B 20154 12 cost or amortised cost are not materially
H31HK2014%- W H Z A FHEMHE different from their fair values as at 31
o fa S 4 g T L g MR T 4 B December 2014 and 2015 except for the
BN REEMBENT ¢ following financial instruments, for which

their carrying amounts and fair value are

disclosed below:

£ 5] The Group
2015
AW B W A
I T 5 786 AR /(HER)
Carrying Unrecognised
amounts Fair value gain/(loss)
WMW T  WPA%TE  MPWTR
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
Fif BRI R E Held-to-maturity investments
BT AR Debt issued and borrowed funds
RI7 The Bank
2015
AHEBWB AR
I i 45 78 o sl /(HER)
Carrying Unrecognised
amounts Fair value gain/(loss)
WM TE  WPA%TE MM TR
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
Ff 2RI B E Held-to-maturity investments

BEAT I A K Debt issued and borrowed funds
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(ii)

ZE-REFZHZ+—H 31 December 2015

£ 5] The Group
2014
AR WA
M i 4 78 A R /(%K)
Carrying Unrecognised
amounts Fair value gain/(loss)
RMWTe W% TC BMA%TR
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
HHE R G Held-to-maturity investments 7,592,463 7,599,294 6,831
BT R Ao Debt issued and borrowed funds (4,067,248) (4,373,219) (305,971)
RIT7 The Bank
2014
AW B W A
W i 5 78 AR /(%K)
Carrying Unrecognised
amounts Fair value gain/(loss)
RMWTc W% TE  BPA%TR
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
A ZEW R E Held-to-maturity investments 7,586,050 7,593,056 7,006
BEATRE M P A Debt issued and borrowed funds (4,067,248)  (4,373,219) (305,971)
VATEL & A 423 1.1 kE (ii)  Balances and placements with banks and
V3 ik monetary authority

B T W A7 ik 2 O F fEL BB i
AR5 - & BAFRI A RERE
7 55 R R R AR A P B
VLA B 2 2 A Z Rk
MR T BLAR R B o R
i AT % S5 A K 3 0 — AR R ET
WAl St 2 2 Fo i A AR R T
fi o

The fair values of floating rate placements
and overnight deposits are their carrying
amounts. While the fair value of fixed
interest placements are based on the
discounted cash flows using the prevailing
money-market interest rates and their
remaining period up to the date of maturity,
the estimated fair values are approximately
equal to their carrying values since all such

placements are due in less than one year.
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(i)  FPEER - Bk B B B 0%

(iv)

)

%P RK - BGR R E S L DL
Wi Vo0 f $5 A AR SR o BR A IR A2 &
PR R BR DA PR H B
o TR RK o AT B8 M HE T 5
A RAR > REA BRSO E S
BBz ARME > Wik HEAR
Bk AR A AR AR -

AR 1 % Hy 5 1 2 TR

IR AR A B 2 1 TR DB 11 B
TR A AR o

# PR I E Ak

WEE BN A 23 BE P R %
TRk Z A Su i S5 R LR E M » B
AR R P B SR B A
K 2 Fo {0 E 32 00 6% 20 1 H R
Z B A AR Ah BB 4 i At
oo B R Z BN H — i)
B A AOR B AR — 4 > A
SO E SLAL AR THAEAR A o

(iii) Loan and advances and trade bills

(iv)

)

Loans and advances and trade finance
are net of allowances for impairment. All
items, except for a small portion of loans
and advances to customers, bear interest at
a floating rate. The Group has assessed the
fair value of loan and advances and trade
bills, after taking into account the relevant
market interest rates, and has noted that the
total fair value is not materially different

from the total carrying value.

Unquoted available-for-sale equity

investments

The unquoted available-for-sale equity
investments have been stated at cost less

any impairment loss.

Deposits from banks and customers

The estimated fair values of deposits from
customers and other banks with no stated
maturity and bearing floating rates are their
carrying values. The fair value of fixed
interest-bearing deposits from customers
and other banks without quoted market
price is based on discounted cash flows
using the interest rates for new debts with
similar remaining maturity and, since their
maturity is normally less than one year
from the end of the reporting period, their
fair values are approximately equal to their

carrying values.
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vi) BEFERiE

RE A AR A A T B R R R
B2 R AR B R B A A R
Z P B BB G i a5 o Bt
AT ARSI A K R W 23T H A B e
BIR AT — 48 > R4 Ao A B R
TR A TR A o

(vii) MEBIE K R I b 2 s B AL A6

JCfth 5 2 T SU At £ 45 1 FE AN 2 0
L 788 % S & ) U Sl B R T AR
%: o

i)

(vii)

Certificates of deposit issued

The estimated fair values of fixed interest
bearing certificate of deposits issued is
based on discounted cash flows using the
interest rates for new debts with similar
credit risk and remaining maturity and,
since the maturity for the certificate of
deposits outstanding is less than one year
from the end of the reporting period, their
fair values is not materially different to

their carrying values.

Receivables and other assets and other

liabilities

The estimated fair value of the other assets
and other liabilities, which are normally
non-interest bearing, are approximately

equal to their carrying value.
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W 7 SR AT (IR ) Bt A R W] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

1. B R 1.

RBP4 w88 R LAWY 75 () A SR
750 3) Ir R IR Bt EFIEE -

(a) A OFEE A £ B0 S AR B YE A R
LA A W

5 ) mi

PR LR
REF—HFEFZH=Z1F—H

Financial Statements

In terms of information required under Article 75(1) and
75(3) of the Financial System Act of Macau (FSAM).

(a) Consolidated Balance Sheet and Balance Sheet

with Memorandum Accounts

Group Level

Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2015

W
MOP
M4
B MH P RWAL B
Provision
depreciation &
Y Assets Total assets impairment Net assets
B4 Cash 2,335,000,770.95 2,335,000,770.95
AMCM fF#k Deposit with A.M.C.M. 2,379,778,040.82 2,379,778,040.82
JE MR IE Account receivable 208,987,269.17 208,987,269.17
1AMz M FBERE  Demand deposits with local
W banks 79,037,926.85 79,037,926.85
ez oMl R Demand deposits with
Ry g correspondents 12,349,513,774.84 12,349,513,774.84
& Gold & Silver
AR B & Other current assets 311,483,953.71 311,483,953.71
o Loans & advances 123,485,495,584.53 38,745,814.37  123,446,749,770.16
FEALE FIBRE AR I Interbank placement
with local banks 1,378,812,653.01 1,378,812,653.01
TEAMAE R Z BRI B Deposits at call & time with
EMGHK correspondents 19,228,271,828.01 19,228,271,828.01
TRIE > (55 B e Securities 28,729,271,176.00 83,428,309.93 28,645,842,866.07
ARG LERE Utilization of resources in trust
BHEA Debtors
Hib g Other investments
MHERE Financial investments
VN Buildings 281,971,890.92 83,404,515.74 198,567,375.18
Bl Equipment 190,167,472.72 125,696,883.95 64,470,588.77
FiAs-giil Preliminary expenses
bH I Setting up expenses
RIERA B Immovable in progress
Joflo il 2 i e Other fixed assets 179,023,669.78 96,964,321.69 82,039,348.09
TR Bl e Sundry accounts 1,439,475,560.25 1,439,475,560.25
i TOTAL 192,576,291,571.56 428239,845.68  192,148,051,725.88
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W 7 SR AT (IR e A R W] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

B R R R iR

R —dEZ A=A

Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2015

W W
MOP
NG B
% Liabilities Sub-total Total
R Demand deposit 29,699,917,015.35
BRI Deposits at call 0.00
TE W17 Time deposit 101,701,064,498.44  131,400,981,513.79
R K Deposit of public sector 19,971,893,411.41
AHfE IR G 4 Deposits from local banks 1,461,383,935.90
FoA A b b 5 4 Loans from local credit institutions
AN £ 3K Loans in foreign currency 14,583,802,772.23
e 34 Debts against debentures 4,068,335,300.69
TREE S EREN Creditors of resources in trust
FEAT 7 5 R Bk Cheques & payment orders 113,145,045.18
EEA Creditors 15,933,696.12
RIEAE Accounts payable 40,214,494,161.53
AT B e Sundry accounts 3,407,763,416.87
A& Ye I B 4 Provision 198,732,807.11
JBe AR Capital 588,920,000.00
Y E R Legal reserve 4717,707,300.00
H et Statutory reserve
H Ak () Other reserves (Note) 6,881,783,368.20 7,948,410,668.20
JRAES LR Retained profit 6,951,213,546.12
NGRS S Profit & loss for the year 2,026,455,612.26 8,977,669,158.38
B TOTAL 192,148,051,725.88

Mt - Fo Al A O 60 15 AR 08 4 B R vk A
JBE T 7 48 A A A > B BRI A i A
AR B IR ¥ 977,178,400 [H] ©

Note: Other Reserve has included the additional
impairment allowance according to the Financial
System Act. The amount is MOP977,178,400 and
which is net of deferred tax.
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(# Continued)

W 7 SR AT (IR ) Bt A R W] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

WP W
MOP
&M

Amount

1,447,686,207.95

1,092,232,373.72

250,392,287,543.30

4,811,206,712.90

461,067,386.31

83,518,944.73

17,129,237,594.76

ot e Consolidated Memorandum Accounts

i 5 Memorandum Accounts

RE& R R Values received for safe keeping

R Bills for collection

HEAPHR Collateral

R B G RAT K Guarantee on account of customers

& IR Letters of credit outstanding

7R RS Bills & acceptance available for discount

ARAS PR 4 Guarantee deposit on behalf of customers
BEEA Forward exchange contracts — Purchases
W& Forward exchange contracts — Sales

HAb AR

Other memorandum items

16,909,244,593.47

88,144,275,186.84
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(# Continued)

W 7 SR AT (IR e A R W] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

AT fed

¥R AR
R_-F—H&FE+ZHA=F+—H

Bank Level

Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2015

(3 Assets
B4 Cash
AMCM 73k Deposit with A.M.C.M.
JEWOIRIE Account receivable
Az M R Demand deposits with local
W% banks
M A fE I Demand deposits with
R correspondents
& i Gold & Silver
oM B 8 Other current assets
Wk Loans & advances
TR IS F R R IR Interbank placement
with local banks
AEAMAE MG Z BRI X Deposits at call & time with
TR correspondents
WS > B B R Securities
RHEETE Utilization of resources in trust
BHEA Debtors
HAb g Other investments
MHRE Financial investments
N3 Buildings
4 | Equipment
BEEE Preliminary expenses
A2 Setting up expenses
ARITEHA B Immovable in progress
HAbE 2 B Other fixed assets
AR B Sundry accounts
i TOTAL

W

MOP
L LIEA

pegid: b | PrE A iy |
Provision
depreciation &

Total assets impairment Net assets

2,335,000,770.95
2,379,778,040.82
208,987,269.17
79,037,926.85

12,349,487,158.88

415,193,580.59
124,084,666,256.46

779,170,000.00

19,228,271,828.01
28,755,213,893.44

214,028,905.00
188,493,470.07

178,343,585.4
1,436,200,642.38

192,631,873,328.02

38,745,814.37

83,428,309.93

70,020,143.78
124,050,394.82

96,456,390.09

412,701,052.99

2,335,000,770.95
2,379,778,040.82
208,987,269.17
79,037,926.85

12,349,487,158.88

415,193,580.59
124,045,920,442.09

779,170,000.00

19,228,271,828.01
28,671,785,583.51

144,008,761.22
64,443,075.25

81,887,195.31
1,436,200,642.38

192,219,172,275.03
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(# Continued)

W 7 SR AT (IR ) Bt A R W] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

AR

RZF—dEFZ A=A

Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2015

W
MOP
Y Hm
g Liabilities Sub-total Total
IR Demand deposit 29,732,504,740.03
biibes Deposits at call
piesiiYes e Time deposit 101,825,130,422.1 131,557,635,162.13
A LR Deposit of public sector 19,971,893,411.41
AHfE R G 4 Deposits from local banks 1,461,383,935.90
AR b R 4 Loans from local credit institutions
ANk Loans in foreign currency 14,583,802,772.41
i Debts against debentures 4,068,335,300.69
RETE SN Creditors of resources in trust
A 37 5 R B4 Cheques & payment orders 113,145,045.18
FEHEN Creditors 15,933,696.12
ZHAH Accounts payable 40,214,494,161.71
A0 e R e Sundry accounts 3,422,827,702.59
A e A T Provision 198,732,807.11
JBeA Capital 588,920,000.00
W Legal reserve 461,194,000.00
H ik Statutory reserve
Sl () Other reserves (Note) 6,881,783,368.20 7,931,897,368.20
AR AR Retained profit 6,883,969,195.21
AR AL Profit & loss for the year 2,009,615,878.08 8,893,585,073.29
B TOTAL 192,219,172,275.03

Btk oAtk A O A 35 AR 08 4 B R R R
JEE T 75 100 48 4 5 FH 4x > 40 9 2R A B A5
BRI LM 6 977,178,400 [H] o

Note: Other Reserve has included the additional
impairment allowance according to the Financial
System Act. The amount is MOP977,178,400 and
which is net of deferred tax.
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(# Continued)

W 7 SR AT (IR e A R W] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

S Memorandum Accounts
WL W
MOP
Kot}
AR Memorandum Accounts Amount
REREIR Values received for safe keeping 1,447,686,207.95
R Bills for collection 1,092,232,373.72
AR Collateral 250,392,287,543.30
P8 B 38 AR A 3 Guarantee on account of customers 4,811,206,712.90
= FR Letters of credit outstanding 461,067,386.31
7 b, B 5 Bills & acceptance available for discount 83,518,944.73

ARAS PR 4 Guarantee deposit on behalf of customers

MEEA Forward exchange contracts — Purchases 17,129,237,594.76
W& Forward exchange contracts — Sales 16,909,244,593.47

A A A R Other memorandum items 88,144,275,186.85
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(# Continued)

v TR SRAT (IR Bed A BRA 7 Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

(b)

AP R MR (b) Consolidated income statement and income
statement
E-J2 Group Level
R HAFE BRI Consolidated Income Statement for the year
ended 31 December 2015
BRIk Consolidated Income Statement
g
MOP
575 &m 8 W
DEBIT AMOUNT CREDIT AMOUNT
£ A5 AR B RS W

Costs of credit operations
N5 3|
Personnel costs
T B PR
Board of directors &
supervisors fee
T B 32
Staff costs
TEi <E 1k L 4
Staff benefits
Fofin N2 H
Other personnel costs
= I 2 B
Third party supply
HEF R 5
Third party services
HofgR47 & M
Other banking costs
B
Taxation
JRIEH W
Costs of non-banking
operations
P Hit sk
Depreciation allowances
i P 4 2 K
Provision allowances
BN
Operating profit

2,717,233,411.80

330,458

359,771,097.15

38,879,113.21

8,475,958.70

21,534,577.14

184,813,163.78

279,366,798.12

3,257,006.17

2,349,076.56

50,193,890.03

(7,958,908.26)

2,410,775,362.82

Income from credit operations

AT IR Wt

Income from banking services

FoAt S4B WAt

Income form other banking
services

g I T B W

Income from securities &
equity investments

Foftn 47 Wed

Other banking income

FRIEH B W s

Income from non-banking
operations

BHEBR

Operating loss

5,395,604,390.32

550,489,973.70

34,234,953.34

71,508,181.14

84,700.00

17,098,806.72

i
TOTAL

6,069,021,005.22

R
TOTAL

6,069,021,005.22
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(# Continued)

v TR SRAT (R Bed A BRA 7 Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

AP %R Consolidated Income Statement
WL W
MOP
DEBIT AMOUNT CREDIT AMOUNT
(i Ex Y] g
BRER BN
Operating loss Operating profit 2,410,775,362.82
R Z K JEAEZ )
Loss related to previous years Profit related to previous years 1,150,341.21
LEFIIEEPS B
Exceptional losses 104,308.37 Exceptional profits —
BRI Z BLIE K 5 a2
Profit tax provision 295,104,183.4 Provisions used up
AR 4% <5 Tl S 2R 0 A ) 3 4 BREGROUEH)
B 5 42 Operating Result (loss)
Additional impairment
allowance according to
Financial System Act. 90,261,600.00
BELHR(H)
Operating Result (profit) 2,026,455,612.26
ok ok
TOTAL 2,411,925,704.03 TOTAL 2,411,925,704.03
HHFR - WHEFHRATESF AIFEFR - [THA AT THEFH
Chairman, Managing Director & Vice Chairman, Chief Executive Officer &
Executive Director Executive Director
R w1 i

Zhu Xiaoping WU LONG
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(# Cont

Fj ] 7 AT (IR

tinu ’Lx{

(1548 AMCMO026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM &

A7 fd

ZE BB GRS

)

X

f) Financial

Bank Level

Information Disclosure (in Accordance with AMCMO026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM)

M) BB R F Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

Income Statement for the year ended

31 December 2015

HENH Income Statement
WM W
MOP
%575 Eog ] 1597 £l
DEBIT AMOUNT CREDIT AMOUNT
FE B AR JogeE Vo2&

Costs of credit operations
N#E#H
Personnel costs

R R B S

Board of directors &

supervisors fee

Tk B PR 52

Staff costs

I 2 Tk B A

Staff benefits

Fofts N34

Other personnel costs
SR 2 L
Third party supply
BEHRME 5
Third party services
Foftu g4
Other banking costs
BLIH
Taxation
FEIEH B H
Costs of non-banking

operations
P ik
Depreciation allowances
i 4 Z K
Provision allowances
e il
Operating profit

2,719,373,968.41

236,042

354,155,008.37

38,449,356.60

8,475,958.70

21,383,387.74

182,370,057.96

278,707,590.23

3,128,565.17

2,349,076.56

49,426,409.55

(7,958,908.26)

2,391,693,247.77

Income from credit operations

AT M W as

Income from banking services

SOl SRAT SR WL 2k

Income form other banking
services

R I B W

Income from securities &
equity investments

FCAt SRAT W sk

Other banking income

JEIEH LT W2k

Income from non-banking
operations

EE ISP

Operating loss

5,394,117,713.6

525,430,215.06

36,269,344.28

71,508,181.14

84,700.00

14,379,606.72

Hm
TOTAL

6,041,789,760.80

s
TOTAL

6,041,789,760.80
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(# Continued)

v TR SRAT (R Bed A BRA 7 Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

5 SR T 2 BLIE K

Profit tax provision

R4 < Tl . 2R 0 ) R 3 4 Py
LiES

Additional impairment
allowance according to
Financial System Act.

BELHR(H)

Operating Result (profit)

292,861,802.53

90,261,600.00

2,009,615,878.08

&2 A
Provisions used up
BRESEROEH)
Operating Result (loss)

HEH R Income Statement
WL W
MOP

DEBIT AMOUNT CREDIT AMOUNT
i %5 Ex Y] g
BRER CE NG
Operating loss Operating profit 2,391,693,247.77
FEGEZ K JEAEZ )T
Loss related to previous years Profit related to previous years 1,150,341.21
LEFIIEEPS B
Exceptional losses 104,308.37 Exceptional profits

Hm
TOTAL

2,392,843,588.98

s
TOTAL

2,392,843,588.98

HHR - HWHHFNRATHEF

Chairman, Managing Director &

HEFR - [TRAEHHB I TEF
Vice Chairman, Chief Executive Officer &

Executive Director Executive Director

AR B
Zhu Xiaoping WU LONG
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L A

2015 » TH 3 85 57 48 3 i AR BR B > FAM
B B LA T AT ¥ A A R G e
Ko RAHEEAR ALK > RERFATH
Bt FHE ) ~ WA R O An v R A
JERE ) » ME— B HEME R A - AMSAPH
S T L T R P > B R AL 4 TR
B B > AR DR R A0 B R AE B S R 4
WS > BT ROP
B A 3 32 8RAT o

A 20154 » 42 A A BT A 1,921
MM TG > R AR 146 M I
WO ER25% 5 M fEL,752M | M
JG s W RAEW R O30 > W R R
5.63% o 17 3K Bk B (A 55 A L B 17 k)
Fi 1,514 0 W P9 o0 » b 25 4F B8 n 33 4%
TG » WR R 2.20% 5 4% I B K6k
1,235 G P 56 > Bb 25 45 34 Jn 60 £ 1L Y
g > WRES5.12% o A BBk AR A A4l
Ll 4 2 45 A0 MK Ak e 5 BRI
43 > HRAHE B RE ) KRR o

Information Disclosure (in Accordance with AMCMO026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM)

()

M) BB R F Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

A summary of the management report

In year 2015, due to a complicate external
environment, we insisted in executing the
requirements of the development strategy
established by the head office for the overseas
institutions, further promoting the localization
of management and constantly improving the
market competition ability, reform and innovation
abilities and sustainable development ability,
further evolving the rapid and coordinated
development of assets, liabilities and intermediary
business, deepening the comprehensive risk
management, continuing to maintain and develop
the leading advantage in key areas of business
and creating a local mainstream bank for the
people of Macao.

As of the year ended 2015, the group total net
assets amounted to MOP192,100,000,000.00
(one hundred and ninety-two billion, one
hundred millions Macau Patacas), representing
an increase of MOP14,600,000,000.00 (fourteen
point six billion Macau Patacas) over last year,
corresponding to a 8.25% of growth rate; the
total liabilities of MOP175,200,000,000.00
(one hundred and seventy-five billion and two
hundred million Macau Patacas), represented
a growth of MOP9,300,000,000.00 (nine point
three billion Macau Patacas) more than last year,
corresponding to a growth rate of 5.63%. The
deposit balance (including public institutions)
amounted MOP151,400,000,000.00 (one
hundred and fifty-one billion and four hundred
million Macau Patacas), which represented an
increase of MOP3,300,000,000.00 (three ponit
three billion Macau Patacas) more than last
year, with a growth rate of 2.20%; The loan
balance amounted to MOP123,500,000,000.00
(one hundred and twenty-three billion and five
hundred millions of Macau Patacas), meaning
a MOP6,000,000,000.00 (six billion Macau
Patacas) increase when compared with last year,
with a growth rate of 5.12%. The balance of
non-performing loans’ ratio was continuously
maintained at a low level; the provision for
extraction is full and the ability to resist risks was
greatly enhanced.
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A% 45 1 2015 47 BE B BB 1% R I R
2117 B JE > i BE - 35 RE 2% 8] R
T ¥ 488 A TR R R 4 2 15.65% 1
1.11% o #E 20154 K » A% H O HF#%
P B 75 % % i MR 1) B S i s o4 1)
B s AR RS B AR A DB
E A ) 4 > SR EAR TR A WL
20.26 fEWM I ©

AR R AR R A RS R B 2
A > WA I B 44 BRSO Y 4 ST
20154% » TSI P 45 58 L AR A SR 1
CERER ) ~ JEBR AT ) aase A T LY
b I B HE SRAT (BT o

T SRR 5t A R O M L AR R R P AR
b AR P B AT B [ BORE B A — A
> A B o 2 R R - EER TR -
A R A A b S R RS O BE > R
R A 8 30 B 25 T R o M SCHR IR M A
) A5 B [ P A8 A5 3% o A Ak iy 5 2R Al
HHIERR -

EHEGEI
R

ZE-AFEZAZTZH - REM

Information Disclosure (in Accordance with AMCMO026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM)

M) BB R F Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

Based on the calculation of Financial
Reporting Standards of Macau, in year 2015,
our company achieved after-tax profits of
MOP2,117,000,000.00 (two billion, one hundred
and seventeen million of Macau Patacas),
with a return rate of Weighted Average Equity
and the average rate of return on total assets
respectively of 15.65% and 1.11%. The audited
financial statements of our company regarding
the financial year ended 2015 were executed in
accordance with Financial Reporting Standards
of Macau; when having in mind the provisions’
increase rules established by the Macau Financial
System Act, the profits after adjustment were of
MOP2,026,000,000.00 (two billion, twenty six

million Macau Patacas).

The good business performance and outstanding
achievements continuously attained by the Group
has deserved high comments from international
well-known financial media; in 2015, the
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
(Macau) Limited was awarded for the seventh
consecutive year “The Best Bank in Macao
Region” Award by the US “Global Finance” and
British “The Banker”.

The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
(Macau) Limited is strongly committed in
putting down roots in Macau. In accordance
with the global planning of the Macau Special
Administration Region, we will reinforce
our services towards the erection of civil
infrastructures and key projects for this Region,
as well as regarding social services to be provided
to Macao residents, aiming at a developed
diversified economy in Macau, supporting and
contributing the economic development and
prosperity of the Macau Special Administrative

Region.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors
Zhu Xiaoping

Macau, 22nd March, 2016
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(d)

M) BB R F Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

The report from the supervisory board

In accordance with the provision of Article
twenty-fifth, paragraph (e) and for the purpose
of the said provision, the Board of Directors
of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
(Macau) Limited has submitted to our firm the
audited financial statements and the report from
Board of Directors regarding the 2015 financial

year, for issuing the related opinion.

After reviewing the documents submitted to our
firm for opinion’s purpose, it is our opinion that
those documents evidence clearly the Bank’s

assets value and its financial and economic status.

The report of the Board of Directors clearly
evidences the Bank’s business activities
performed and carried out by the Bank in the

financial year under appraisal.

In view of the external auditor’s report, we
concur with the opinion expressed in such
report, whereas the documents supporting the
said financial statements evidence the truly and
accurate financial status exhibited in the balance
sheet dated 31st December, 2015, as well as the

financial results of the financial year ended 2015.

In view of the above said, we have decided to
approve the said financial statements and the

Report of the Board of Directors.
Single Supervisor
CSC & Associates, Auditors

(Represented by Mr. Chui Sai Cheong)

Macau, 22nd March, 2016
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(e)

M) BB R F Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

A summary of the external auditors’ report

To all shareholders of Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China (Macau) Limited, a corporation
incorporated in the Macau SAR:

We have audited the consolidated financial
statements of Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China (Macau) Limited (abbreviated as “the
Bank”) and its subsidiaries for the financial year
2015, according to the Auditing Rules (“Normas
de Auditoria”) and the Technical Auditing Rules
(“Normas Técnicas de Auditoria”) of the Macau
Special Administration Region, and have issued
an unqualified audit report in respect to such
consolidated financial statement on 22nd, March,
2016.

The above mentioned audited consolidated
financial statement is made up of a composite
balance sheet and the bank’s balance sheet, a
consolidated income statement and the bank’s
income statement, a consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the bank’s statement of
changes in equity, a consolidated cash flow
statement and the bank’s cash flow statement as
of 31st December, 2015, including as well as a
summary of significant accounting policies and
explanatory notes.

The attached abstract consolidated financial
statement, dully authorized by the management,
is a summary of the above mentioned audited
consolidated financial statements, the related
accounts and accounting books. We believe
that the contents of such abstract consolidated
financial statement are consistent with the
audited consolidated financial statements, the
related accounts and accounting books in every
significant aspect.

For a more comprehensive understanding of
the financial status and the business result
and the range of audit works of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited,
the attached abstract consolidated financial
statement should be read along with the audited
consolidated financial statements and the
independent auditor’s report.

Ms. Lei Iun Mei, Registered Auditor
KPMG

22nd March, 2016
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(% Continued)

v TR SRAT (IR Bed A BRA 7 Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

(0 #Be5% DA B Al & BBk B Be

TERCRM) B B A FRA 100%
TSR (W) 28 Pk 4 B Ay 100%

AR A
LA AT PR A ] 100%
(Rt )
Authosis, Inc. 11%
(73 Bl 2 7 5 it Mk o)
i S R B A PR 2 ] 6%

(8) WEMMBRS T

H B T SR AT A A B A R
Pk W1 S A
(h) AEFERE AR

REEPRE » EFE - WHEESH
HATES
Rk » AIFEFR - T8GR
WATES
(20164F1 H 6 H Z4T)
ELZRE > AIEFR - TBRARGR
WATHE S
(20164 1 H 6 H #EfE)
AR > BIEFERE
PiTESE
BBt > Hd
(20154F-3 H 30 H &%)
E—0kt o EH
(20154F3 H 30 H &%)
BlEmE » &5
(2015458 H 17 H Z&AT)
JEG B > #H
Rmp ek » EH
(20154:8 H 17 H#k4E)
RIXAEHE » BR
(20154F3 H 30 H #EAE)
BT L » &
(201543 H 30 H#iEAE)

®

(®

(h)

A list of the institutions in which they have
holdings in excess of 5% in the share capital,
or over 5% of their own funds, with an

indication of the respective percentage;

ICBC (Macau) Capital Limited 100%

ICBC (Macau) Pension Fund 100%
Management Company Limited

Seng Heng Development Company 100%
Limited (Registered and established
in Hong Kong)

Authosis, Inc. (Registered and 11%
established in Cayman Island)

Luen Fung Hang Insurance Company 6%
Limited

List of the shareholders with qualifying
holdings

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Limited
Mr. Huen Wing Ming, Patrick

Name of the members of the company boards

Mr. Zhu Xiaoping, Chairman, Managing &
Executive Director

Mr. Wu Long, Vice President,

Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director
(appointed on 6 January 2016)

Mr. Jiang Yisheng, Vice President, Chief
Executive Officer & Executive Director
(resigned on 6 January 2016)

Mr. Huen Wing Ming, Patrick, Vice President &
Executive Director

Ms. Chen Xiao Yan, Director
(appointed on 30 March 2015)

Ms. Wang Yi Xin, Director
(appointed on 30 March 2015)

Mr. Ma Xiang Jun, Director
(appointed on 17 August 2015)

Mr. Tong Chi Kin, Director

Mr. Wu Hongbo, Director
(resigned on 17 August 2015)

Mr. Zhu Wenxin, Director
(resigned on 30 March 2015)

Mr. Cui Jigian, Director
(resigned on 30 March 2015)
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Information Disclosure (in Accordance with AMCMO026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM)

M) BB R F Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

2. Corporate governance

The board of directors established two key committees

which are Audit Commitee and Risk Management

Commitee.

Audit Commitee

Functions

A.

Roles

To supervise internal control, audit the
implemention of managerial rules and regulations.
To inspect and evaluate the compliance and
effectiveness of the Group’s key operational

activities;

To audit the Group’s financial information and
its disclosure, the Group’s key financial policies
and its execution. To supervise financial and
operational status and monitor the authenticity
of financial statements and the effectiveness of
financial statement procedure adopted by the
management;
To review, supervise and assess the Group’s
internal auditing, monitor the Group’s internal
auditing institution and its implementation, assess
working procedure and outcome of internal

auditing department;

To urge the Group guarantee enough resources
for the internal auditing department and cooperate
the communication between internal auding

department and external auditors;

Other issues regulated by Law, administrative

regulations and rules or authorised by the board.

The Group’s effectiveness of supervison and evaluation

on financial income and expense, risk status, internal

control and corporate governance, together with the

Group’s internal and external auditing, could be

strengthened.
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Information Disclosure (in Accordance with AMCMO026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM)

M) BB R F Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

Composition

Composed by no less than 3 committee members, one
of them is director. The board has the right to change
the composition and members of the committee and to

update or revoke the committee members.

Risk Management Committee

Functions

A. To audit and modify the Group’s risk strategy,
risk management policies, risk preference,
comprehensive risk management framework
and internal control procedure according to
the Group’s overall strategy. To supervise and
evaluate their implementation and outcome and

give suggestions to the board;

B.  To monitor and assess the settings, organizations,
working procedures and performances of risk
management departments and forward improving

opinions;

C.  To assess the Group’s risk management policies,
risk preferences and comprehensive risk

management;

D.  Other issues regulated by Law, administrative

regulations and rules or authorised by the board.

Roles

To strengthen the supervision and management of
the Group’s operation, improve the decision-making
efficiency of the Group and perfect the corporation

governance structure.

Composition

Composed by no less than 3 committee members, one
of them is director. The board has the right to change
the composition and members of the committee and to

update or revoke the committee members.
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W 7 SR AT (IR e A R W] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

2014

WPTHT e

MOP’000

2,004,321

44,720

(1,784)

1,024

81,738

4,327

20,998

5,026

(7,514)

23

50,925

3. BAeUiEFR CHUE BB et il 75%) 3. Cash flow statement (In accordance with
IAS 7)
Bl4mintk Cash flows Statement
BT _F—HiET - H="1—HIFEF Year ended 31 December 2015
HATJ5 r Bank Level
2015
WML
MOP’000
SR W W BL AR Cash flows from operating activities
75 50 AT Profit before tax 2,392,740
i Adjustments for:
g Depreciation 49,426
YL H R A Dividend income from available-for-sale
B A investments (2,024)
B > R KM Losses on disposal of property, plant
HE and equipment 824
At R E R ITE S Amortisation of discount and premium of
available-for-sale investments 26,281
FA R BRSBTS Amortisation of discount and premium of
held-to-maturity investments 1,961
BT P 4 Amortisation of discount of certificate of
deposits issued 11,464
BT S P e Amortisation of discount of debt issued 1,087
AL R R B B 2E Net gains from disposal of available-for-sale
investments (69,484)
DA e ERH IR A Net losses from financial assets at fair value
SR REARMEE  through profit or loss
HHFER
% 7SRRI B I A Impairment allowance on loans and advances
etk to customers 8,139
FE BB E IR Write-back of impairment allowance on
IEE3 held-to-maturity investments (16,338)

2,404,076

(10,219)

2,193,585
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W 7 SR AT (IR ) Bt A R W] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

2015

WP
MOP’000

EEEEN Y)W

5101 PR 2 = 1 390

Decrease/(increase) in operating assets:

Decrease/(increase) in placements with other

I 57 (K m) /i banks with original maturity longer than
three months 13,541,900

045 0 P B A = H 1 Increase in treasury bills with original

B A SR SRR G I maturity longer than three months (2,048,792)
5 BRI B A Increase in loans and advances to customers (6,765,748)
JE Wk vE B b Decrease/(increase) in receivables and other

(B4hn) /W assets 496,756
LA AR RS R A Decrease in financial assets at fair value

55 1 45 il B WD through profit or loss
I a3 (Increase)/decrease in derivative financial

(3 m) assets (132,823)
BIEAMEMRELY (W)  (Decrease)/increase in operating liabilities:
) A7 O Increase in deposits from other banks 5,853,670
% Pz Increase in deposits from customers 10,495,524
Foftn £ AR, () Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities 261,070
i AW A A Decrease in derivative financial liabilities (98,041)
RBTEE) (1) /AN Cash (used in)/generated from operations

B&i 24,007,592
B BB Profits tax paid (271,956)
KBWH(EH), M Net cash flows (used in)/ generated from

FH4ER operating activities 23,735,636

2014
BT
MOP 000

(10,355,055)

(29,534,091)

(266,578)

45,122

102,802

3,467,913
26,262,675

(539,598)

(251,987)

(8,875,212)

(225,797)

(9,101,009)
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W 7 SR AT (IR e A R W] Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

WHEHEAEMBIAW  Cash flows from investing activities
A R A I Dividend income from available-for-sale
WA investments
i AT o AR Purchases of available-for-sale investments
R Ak H B B B W R A A5 Proceeds from redemption of available-for-
sale investments
ik B BB HRE Purchases of held-to-maturity investments
A ZR BB EWE S Proceeds from redemption of held-to-
maturity investments
Wk - R AR AR Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
i A and equipment
Jiik 3 ~ ML A Purchases of property, plant and equipment
BTG H M FB AW Net cash flows used in investing activities
£y e AL R e Cash flows from financing activities
BEATAE s W T 15 Proceeds from issuance of certificates of
deposit
B[ 17 K Redemption of certificates of deposit issued
Proceeds from issuance of shares
BAT R A 75 Proceeds from debt issued
i o] 4 25 Redemption of debt issued
SR (FEE)M  Net cash flows (used in)/generated from
AR financing activities
B& RBIEEMEMMF  Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
m/ () equivalents
W& RHESMY)  Cash and cash equivalents at | January

2015

WP
MOP’000

2,024
(24,992,394)

21,578,109
(33,999,663)

33,755,315

636
(36,042)

(3,692,015)

2,859,343
(10,117,493)
3,219,249

(4,038,901)

16,004,720

21,588,708

2014
BT
MOP 000

1,784
(10,710,844)

14,718,353
(6,895,636)

2,905,529

68
(36,612)

(17,358)

13,310,610
(8,462,013)

2,534,732
(1,400,800)

5,982,529

(3,135,838)

24,724,546
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(# Continued)

g TR AT () e A PR AR Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

4.

2015 2014
BT 0 WP
MOP’000 MOP’000
WARE 4 RE45EY Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 37,593,428 21,588,708
B4 RBLE SRR Analysis of balances of cash and cash
Vi equivalents
FETEB 4 R BRAT K Cash on hand and balances with banks 14,763,526 3,683,938
VIR HARR 3 M H ANAZHL  Deposits with monetary authority with
e R original maturity within three months 2,379,778 2,374,234
FIA IR 3 18 5 WL Placements with other banks with original
EE'S maturity within three months 18,550,178 14,580,540
BRI 3 H N4 R4 Treasury bills with original maturity within
PR three months 1,899,946 949,996
37,593,428 21,588,708
AL 16 R 2 4 b A8 B i A L B 4. Off-balance sheet exposures other than
derivatives transactions
WP T o0
MOP’000
RE R R Values received for safe keeping 1,447,686.21
R HE Bills for collection 1,092,232.37
HEA IR Collateral 250,392,287.54
PR3 T I A5k Guarantee on account of customers 4,811,206.71
15 7% Letters of credit outstanding 461,067.39
7RO RE S Bills & acceptance available for discount 83,518.94
oAt A A MR Other memorandum items 30,051,825.77
R KR Undrawn credit facilities 45,093,353.37

frit

Total

333,433,178.31
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v TR SRAT (R Bed A BRA 7 Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

5. FiEMARY 5. Derivatives transactions
WM T T
MOP’000
TR A £
i 2 iU R gt 4 A
Credit Risk
weighted
Nominal Value Fair Value amount
MERIH A4 Exchange rate contracts 17,015,247.75 227,979.70 77,394.25
PRI G4 Interest rate contracts 12,999,096.05 833.43 5,131.86
R B A4 Equities contracts 0 0 0
A4 Commodities contracts 0 0 0
HoAtb Others 0 0 0
6. FHIBUR Accounting policies
(a)  BHg— 28 EOROA R IR Y il e BE g (a) Basis of recognition of each principal source of
income;
2 AR5 62-65 H Please refer to page 62-65
(b) MW LR (b) Basis for the establishment of provisions;
2 AR 5 59 H Please refer to page 59
(c) BERMABLREE (¢c) Investments and other financial assets
ZIMAE A 44-48 F Please refer to page 44-48
d) IR epER (d) Derecognition of financial assets
S A HE S 49 5 Please refer to page 49
(e)  ZAmh¥ A WAL (e) Impairment of financial assets
ZIMAHR 5 50-54 5 Please refer to page 50-54
® L@ (f) Financial liabilities

2 A 558 54-56 B

Please refer to page 54-56
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v TR SRAT (IR Bed A BRA 7 Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

(€9

(h)

()

@

(k)

U}

(m)

#eal et e

ZMAHREES6H

1ol Ji T

ZINAHR G 5TH

EBTHZARM

SR EE STH

i & T ]

ZMAHEE S8 H

AW ¢ A B £ A

S ARG 65-66 B

£ D B ) S 0

ZIMAREFITH

LS s 24

S ARG 3T H

(@

(h)

@

)

U}

(m)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

Please refer to page 56

Repurchase agreements

Please refer to page 57

Fair value of financial instruments

Please refer to page 57

Derivative financial instruments

Please refer to page 58

Translation of foreign currency assets and

liabilities;

Please refer to page 65-66

Basis of consolidation

Please refer to page 37

Changes in accounting policies.

Please refer to page 37
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ASAT 1 A 5 22 B MR AR R AR D
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Financial Information Disclosure (in Accordance with AMCMO026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM)

M) BB R F Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

7. Related party transactions
7.1 The policy for lending to related parties.

Connected transactions of the bank should be in
line with the principles of honesty, credibility
and equity. We manage connected transactions in
accordance with the relevant regulations of local
supervisor and Parent Company and conduct
information disclosure and external reporting
as required. Connected transactions should be
approved by top management level or higher level
credit authority as credit committee regarding the

internal facility granting procedure.

B OB 5 AE B R ~ IR ST LR S 7.2 The transactions regarding the transfer of
VBB B A

resources, services or obligations with related

parties and the outstanding balances.

WM T
PG 75 2 5 Related party transactions MOP’000
V=3 dEE S el Interbank assets (deposits) 6,864,367.02
wE Sundry investments 79,980.00
BRI B HGK Credit granted 5,683,079.80
HE&RE Other assets 103,899.77
WX Operating cost 290,119.10
&P Ak Deposits of non-bank customers 1,911,050.60
[ 21 3K Interbank liabilities (deposits) 15,911,568.06
HEAas Other liabilities 41,928.97
BERA Operating income 437,632.26
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8.1
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Financial

Information Disclosure (in Accordance with AMCMO026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM)

1) A BRAW Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

8. Capital
SEPER A 8.1 Qualitative disclosure:
(a) EBEATH; (a) Capital instruments;
1. Rk 1. Share Capital:
WM T T
hE Authorised MOP’000
—HE B > 1,000 GHIE 1,000,000 shares of MOP1,000 each
CEATE AR Issued and fully paid,
588,920 % » &EME 1,000 LI JC 588,920 shares of MOP1,000 each 588,920

2 WAk 2
JBE SR S A 10 6 LM T B84
A T 9 5 £ o

3. MRS 3

WM Z SRAT KR B
Bl > AAT e HAE WP Z )R
28 ] B % de A A A S A AR B
BB 20% Z FRIEBEA B8
W4 > AEGREEZ 4
R SR AAT BILAE WP Z
Bt 22 W1 4% B LB AT X B 5%
JEEARZ 50% %5 1k o M A%
0 S 0 R R R AL A
B B B A 10% K F > B
B E 2 A B AR A
AT B FL A W 2 B e 2 ) 4%
H OB AT RS AR %y 1k o
UMk 3 £ 4 {8 A 3 ) B B 2 e
S A5 TRAB UL A AR SR
SIS B SR B R A R
bt AR R B AR RLAR AL

Al o

Share Premium

Shareholders paid the capital amount
over the nominal value of the Issued

Capital.
Legal Reserve
Under the Macau banking and

the Bank

and its subsidiaries incorporated in

insurance legislation,

Macau (the “Macau subsidiaries”) are
required to transfer to a legal reserve
an amount equal to a minimum of
20% of its annual profit after tax
until the amount of the reserve is
equal to 50% of their respective
issued and fully paid up share
capital. Thereafter, transfers must
continue at a minimum annual rate of
10% until the reserve is equal to the
Bank’s and the Macau subsidiaries’
respective issued and fully paid
up share capital. This reserve is
only distributable in accordance
with certain limited circumstances
prescribed by statute and will be
transferred from the annual profit
after tax upon the approval by the
shareholders in the annual general

meeting.
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M) BB R F Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

4. REFEMHEfE

T 3k H R B R T
G R A SR E)

5. Hfbfkfie

AT SR EE R
BLE > 1€ B A7 WAk P SRR
fib A A 5 DR HR DA A 4
i T A0 [ I B e 4 T
BLE K o R ZF—H A
TZHAZ+—H > HAlEg
4 v AL B 1 B A A5 B4R
Z A 977,178,400 M T TG
PR B WAL ) 45 b B 45 R B
AW 43 B Z R o

B RH AR 5

ATEAREHRZ EEAMER T
T DR AT 8 57 S T AT 2 ACHE
R o T AAT M o v S B R A e
T e Y A B R DL S R S
TP B A

AAT R BIIL AT > 3 AR 4R A
SR D B % B e o e o
3 A R A A R o T A A R
R ACHME > AT T B e SRR
IR &8 B R ERE
ARBITEAR I - EARME
BRI H Ry ~ SR R A R B A
4 JIE S JHE il A

(b)

4. Investment Revaluation Reserve

The cumulative net change in the
fair value of the available-for-sale

financial investments.

5. Other Reserves

The Bank complies with Monetary
Authority of Macau’s (“AMCM”)
requirement to maintain impairment
allowances in excess of the Bank’s
collective impairment allowances
required under International
Financial Reporting Standards
through the appropriation of retained
profits to other reserves. As at 31
December 2015, MOP977,178,400
net of deferred tax was included
in other reserves which is not
distributable under AMCM’s

requirement.

Summary of the Group’s approach to
assessing the adequacy of its capital to

support current and future activities;

The primary objectives of the Group’s
capital management are to ensure that the
Group complies with externally imposed
capital requirements and that the Group
maintains strong credit ratings and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its
business and to maximise shareholders’

value.

The Group manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments to it in the light
of changes in economic conditions and
the risk characteristics of its activities.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue capital
securities. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies and processes from the

previous years.
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v TR SRAT (IR Bed A BRA 7 Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

LA MR AR KRR B

The management monitors the capital

R EREAT R L RERY adequacy on a monthly basis, based on
AKFJEKF o the information on total capital, total risk-
weighted assets and the capital adequacy
ratio.
ERWE Quantitative disclosure:
WM T T T
MOP’000
OB CHEEAR Paid-up share capital 588,920.00
BT Share premium 5,885,733.00
VB4 > AR ERMEZHE  Legal, statutory and other reserves created
4 B At v R 43 T 28 6% T AL by appropriations of retained profits
B e 4 478,171.00
BERIRG (HAERLR) Profits brought forward (Retained Earning) 8,896,427.00
WMABHEAR Supplementary Capital (i.e. Tier 2 Capital) 5,369,145.00
75 2 B A M A 5] 2 EASPE - Financial holdings or capital instruments in
#E subsidiaries (79,980.00)
HAEAR Own Fund 21,138,416.00
B I B v B A R ) bR Operation Risk Adjusted Solvency Ratio
(#147) (Bank level) 16.11%
£ LR i f B RE D B Operation Risk Adjusted Solvency Ratio
(££H) (Group level) 16.24%
£ 8 7L L SR 4 £ o) BB D) B Operation Risk Adjusted Solvency Ratio
(F2A) (ICBC Capital) 90.38%
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[ Information Disclosure (in Accordance with AMCM026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM)

M) BB R F Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

£ F R B
9.1 B BB 1 s PE Ak
(a) HBHHETREXEE 5

(b)

(©

) SRR B AR R A AR R fiE
2 391 3 A B R AR 4 sl AT AT 2K Y
P/ NPT N RN
B AT A AT RE R 2 T
Ja] 55K o

B — R ff 2 > FFIE A 2
15l 19 7 & 75 25 B il 7 v 5

ACAT I B K $58 A IBCSRRL 2 A IR
£ JR) WY ORI % CE A o ACAT B
A A O oX o J SR A R
TN BB H R R
R 4 > R BT B R AR R 2R
SHBETFE s JALAWME IR
TE M B A i s Z M4 o

HAAT 11 1 BB PEBCRE N it i

AATHRT A A R B A B AR K> DA
Al B~ BB T A R B o A
TzEaEEHaAEAREZET -
A B T B R T SRAT R BR 2 AT
BOAR R A o {5 B 5K
AT 7 B BORAAL B 5 B
BB ¢ £ T B A BB R At 4
AU (49 95 e K e B D e
FPRE) 5 i LA AR AT
B gy > DUHE AR 5 BB S B
W SLENE o

9.

Credit risk

9.1

Qualitative disclosure on the credit risk:

(@)

(®)

(©

Definition of past due or impaired;

Past due or impaired means loans and
other obligations remaining unpaid or
outstanding past the due date, and it
is likely that the bank cannot collect
the full value of the loan because the

creditworthiness of the borrower has fallen.

Description of approaches followed for
specific, general and other provisions and

statistical methods;

The provision policy of the Bank is in
compliance with the requirements set out
by AMCM, which includes 2 methods.
The Individual Impairment Allowance is
a specific provision applied to impaired
loans taking into account the estimated
The Collective

Impairment Allowance is a general

recoverable amount.

provision for the normal loan assets.

Discussion of the credit institution’s

credit risk management policy.

The Bank has a credit risk management
process to measure, monitor and control
credit risk. The lending authority of the
Bank consists of the credit committee,
general manager, chief executive officer
and directors who have extensive banking
experience. The hierarchy of credit
authority which approves credit is in
compliance with the Bank’s credit policy;
exposures are monitored against credit
limits and other control limits (such as
large exposures and concentration limits);
segregation of duties in key credit functions
is in place to ensure separate credit control

and monitoring.
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9.2

R B

Financial Information Disclosure (in Accordance with AMCMO026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM)

M) BB R F Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

9.2.1 i lE

a.

9.2 Quantitative disclosure on the credit risk:
9.2.1 Geographic distribution of exposures
BB AR IR AR a. Loans and Commitment
WM T T
MOP’000
b ik BOR ~ A 2B 410 HENH st
Financial Other
Region Government Institution Company Total
P
Macau — 2,080,600.00 113,487,152.95 115,567,752.95
o
China — 8,164,998.79 18,232,166.41 26,397,165.20
Bt
Hong Kong — 2,350,663.90 28,994,758.10 31,345,422.00
HE
Others — 62.96 1,221,917.69 1,221,980.65
Vv e 3 b. Debt securities
WL ¥ T
MOP’000
b ik BOR ~ A 2B i1 HENH i hiy
Financial Other
Region Government Institution Company Total
L
Macau 3,950,000.00 — — 3,950,000.00
o
China = 9,478,637.48 10,371,062.32 19,849,699.80
LR
Hong Kong — 998,342.98 3,783,586.88 4,781,929.85
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Financial Information Disclosure (in Accordance with AMCMO026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM)

ch SRR TR c. Financial Derivatives
WP T 0
MOP’000
b BORF ~ A BB LB HLend A5t
Financial Other
Region Government Institution Company Total
TP
Macau — (5,274.73) 123.20 (5,151.53)
o
China — 239,928.36 — 239,928.36
B
Hong Kong — (7,957.90) — (7,957.90)
HE
Others 1,994.19 1,994.19
9.2.2 #l=1rEI 9.2.2 Industry distribution of exposures
W T
MOP’000
fik Bem RREXEH — Bt e R AR A Hau
Non-performing CIA (General 1IA (Specific
Industry Gross Amount Loan Provision) Provision) Net Amount
ik
Manufacturing industries 6,449,733.51 18,945.51 58,714.93 18,945.51 6,372,073.07
B SRR Rk
Electricity, gas and water 1,526,147.13 — 13,745.21 — 1,512,401.92
REREETE
Construction and public works 1,708,685.68 — 17,596.49 — 1,691,089.19
B AR fERBE
Wholesale and retail trade 12,175,831.63 — 117,126.54 — 12,058,705.09
R T ST
Restaurants, Hotels and similar 16,117,354.81 — 144,964.51 — 15,972,390.30
T AR
Transport, warehousing and
communications 1,349,646.09 — 12,256.44 — 1,337,389.65
T A f5 48 Sk
Personal housing loans (mortgage) 17,556,837.16 22,518.94 157,552.11 3,157.60 17,396,127.45
HEMARHR
Personal credit for other purposes 20,183,496.89 18,659.71 184,165.42 2,617.03 19,996,714.44
e
Others 47,016,932.10 14,025.67 461,436.76 14,025.67 46,541,469.67
it
Total 124,084,665.00 74,149.83 1,167,558.41 38,745.81 122,878,360.78




— A A

Annual Report 2015

INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED ' B . % 4R 47 (3R 9 ) Bt 4 A FR & &

153

B R B (B8 AMCMO26/B/2012-DSB/AMCM S 3Ck) Fir
(# Contini

led)

Fj ] 7 AT (IR

9.2.3

M) BB R F Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

BRI AT B B 1

K WL

Assets On Demand

1HKEH
Up to
1 month

Financial Information Disclosure (in Accordance with AMCMO026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM)

9.2.3 Maturity analysis on assets and liabilities

ISHWS 3H-UEmsn

From 1 to3
months

From 3 to 1
year

IREAIE
From1to3
years

YENE
Over
3 years

e
Indefinite
period

LR
MOP'000

it

Total

LIRS0
Loans and advances to

customers 2,872,696.13
1 RRAESH
Cash and balances with and

loans and advances to banks 12,428,525.09
fikit
Certificates of deposit held —
Ll e ATk Y ey
Securities issued by Macao

SAR Government and/or

AMCM —
Kk

Other securities —

1,922,564.01

19,607,169.83

1,900,000.00

388,803.17

4,816,595.64

160,770.00

2,050,000.00

3,453,509.36

18,886,125.42

239,502.00

6,727,757.96

26,690,850.38

§,126,496.61

08,895,833.42

5,935,002.56

§3,428.31

124,084,665.00

32,435,966.91

3,950,000.00

24.715,057.97

fifk
Liabilities —
SIS
Deposits and balances of banks

and financial institutions =
P
Deposits from public sector

entities 228.69
BATR A AT
Deposits from holding and

associated companies —
KRR
Deposits from non-bank

customers 29,860,332.00
Bt
Certificates of deposits issued =
HeRfTis

Other securities issued —

9,888,257.74

6,304,057.47

36,177,364.88

791,398.42

416,718.17

2,964,762.80

35,310,581.87

5,740,210.80

10,702,244.45

26,567,661.60

711,146.10

2,139,129.59

20.96

3,467,845.30

600,490.00

16,045,186.71

19,971,893.41

130,055,090.90

1,502,544.52

4,068,335.30
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9.2.4 BHE 9.2.4 Analysis on past due assets

BRPWTI > %
MOP’000, %

W NS EE A SRV D B

Past due loans Value of Specific
Past due loans percentage Collateral Provision
(a) ¥I3-6 H
Overdue for
3-6 months 8,078.01 0.007% 11,845.00 1,288.30

(b) M6 A -14¢

Overdue for

6 months - 1 year 10,313.49 0.008% 43,054.00 2,042.79
(c) HH14EPL Lk

Overdue for

more than 1 year 49,445.36 0.040% 124,100.48 34,701.74

67,836.87 0.055% 178,999.48 38,032.82
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v TR SRAT (IR Bed A BRA 7 Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

10.

i 355 bl B
R Pl

(a) B i35 BB B H L BN il 2

ACAT 1 TR 5 R i B AR S i A BEE
AP AR LB > DL AE Bl B i AL
i A R A T o A AT I T 355 e
A B IBC SR A 6 4 L B PR B > R
Ty BER > 22 5 3 F DA B i Jol e i oA
2015 AEAAT A A 5 v 35 L B 4 B AR
ETE iMooy T
5 T 5 A BRBOORE o AR 2 v L B
B RS B R o

10. Market risk

Qualitative disclosure

(a) A description of its risk management objectives

and policies on market risk;

The objective of market risk management is
to obtain the best balance of risk and return of
our Bank’s positions arising from movements
in foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
changes in credit market condition. Our market
risk policies and processes include risk limits
and exposures management, stress-testing,
counterparty evaluations and country risks
assessment. In 2015, we continued to strengthen
market risk management by improving policies
and procedures, risk reporting and limit

management.

E R E Quantitative disclosure
BT R
Capital
Requirement
WP T o0
Tl 355 gt g 70 Type MOP’000
&2 K SRS M B B A A T H Specific Risk of Debt Securities and Debt

A58 Derivatives —

&~ BLEFM B AT A TH R General Market Risk of Debt Securities, Debt
R 23 Jl g g — 8 v 455 L e Derivatives and Interest Rate Exposures 12,699
JBERE o i Equity Exposures —
A B J it Foreign Exchange Exposures 2,811
T b JE B Commodities Exposures —
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" B T SR AT (R
11, SRAT MR 7 ) 3 b, Bt
S P A
(2)  FIFBBRHIELT 5

AAT W ERATIR P R2PLSETE - WE kA
RO RHE - B > AAT ) 2 Jm B 3
T S0 e N\ R B2 2 4 ) i v] RE5E
BB R T 2 A o

(b) e B BT 1A BB B 17 5K 3 1 X TR
1y B it

PR SO SR RN A — FER I >
SRERAT FH A 318 17155 2 V0 4 o 2 ¥ K
B BRAT W A R N B SRR RS A e 4
T R B G o S B A AT AR A R
P > S 3 AR R A T RO T A
o BN ZORER A FRIE W > B
JEA 2 SRAT AH B AE P A 2 A1\ HE e o B
RAESE 5 R 5 e T Bk DL B Rk

(c) P B 5 YK 5

AATHH @ ERRFRENAN, D
PRI A B A AT B4 B SR A L B AR &
AAT R A REAG SRAT IR P AR R R 52 8
BB AREOLT , RIA SR B) 200 {5
MR B BRAT AU B IR UL 5
.

T

(d)  PLUFPEAE B 7} 1 BEAE 109 8 B 4 P 7 5
F o U I 5 0 2 5 AT WK 2k e 45 P
AL (G HE A 1 DA 45 72 1 T BE ) diF HE 1 4
WP o

Information Disclosure (in Accordance with AMCMO026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM)

M) BB R F Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

Interest rate risk in the banking book
Qualitative disclosure
(a) The nature of its interest rate risk;

Our banking book mainly consists of investments
denominated in USD, HKD and RMB, therefore
our interest rate risk arises from fluctuating U.S.
and RMB interest rates, which may reduce the

values of our investments.

(b)  Key assumptions regarding loan prepayments

and behaviour of non-maturity deposits;

Early Redemption means the borrower to deposit
a sum of money, the bank used for early partial
or fully repayment of the loan. When the bank
received the borrower requirement in advance
of early partial or fully repayment of the loan,
first verify the contents of the bank facility
letter about the early redemption penalty. If the
borrower wants to waive the early redemption
penalty, need to get the bank approval of the
approving officer has sufficient authority. At last
to debit the borrower’s repayment account to

repay the loan.
(¢c) Frequency of interest rate risk measurement;

Each month we monitor the duration of our bond
investment to ensure that it is within our policy
and risk appetite. Each quarter we assess the
impact on the capital and financial position of our
bank account resulted from interest rate change

by 200 basis points.
Quantitative disclosure

(d) The increase (decline) in earnings or
economic value (or relevant measure used by
management) for upward and downward rate
shocks according to management’s method,

broken down by currency, if relevant.
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Financial Information Disclosure (in Accordance with AMCMO026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM)

M) BB R F Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

200 115 3% 25 D% ) i R 2 8 B 2 B Analysis of interest rate exposures at a shock of 200
basis points
W s WP (LT oesE)
Currency: MOP (in Thousand)
Sty B B Gk i3 7 WY iERE/
BH W8 Rk (ki) ki (#)  (El)AE (kif)
Total Weighted
Part | Part Il Part 111 Part IV Net long/ Weighing position
Item Time band long (short) long (short) (short) factor  long/(short)
(@) (b) (©) @ (©) U
1 HR1A 15,702,373 (6,296,150) 0 0 9,406,223 0.00% 0
Within 1 day
2 >1E<=TH 517,750 (279,462) 12,277 (1,082,200) (831,635) 0.02% (166)
>]'to <=1 days
3 >THE < 1A 1,966,670 (540,110) 0 0 1,426,560 0.10% 1,427
>7 days to <= | month
4 >1E<=3fA 350,000 (5,746,787) 0 0 (5,396,787) 0.32% (17,270)
>1 to <= 3 months
5 >3 E<=6fA 73 (2,344,489) 0 0 (2,344,416) 0.72% (16,380)
>3 to <= 6 months
6 >efAR <14 1,015 (1,978,220) 0 0 (1,977,205) 1.43% (28,274)
>6 months to <= 1 year
7 SlE<)E 250 (211,340) 0 0 (208,818) 2.77% (5,784)
>| to <=2 years
§ SE<IFE 26,742 (14,770) 0 0 11,972 4.49% 538
>) to <=3 years
9 3E<=44 214,360 (21) 0 0 214,339 6.14% 13,160
>3 to <=4 years
10 4E<=54 170,406 0 0 0 170,406 1.71% 13,138
>4 to <=5 years
I >S5 E<=T4 200 0 0 0 200 10.15% 20
>5 to <=7 years
2 MTE<=10% 436 0 0 0 436 13.26% 58
>T to <= 10 years
13 >0E<=ISE 9,760 0 0 0 9,760 17.84% 1,741
>10 to <= 15 years
4 SI5E<=NE 0 0 0 0 0 20.43% 0
>15 to <=20 years
15 204 0 0 0 0 0 26.03% 0
Over 20 years
16 BEMERIZIBERR(1(0) - 15(d) 2 A0) (38,292)
Weighted position for thls currency
(sum of 1(d) - 15(d))
17 Jebhe Rl A 561,561
Weighted position of all other currencies
18 BRI IR (16(0)+17(0) 523,069
Weighted position of all currencies
(16(Ey17(D)
19 Af%EE 21,138,416
Own funds*
20 BAEREMEENERRE R
Fm* (18() as % of 19(f)) 2.48%
Impact on economic value as % of own funds*
(18(f) as % of 19(f))
@ A BIE B S A A DR 2 A8 BB o) (* These items are relevant for credit institutions

incorporated in Macao only.)
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Financial Information Disclosure (in Accordance with AMCMO026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM)

M) BB R F Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

200 i 2 25 e 5 1y ) 3¢ Jl BgE 43 BF Analysis of interest rate exposures at a shock of 200
basis points
BBl : WoC (WP T e EE)
Currency: HKD (in MOP Thousand equivalent)
i it L (L it/ By e
BH W8 43 4 (ki) ki (i) Chfp)am (ki)
Total Weighted
Part Part I Part 111 Part IV Net long/ Weighing position
Item Time band long (short) long (short) (short) factor  long/(short)
(@) (b) (©) @ (©) U
1 HR1A 37,997,119 (10,835,345) 0 0 27,161,774 0.00% 0
Within | day
2 >1E<=TH 6,709,184 (10,460,388) 5,013,470 0 1,262,266 0.02% 252
>1 to <=7 days
3 STHE< 1A 20,527,695 (18,850,959) 79,623 (1,197,293) 559,066 0.10% 559
>7 days to <= | month
4 >1E<=3fR 9,212,558 (18,508,779) 87,007 (7,389) (9,216,599) 0.32% (29.493)
>1 to <=3 months
5 >3F<=6fiA 1,158,801 (10,446,917) 0 0 (9,288,116) 0.72% (66,874)
>3 to <= 6 months
6 >6HAZ<=1% 514 (4.302918) 0 0 (4302,404) 1.43% (61,524)
>6 months to <= | year
7 SlE<)E 54433 (27,024) 0 0 27,409 2.77% 759
>] to <=2 years
§ SE<IFE 715,457 (20,695) 0 0 694,762 4.49% 31,195
>) to <=3 years
9 SIB<=4E 795,873 0 0 0 795,873 6.14% 48,867
>3 to <=4 years
10 >4E<=54 1,059,946 0 0 (159,246) 900,700 1.11% 69,444
>4 to <= 5 years
I >S5 E<=T4 23312 0 0 0 23312 10.15% 2,366
>5 to <=7 years
12 >TE<10% 0 (360,500) 0 0 (360,500) 13.26% (47,802)
>T to <= 10 years
13 S0E<15E 0 0 0 0 0 17.84% 0
>10 to <= 15 years
4 SI5E<=NE 0 0 0 0 0 20.43% 0
>15 to <= 20 years
15 0% 0 0 0 0 0 26.03% 0
Over 20 years
16 MR MREAR(1(d) - 15(d) 2 4 (52,252)

Weighted position for thls currency
(sum of 1(d) - 15(d))
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Financial Information Disclosure (in Accordance with AMCMO026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM)

M) BB R F Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

200 115 3% 25 D% ) i R 2 8 B 2 B Analysis of interest rate exposures at a shock of 200
basis points
Wi 5650 (RPTHET0%1H)
Currency: USD (in MOP Thousand equivalent)
S i i P 1 SR i3 78 Y iR
BH BB 131 (k) Rl (i) (il)as (K#)
Total Weighted
Part Part 11 Part 111 Part IV Net long/ Weighing  position long/
Item  Time band long (short) long (short) (short) factor (short)
(2) (b) © (d) (© Ul
I ARiHE 6,113,143 (5,087,963) 0 0 1,025,180 0.00% 0
Within | day
) >lE<TH 7.578,157 (8,464,927) 5,575,565 (5,167,961) (479,166) 0.02% (96)
>] to <=7 days
3 STHE<1MA 10,264,373 (11,921,033) 7,906,397 (2,283,838) (3,965,899) 0.10% 3,966
>7 days to <= | month
4 >1E<=3R 10,435,429 (6,874,547) 5,367,230 (5,375,214) 3,552,898 0.32% 11,369
>] to <=3 months
5 >3FE<=6HA 2,984,337 (14,046,226) 2,121,597 (2,072,966)  (11,013,258) 0.72% (79,295)
>3 to <= 6 months
6 >6fEAR<1% 401,545 (3,309.459) 3,198,280 (3,200,117) (2,915,751) 143% (41,695)
>6 months to <= 1 year
7 SlEeE 3,945,925 (333,546) 1,604,663 (1,596,680) 3,620,362 277% 100,284
> to <=2 years
§ EIE 4,676,567 0 0 0 4,676,567 4.49% 209978
>) to <=3 years
9 BE<4E 3,704,228 0 0 0 3,704,208 6.14% 227,440
>3 10 <=4 years
10 4F<=5% 254,121 0 0 (39.917) 2,502,210 1.11% 192,920
>4 to <=5 years
Il 5214 0 0 0 0 0 10.15% 0
>5to <=7 years
2 >TE<104 0 (2,540,845) 0 0 (2,540,845) 13.26% (336,916)
>Tto <= 10 years
3 SE<=IE 0 0 0 0 0 17.84% 0
>10to <= 15 years
4 SISE<NE 0 0 0 0 0 2243% 0
>15 to <= 20 years
15 BBk 0 0 0 0 0 26.03% 0
Over 20 years
16 BRI MERE(1() - 15(0) &) 287954

Weighted position for thls currency
(sum of 1(d) - 15(d))
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Financial Information Disclosure (in Accordance with AMCMO026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM)

M) BB R F Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

200 i 1 15 e 5l 1y ) 3¢ Jl BgE 43 BF Analysis of interest rate exposures at a shock of 200
basis points
W« N R GRFTIET-7C44H)
Currency: CNY (in MOP Thousand equivalent)
S i LB EHlE i/ B e/
BH R 34 (hifg) 43 4 (i) (if)am (Hifg)
Total Weighted
Part Part 11 Part 111 Part IV Net long/ Weighing  position long/
Item  Time band long (short) long (short) (short) factor (short)
(2) (b) © (d) (¢) ()
1 ARIA 142,574 (979.928) 0 0 (837,354) 0.00% 0
Within | day
2 >lE<TH 46,174 (655,202) 145,020 (4475,403) (4.939,411) 0.02% (988)
>1 to <=7 days
3 STHE< 1A 1,358,869 (1,550,250) 15,979 (3,000,138) (3,175,540) 0.10% (3,176)
>7 days to <= | month
4 >1E<=3IR 1,586,612 (3,127,035) 70,389 (23,316) (1,493,350) 0.32% (4,779)
> to <=3 months
5 3E<=6fA 3,552,414 (6,190,203) 229332 (276,952) (2,685,469) 0.72% (19,335)
>3 to <= 6 months
6 >oAE <14 6,558,204 (1,969,844) 862,907 (854,026) 4,597,331 143% 05,742
>b months to <= 1 year
7 >R 6,008,120 (1,531,406) 0 (8,202) 4,468,512 277% 123,778
>] to <=2 years
§ SEIE 3307443 0 0 0 3,307,443 449% 148,504
>] t0 <=3 years
9 E<4f 0 0 0 0 0 6.14% 0
>3 to <= 4 years
10 >FE<=5% 0 0 0 0 0 1.11% 0
>4 to <=5 years
Il >5E<=14 0 0 0 0 0 10.15% 0
>5 to <=7 years
2 >TE<=10% 121,510 0 0 0 121,510 13.26% 16,112
>Tto <= 10 years
13 SI0E<I154 0 0 0 0 0 17.84% 0
>10to <= 15 years
4 SI5E<N% 0 0 0 0 0 2.43% 0
>15 to <=20 years
15 Bk 0 0 0 0 0 26.03% 0
Over 20 years
16 SERZMELR()- 15028 325859

Weighted position for this currency
(sum of 1(d) - 15(d))
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""" # Con

Fj ] 7 AT (IR

12.

rH(xl

TSR AR AT AR BB~ 2 U A 4R
PR B AR > B — PR - B
A1~ B A RO R B A B R 5 R
A L i 4 ) A5 T AR SZ TR 2 o BB RAT R B
WA R KA > REER P R A RS o

O % L R R R A A R A B AR
BRAPERRAE - W - AR EIA > 2015
AN R g JEE B 5 A0 R 5t o % e X A
JE B RS A R 5

JER o A R 2 R A1 L B PR AR A > S
T~ A~ B R 98 e A R e T AT B A
BRAEDL > T 58 By A5 B R AR I T M O
SR AR AR L e o B P B0 E > TRAL R AR
A 1 REARL A > e DR AR B T 4 o

ACAT 2015 4F v e A 58 3 R A L B i B 404 5L
R R > 275 foinsh B T A BRAERI >
5 5% A1 R I A L5 A% B3 W 740 A ] #)  t
BE > BTSRRI BB A R - AT AR R
WP o B BB ~ R - oA S
B R S » 280 R A V0 S5 8 P I A B A

2015 G2 AT AR JE R A B AT R > RS 1
»n%&ﬁ% °

(H548 AMCM026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM 53¢ ) Financia

[ Information Disclosure (in Accordance with AMCM026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM)

12.

M) BB R F Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

Operational Risk

ICBC (Macau) implements “Consolidated Management,
Divisional Control” model of operational risk
management and endeavors to establish a decisive,
enforceable and efficient operational risk management
system. Such model and system enable the Bank to
control operational risk at a manageable level, maximize
the value added to the Bank and its shareholders, and

protect the interests of customers and the public.

Both the board of directors and the senior management
team have placed significant emphasis on the
operational risk management and kept on the stable,
prudent and compliant business management principles.
Stronger effort was given to promote prospective
operational risk identification, and effective operational

risk assessment in 2015.

Risk management departments have strictly controlled
the risk through operational risk indicators, regular
identifying, assessing, monitoring and reporting of
operational risk and management condition. In order
to manage and control operational risk, additional
efforts were taken in enhancing the incident prevention
management and external frauds’ handling measures,
strengthening the operational risk incidents’ monitoring
and accountability, and deepening the operational risk

management’s evaluation work.

In 2015,

operational risk management structure and framework,

the Bank continued to strengthen the

with full-scale staff training in operational compliance,
and implementation of operational risk management
related appraisal and incentive mechanism. It thus
resulted in currently a governance mechanism of
“Effective Implementation and Stable Operation”. The
operational risk identification, assessment, analysis and
control structure was advanced, and effectively met
with both the requirements of the business development

internally and the supervisory authority externally.

In 2015,

was considered properly operated with effective risk

the Bank’s operational risk management

management measures.
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(# Continued)
vh B TR ST (IR
13. A b bl B

R P 3k

(a) A E R B 4 BEE R B A BB SR A b

Hle s

M T AR AT T 35 I i BRI — ER 4y > ARAT
V1 A1 I I 3 e A7 B ) AR - 1 4 B
S ) T 2 L B A [ i o ARAT R RR
T AW Z R A IRAL, B H P
Z B o B e S AT AR o

R B %

(b)  AATHAMERFEE TGV 5

Foreign exchange risk

Qualitative disclosure

Information Disclosure (in Accordance with AMCMO026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM)

M) BB R F Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

(a) A description of its risk management objectives

and policies on foreign exchange exposures;

As part of our market risk management,

the objective of foreign exchange rates risk

management is to obtain the best balance of

risk and return of our Bank’s positions arising

from movements in foreign exchange rates. Our

policies on foreign exchange exposure include

currency position limits setting and monitoring.

Quantitative disclosure

(b)  The total net long and total net short positions in

foreign currencies:

(MF9% : T-C) (in MOP Thousand or equivalent)

A LG &
1 R AT
1M o e i

Net Open
Position
excluding

option contracts

Net Position in

contracts Long

AL F5 0 b
R R

T i i el

Net Open
Position
including option

contracts

icdi Currency Long or Short Long or Short
1. YT 1. Australian dollars 14 14
2. &R 2. Canadian dollars 861 861
3. AR 3. Chinese renminbi (33,816) (33,816)
4. B 4. Euro 1,282 1,282
5. #oo 5. Hong Kong dollars 6,953,751 6,953,751
6. HIE 6. Japanese yen 66 66
7. FVETIC 7. New Zealand dollars 127 127
8. e 8. Pound sterling (344) (344)
9. FrmiEoo 9. Singapore dollars 405 405
10. F 8 BF 10. Swiss francs (428) (428)
11. 3£t 11. US dollars 7,176,020 7,176,020
12. A ERBIH G 12. Foreign currencies not

B WERR separately specified

Ap above, except gold 1,227 1,227
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B H R BB (KR AMCMO26/B/2012-DSB/AMCM 5 X ) Financial Information Disclosure (in Accordance with AMCM026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM)

(# Continued)

v TR SRAT (IR Bed A BRA 7 Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

()

B T AR BT A A FE 4 35 35 ~F 89 10% (c) The information in a particular foreign currency
mfE B - whose net position (in absolute terms) constitutes
not less than 10% of the total net position in all
foreign currencies:
Wt (5 %),/ HKD (Original CCY) T-JG 000
¥ fif
Assets Liabilities
i
Spot 4,286,309.91 —
HA ¥ il
Purchases Sales
e ]
Forward 3,634,494.30 (1,169,589.61)

% Delta ARE w3 A 91 RE A 4 R Al 1

Net options position, calculated on the basis of the delta-
weighted position of the relevant option contracts

AR (AR

Net long (or net short) position

6,751,214.60

FIC(JE¥) / USD (Original CCY)) T-76°000

<473 1145
Assets Liabilities
IR ]
Spot 321,814.85 (178,338.32)
HA ®"ill
Purchases Sales
P
Forward 1,441,702.24 (686,311.11)

% Delta IRETH R 3 301 0E 7 4 il - I M i 1

Net options position, calculated on the basis of the delta-
weighted position of the relevant option contracts

FRECRER)

Net long (or net short) position

898,867.66
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(# Cont

fj ] 7 AT (IR

14.

mm{

(4548 AMCMO26/B/2012-DSB/AMCM B3 ) Fi

A ﬂl P

i ig )

(a)

AAT i B R B A B A DL R RO 5

0 ke L A LR W - AT BRI
2 4 37 ) e L B ) A AR o ARAT BR AR
ORI A > e - ARG B RRA
300 7 3 5 4 ) 7 S 2 B A vl 9 58
B > it PR S iy A TE R AL R BT R R
TEJE TR RE T - #B A 50 Y 4 HE 3 3
W5 R AT o

MRPEAAT 58 RG34 S R R B R
B 0 5 AR AT i G e JRL R AR 32 o i DA Ut
T R ) 2 e T e R BG4 B SR MR~ BUR
FIFRFF o A\ B AR S2 AR IR e & 7 Rk
B WAL YN » siAE B AR T
SRAT T DL AR B2 A AR 468 4 TR A S ) e L
IKHE o

T B e B A L RO 8 W A e e
B R AR K > S WA R U B e
e A B A I Y LR > REA
R RE ¢

(=) BRI B A BLBUR 5

(=) 9 ) ik e # i) ~
eI

w2k A BE it

(=) BB E PR 5

Financial

Information Disclosure (in Accordance with AMCMO026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM)

14.

M) BB R F Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

Liquidity

Qualitative disclosure

(a)

The Group’s risk management objectives and

policies on liquidity risk;

Liquidity Risk Management (LRM) is a whole
process to identify, quantify, monitor and
control of the liquidity risk. Our bank would
adhere to the principle of prudence in order to
fully identify, monitor and control the liquidity
risk arising from our business in an effective
and continuous manner. No matter it is under
normal operating environment or under financial
pressure, the LRM process can ensure that our
bank would have sufficient funding to service our
liabilities as they fall due.

The determination of the LRM together with
its related strategies, policies and procures are
highly based on the business strategy, operational
characteristics and risk preference of our bank.
The degree of risk tolerance is presented in a
quantitative way to gauge the unreleased liquidity
risk level by assuming whether it is under normal

circumstance or under financial pressure.

LRM is required to identify a clear and
comprehensive module which embeds a set of
specific strategy, including but not limited to the
following:

1) Overall LRM strategies;

2) LRM identification, measurement and

reporting scheme;

3) LRM procedures;
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(# Continued)

v TR SRAT (IR Bed A BRA 7 Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

() HiEmAEHS s 4)  Assets and liabilities portfolio;

(Fi) ik Bl ek J i P 5 5)  Liquidity risk limit;

(5) AEIE# KR 16 U0 F iy B 4 i 6) Cash flow analysis under normal or
ik stressful operating environment;

(o) 25 B ol e L e 354 n iy ¥ A I & 7) Potential factors that lead to the increase
e HH B B AR 5 of liquidity risk and the responding

monitoring process;

O\ JRE Dy Bk v 55 43 A 5 8)  Stress Test and Scenario Analysis;
(Ju) MEZFHE - 9)  Emergency plan.
R Quantitative disclosure
WM "k
MOP’000/%

(b) YR REB S RIKER

Minimum weekly amount of cash in hand 3,020,028
(© PR ZRIBSE

Average weekly amount of cash in hand 4,925,627
(d) P Z AT B

Specified liquid assets 60,193,549
(e) PN EEBFEAL f{ R

Ratio of specified liquid asset to total basic liabilities 38%
(O FHZ AR R

One-month liquidity ratio in the last week of each month 102%
(e “FHZ=MA B

Three-month liquidity ratio in the last week of each month 31%




— T 4R 4 )
Annual Report 2015

166 " T /G 847 () B4 A BR 2 5] INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED

B H R BB (KR AMCMO26/B/2012-DSB/AMCM 5 X f) Financial Information Disclosure (in Accordance with AMCM026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM)

(# Continued)

v TR SRAT (R Bed A BRA 7 Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

15. HAbfE S 15.

() REFEHEHEERIE=ZTAMENE
s LK

ACAT S8 I o

(b) A3 S50 A LT U R L K 2 1
Wk o

AATAE H W AE R b o B TR
WA o T8 BB A KHR A R B A AT 2 WL [T A
FLEE K SR By o AAT B R IE SR e i
AR E AT SEH - IR DL s AL
ES VLRI DN 2

16. W 16.

() H—BE T HEHRFFEP > F—
= ANEHAKBEFIEA -

(b)  AEEFRRIIEW] > DL EPTA SRR %
—IAEFZ A= B

Others

(a)

(®)

The credit institution’s assets that are pledged as
security for the credit institution or a third party’s

liabilities; and

The Bank does not have such assets.

Outstanding litigations which may have a
significant impact on the Group’s financial

position.

The Bank has been involved in litigation
proceedings in the ordinary course of business.
Most of these proceedings were initiated by
the Bank for recovering non-performing loans.
The Bank expected that there would not be any
significant impact resulted from the proceedings
on the Bank’s business, financial position or

operating result.

Notes

()

(b)

Item 1, 3 and 6 are audited among all the items

disclosed.

Unless with specification, all the above data is
taken as at Dec, 31st, 2015.
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B B8 5% (% AMCM026/B/2012-DSBIAMCM ) Financial Information Disclosure (in Accordance with AMCM026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM)
(# Contined)

THORM)BRE A A RAT ICBC (MACAU) CAPITAL LIMITED

1. WMHHER 1. Financial Statements
AP CHR P 4 it B R AR RSB 75 R () All those items of information required under Article
BE 75 R (3) T R IRBE A B RIEE - 75(1) and/or 75(3) of the FSAM.
(a) B\EEAfR (a) Balance sheet
W oFE—hFE+—H=1—H As at 31 December 2015
b el
MOP
fiif 4
YA Vi MR Y
Provision
Depreciation &
V43 Assets Total Assets Impairment Net Assets
Bla Cash
AMCM ik Deposit with A.M.C.M.
JEW IR IH Account receivable
Az M R Demand deposits with local
W banks 2,337,423.23 2,337,423.23
ez oMl RS Demand deposits with
W% correspondents
&8 Gold & Silver
H AR E Other current assets 43,628,631.39 43,628,631.39
Tk Loans & advances
FEABRAE IR Investments in local banks 13,535,230.00 13,535,230.00
TEAM A A Deposits at call & time with
AR WA correspondents
JRSE o % BRI HE Securities 47,974,112.40 47,974,112.40
RHESRE Utilization of resources in trust
BHEA Debtors
Hib g Other investments
MBERYE Financial investments
AE)E Buildings
Wl Equipment 199,489.73 186,058.40 13,431.33
ELEH Preliminary expenses
A 2 Setting up expenses
REBA T E Immovable in progress
HoAJE 2 % e Other fixed assets 130,625.00 90,806.69 39,818.31
A e e e Sundry accounts 759,479.31 759,479.31

M TOTAL 108,564,991.06 276,865.09 108,288,125.97
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(# Continued)

THRORM)BRE A A RAT ICBC (MACAU) CAPITAL LIMITED

Haffik Balance sheet
BF—HEZH=1—H As at 31 December 2015
W
MOP
I W
15 Liabilities Sub-total Total
TR Demand deposit
TR Deposits at call
WK Time deposit
A SR K Deposit of public sector
AHAE PR 4 Deposits from local banks
oA i o 4 Loans from local credit institutions
A 3K Loans in foreign currency
A Debts against debentures
AR S RN Creditors of resources in trust
A X 2 R 5 Cheques & payment orders
RN Creditors
HIHA M Accounts payable
REE L Sundry accounts 2,656,961.68
2 JE R B Al T 4 Provision
JheAs Capital 50,000,000.00
W E Rl Legal reserve 10,128,400.00
H 7 il Statutory reserve
Ho At ik 5 Other reserves 60,128,400.00
JRAERS LR Retained profit 39,474,657.99
ARAE A S A L Profit & loss for the year 6,028,106.30 45,502,764.29

M TOTAL 108,288,125.97
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B H R BB (KR AMCMO26/B/2012-DSB/AMCM 5 X ) Financial Information Disclosure (in Accordance with AMCM026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM)

(# Continued)

TR & e A PR A R ICBC (MACAU) CAPITAL LIMITED

(b)

ik

ZE BB RER ST

(b) Profit and loss account

Income statement for the year ended
31 December 2015

BEIEH Income Statement
U Slid
MOP
v} &m 8 W
Debit Amount Credit Amount
R A W S H W
Costs of credit operations Income from credit operations
NFEEH SRAT MR 5 W 25
Personnel costs Income from banking services 10,818,476.42
i YR -acliiFa FC At SRAT 8 5 W A
Board of directors & Income form other banking
supervisors fee 51,499.66 services
T 5 B 3 W7 B I s B WA
Staff costs 2,764,954.80 Income from securities &
Ji] 52 ik B e A equity investments
Staff benefits 179,871.77  FHAUSRAT MRS
o N\ F2EH Other banking income 1,601,342.79
Other personnel costs JEIEH B W
BEF A 2 B Income from non-banking
Third party supply 9,386.96 operations
BEF R 555 BERR
Third party services 2,586,937.91 Operating loss
oAt g47 %
Other banking costs 52,309.98
B
Taxation
IR B L
Costs of non-banking
operations
Pres
Depreciation allowances 18,073.83
i 4z K
Provision allowances
= B
Operating profit 6,756,784.30
S M
TOTAL 12,419,819.21 TOTAL 12,419,819.21
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(4 Continued)

TR & e A AR ICBC (MACAU) CAPITAL LIMITED

EEET R Income Statement
WL W
MOP
i %5 & 8/ kg
Debit Amount Credit Amount
(CESEPS BN
Operating loss Operating profit 6,756,784.30
R Z K JEAEZ )
Loss related to previous years Profit related to previous years
LEVEEEN i S
Exceptional losses Exceptional profits
8 SR Z BLIE B K LiE L 3
Profit tax provision 728,678.00 Provisions used up
BHEER (HR) BEHEROER)
Operating result (profit) 6,028,106.30 Operating result (loss)
ok ] ik
TOTAL 6,756,784.30 TOTAL 6,756,784.30
HHFR
Chairman
P

Wu Long



ZR-HEER
Annual Report 2015

INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED ' B . % 4R 47 (3R 9 ) Bt 4 A FR & &

171

B H R BB (KR AMCMO26/B/2012-DSB/AMCM 5 X ) Financial Information Disclosure (in Accordance with AMCM026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM)

(# Continued)

TR & e A PR A R ICBC (MACAU) CAPITAL LIMITED

()

P Al

20154 » THRQEM)BE R A R
]ORN B BLBLAR A W
P 603 370 5 BE 20154 K » A4
A% R R IR 1.08 f8 0T > W R 6.86% ©

HA A RRSE PR > A4 v $E b B T
T SRAT (WL ) BB A7 R 2 ) A48 3%
B > AR I R SRAT R A R A
MR B EERBES . B
HEBRRA — H EARAR R AR T K
32 A B o e ) B S M > K P R
R 45 B (e

HHFTLN
i

TR NEZA 1 TH s AWM

()

A summary of the management report

In the year of 2015, ICBC (Macau) Capital
Limited maintained a sustainable development
momentum, having achieved after-tax the profit
of MOP 6.03 million. As of the year ended 2015,
the gross assets of our company amounted to
MOP 108 million, corresponding to a growth of
6.86%.

Since the establishment of our company, we,
steered by the general development strategy
of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
(Macau) Limited and anchored in the advantages
of the brand, network, financial and technical
resources of the Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China Limited, have been committed
in a sustainable financial growth of our assets,
continuously improving our risk management and
seeking for a more secure return in our clients’

investments.

Chairman of the Board of Directors
Wu Long

Macau, 22nd March, 2016
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(48 AMCMO26/B/2012-DSBIAMCM ) Financial Information Disclosure (in Accordance with AMCM026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM)

TR & e A AR ICBC (MACAU) CAPITAL LIMITED

(d)

Bige e

TERCRPT) BB A A Al %
AR =Wk T M LA B A B R %
AU W ROh A B % — TR R4
JRE B A8 A P R M O A
TAF B N -

LT B 22 T A i A 1) 5 L SR A%
Ry % S SO R W Y 4 R B R
U0 S B A R o

S i DL B e R KR e
) A e Y S A Y D P O A ) S
J HSE B BT o

AT 2% 58 A A M o R R
fli it > B 22 AR 2 4R AR MR H Al SO AR 3
T AR —F a4+ H
=t HEEAGMRIMBERD > DK
WA F R SRR BN B AR

AR R > A i YA 7] R0 A % S A
WERRERTREE -

WL F
A B o 23 5
(e i B AGRR)

TR NEZA 1 TH s AWM

(d)

The report from the supervisory board

In accordance with the provision of Article
twenty-third, paragraph (e) and for the purpose
of the said provision, the Board of Directors of
ICBC (Macau) Capital Limited has submitted
to our firm the audited financial statements and
the report from Board of Directors regarding
the 2015 financial year, for issuing the related

opinion.

After reviewing the documents submitted to our
firm for opinion’s purpose, it is our opinion that
those documents evidence clearly the Bank’s

assets value and its financial and economic status.

The report of the Board of Directors clearly
evidences the Bank’s business activities
performed and carried out by the Bank in the

financial year under appraisal.

In view of the external auditor’s report, we
concur with the opinion expressed in such
report, whereas the documents supporting the
said financial statements evidence the truly and
accurate financial status exhibited in the balance
sheet dated 31st December, 2015, as well as the

financial results of the financial year ended 2015.

In view of the above said, we have decided to
approve the said financial statements and the

Report of the Board of Directors.
Single Supervisor
CSC & Associates, Auditors

(Represented by Mr. Chui Sai Cheong)

Macau, 22nd March, 2016
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(48 AMCMO26/B/2012-DSB/AMCM ¥ #E) Financial Information Disclosure (in Accordance with AMCMO026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM)

TR & e A PR A R ICBC (MACAU) CAPITAL LIMITED

(e

B8 g it it o A A

BT RO ) B B A R A A B B
W+ OP WP M S i — R e A A BR A
Al)

B A e FEWRL P 30 A7 B I 2 A e )
A B R R )R T TR R )
A AR A T 2 — T AR Y S B R
FoWERZFR-AFEZA=ZTHEZ
Vb5 A B T SR B R M

Ao

bPitoEE MM BEREE F L4
TEZA=ZT - HMEER R REE
% H kA R W RS AR - i i 5 B R A B
EMBERAR > I A E RG5O
THEE AR Ff i

W B A L g A ) P 48 2 B B R R R b
e O 7 A B 5 A A R B R H R
B B ZE A o FRAM GRSy > 20
RN > A EETH > REFS
S 785 Sk A A A R MR BB S Y o
#ﬁo

iy B 2 TR A LRI 4 3 B4 A PR
2 ) B B 5 IR 0 A0 AR A SR DA R T
A BR SRE TR > B O i 90 2 S AR R B
A W 0 e D B S A U —
PrBIE o

2 It ek I
% X6 g il Vi 9 5 i

ZEANEZAZTHE S RERM

(e)

A summary of the external auditors’ report

To all shareholders of ICBC (Macau) Capital
Limited, a corporation incorporated in the Macau
SAR:

We have audited the financial statements of ICBC
(Macau) Capital Limited for the financial year
2015, according to the Auditing Rules (“Normas
de Auditoria”) and the Technical Auditing Rules
(“Normas Técnicas de Auditoria”) of the Macau
Special Administration Region, and have issued
an unqualified audit report in respect to such
financial statement on 30th, March, 2016.

The above mentioned audited financial statement
is made up of a balance sheet, a statement of
income, a statement of changes in equity and a
cash flow statement as of 31st December, 2015,
including as well as a summary of significant

accounting policies and explanatory notes.

The attached abstract financial statement, dully
authorized by the management, is a summary of
the above mentioned audited financial statements,
the related accounts and accounting books. We
believe that the contents of such abstract financial
statement are consistent with the audited financial
statements, the related accounts and accounting

books in every significant aspect.

For a more comprehensive understanding of the
financial status and the business result and the
range of audit works of ICBC (Macau) Capital
Limited, the attached abstract financial statement
should be read along with the audited financial

statements and the independent auditor’s report.

Lei Iun Mei, Registered Auditor
KPMG

Macau, 30th March, 2016
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List of institutions in which they have holdings

over 5% of share capital, etc.

No

List of the shareholders with qualifying
holdings

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
(Macau) Limited

Name of the members of the company boards

Board of Directors

Mr. Wu Long Chairman
(Appointed on Mar 7 2016)

Mr. Jiang Yisheng Chariman
(Resigned on Mar 7, 2016)

Mr. Huen Wing Ming Patrick Director

Mr.Cheng Wing Fai Patrick Director

Ms. Lin Zi Director
(Appointed on Mar 7 2016)

Board of the General Meeting

Mr. Zhu Xiaoping Chairman

Mr. Huen Chung Yuen, lan Vice-President

Mr. Zheng Kai Secretary
Single Supervisor
CSC & Associates, Auditors

(Represented by Chui Sai Cheong)

Company Secretary
Mr. Zheng Kai
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2. Anjial 2. Corporate governance

RN E R I RA T - No committee was formed by the board of directors

during the year.

3. Bla&HinR 3. Cash flow statement
BEF—HFETH="t—HI4EE For the year ended 31 December 2015
2015 2014
MOP MOP
WL WP T
FREIh B AR P B A Cash flows from operating activities
AR 1 Profit before tax 6,756,784 3,466,850
R Adjustments for:
FEBA Interest income (1,601,343) (909,479)
i Depreciation 18,074 18,624
5,173,515 2,575,995
JRE WALk T e Al 5 7 3 Increase in receivables and other assets (23,369) (1,976)
WEAT BRI A Rl ZKTE S I Increase in amount due from the immediate
holding company (2,090,097) (3,515,549)
R A ) A% PR /A B ZKJE M i Increase in amount due from a fellow
subsidiary (371,416) (167,065)
JE Ak e HoAth B BB EE WS fin,~ (Decrease)/increase in payables and other
(WA ) liabilities 538,761 1,059,459
R E () R Cash (used in)/generated from operations
I BLA U 3,227,394 (49,136)
eSS Interest received 1,011,922 950,015
F RN E T Income taxes paid (343,734) (420,281)
mEmmEL () Net cash flows generated from operating
FA B activities 3,895,582 480,598
GG B A A N BLA T Cash flows from investing activities
JEi] 2 Y W Purchase of fixed assets (2,971) (1,702)
MR R A BB R E Purchases of held-to-maturity investments (48,274,047) —
156 T PR 0 = H G Increase in time deposits with original
TEHAE ARG maturity of more than three months (13,535,230) —
WETmHEA () Net cash flows (used in)/generated from
I BLE i investing activities (61,812,248) (1,702)
BlE&MBl &% MM FEREE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (57,916,666) 478,896
W15 4 T B4 S E Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 60,254,089 59,775,193
WK B4 K Bl & % EW Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2,337,423 60,254,089
B4 RB &S Mm% AM  Analysis of balances of cash and cash
equivalents
A7 B 4 Cash at bank 2,337,423 1,508,704
B AGIIBR =MH H Ry Time deposits with original maturity within
EMTER three months when acquired 58,745,385

Bl 4 KBl 45 EY Cash and cash equivalents 2,337,423 60,254,089
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6.1 JU Bk o i i ) R it
Y]

WA DF B s 7 44 R IR P 9 4 58 32/93/
M 5% 4> il S 2R 3 ) DA R R P AR AT
B [ 58 25/2005 5% 47 B 35 B Br R B %
e 45 1 ([ B sk o v 1) ) AR o
A B 7 i BR PR R e AR 3 A R > H ]
HH B 4 N B R o o

K 53 F8 WI A 5 b A B 2 e 7 4 P L
JC (MOP) sl & W » WIS AZIC -

6.2 frul R A S L

AP JEEAR O Vi SR A P R R B 2
e JU) | i BRI SR B R o

Off-balance sheet exposures other than
derivatives transactions

There was no off-balance sheet exposure during the

year.

Derivatives transactions

There was no derivatives transaction during the year.

Accounting policies
6.1 Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the requirements as set out
in Decree-Law No. 32/93/M and the Macau
Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”) issued
under Administrative Regulation No. 25/2005 of
Macau Special Administrative Region (“Macau
SAR”). These financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis, except
for the available-for-sale investments, which can

be measured at fair value.

These financial statements are presented in Macau
Patacas (“MOP”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest dollar except when otherwise

indicated.
6.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

During the year, the Company did not have any

changes in accounting policies under MFRSs.
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(iv)

Financial

Information Disclosure (in Accordance with AMCMO026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM)

6.3

Summary of significant accounting policies

(@)

Related parties
(1) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the
Company if that person:
(i)  has control or joint control
over the Company;
(i1)  has significant influence over
the Company; or
(iii) is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Company or of a parent of the
Company;
(2) An entity is related to the Company

if any of the following conditions

applies:

()

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

The entity and the Company
are members of the same
group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate
or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity

is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures

of the same third party.

one entity is a joint venture
of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the
third entity;
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(b)

(v)  the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the
Company or an entity related
to the Company;

(vi) The entity is controlled or
jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the
Company or to the Company’s
parent.

Close members of the family of a person
are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item
of fixed assets comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of fixed
assets have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the income statement in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of fixed assets are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Company
recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly.
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(@

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-
line basis to write off the cost of each item
of fixed assets to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual

rates used for this purpose are as follows:

— Office equipment
— Furniture and fixtures

4 to 10 years
5 to 10 years

Where parts of an item of fixed assets have
different useful lives, the cost of that item
is allocated on a reasonable basis among
the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives
and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each

financial year end.

An item of fixed assets including any
significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the
income statement in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount

of the relevant asset.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists,
or when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other
assets or group of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset

belongs.
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An impairment loss is recognised only if
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the income statement in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired

asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each
reporting period as to whether there is
any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of
an asset is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the income

statement in the period in which it arises.
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(@)

Investments and other financial assets

(0)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified as
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments, and
available-for-sale investments,
as appropriate. The Company
determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.
Financial assets are measured
initially at fair value, which normally
will be equal to the transaction price
plus, in case of a financial asset
not held at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Transaction
costs on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed

immediately.

All regular way purchases and sales
of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that
the Company commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation

or convention in the marketplace.
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(1)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of
financial assets depends on their

classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. After
initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest
rate method less any allowance
for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in operating
income in the income statement.
The loss arising from impairment is

recognised in the income statement.

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments
are non-derivative financial assets
in listed and unlisted equity
investments and debt securities.
Equity investments classified as
available-for-sale are those which
are neither classified as held for
trading nor designated at fair value
through profit or loss. Debt securities
in this category are those which are
intended to be held for an indefinite
period of time and which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity
or in response to changes in market

conditions.
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Information Disclosure (in Accordance with AMCMO026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM)

After initial recognition, available-
for-sale investments are subsequently
measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains or losses recognised
in the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in the income statement in
other income, or until the investment
is determined to be impaired, when
the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from the available-for-
sale investment revaluation reserve
to the income statement in other
expenses. Interest and dividends
earned whilst holding the available-
for-sale investments are reported as
interest income and dividend income,
respectively and are recognised in
the income statement as other income
in accordance with the accounting

policies set out in section 2.3(m).

When the fair value of unlisted
equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the
range cannot be reasonably assessed
and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost

less any impairment losses.
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(e)

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity are classified as held-
to-maturity when the Company has
the positive intention and ability to
hold the financial assets to maturity.
Held-to-maturity investments are
subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest
rate method less any allowance
for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in operating
income and in the income statement.
The loss arising from impairment is

recognised in the income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a
part of a financial asset or part of a group
of similar financial assets) is derecognised

when:

—  the rights to receive cash flows from
the asset have expired; or

— the Company has transferred
its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Company
has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.
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Information Disclosure (in Accordance with AMCMO026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM)

When the Company has transferred its
rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When
it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is recognised to the extent
of the Company’s continuing involvement
in the asset. In that case, the Company
also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Company
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form
of a guarantee over the transferred asset
is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is any
objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets
is deemed to be impaired if, and only if,
there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that
loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include indications that a debtor or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial restructuring and
observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.
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(0)

Financial assets carried at amortised

cost

For financial assets carried at
amortised cost, the Company first
assesses individually whether
objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that
are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that
are not individually significant. If
the Company determines that no
objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in
a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in the

assessment of collective impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The
present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest

rate computed at initial recognition).
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(ii)

The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced either directly or through
the use of an allowance account and
the loss is recognised in the income
statement. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the
rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has

been transferred to the Company.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount
of the estimated impairment loss
increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is
increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is

credited to the income statement.

Available-for-sale investments

For available-for-sale investments,
the Company assesses at the end
of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an
investment or a group of investments

is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is
impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost
(net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in profit or
loss, is removed from investment
revaluation reserve and recognised in

the income statement.
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In the case of equity investments
classified as available-for-sale,
objective evidence would include a
significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment below
its cost. The determination of what is
“significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has
been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognised in
the income statement — is removed
from investment revaluation reserve
and recognised in the income
statement. Impairment losses on
equity instruments classified as
available-for-sale are not reversed
through the income statement.
Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in
investment revaluation reserve.

In the case of debt instruments
classified as available-for-sale,
impairment is assessed based on
the same criteria as financial assets
carried at amortised cost. However,
the amount recorded for impairment
is the cumulative loss measured as
the difference between the amortised
cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognised in
the income statement. Future interest
income continues to be accrued based
on the reduced carrying amount of
the asset and is accrued using the
rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. The
interest income is recorded as part
of operating income in the income
statement. Impairment losses on debt
instruments are reversed through
the income statement if the increase
in fair value of the instruments can
be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in the income
statement.
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(2

Financial liabilities

(Q)

(it)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified
as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and loans
and borrowings, as appropriate.
The Company determines the
classification of its financial

liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised
initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, net of

directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities

include payables and other liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of
financial liabilities depends on their

classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-
bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised
in the income statement when the

liabilities are derecognised.

Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and include
fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in the

income statement.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised
when the obligation under the liability is

discharged, cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability
is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in the income statement.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that
are traded in active markets is determined
with reference to quoted market prices
or dealer price quotations without any
deduction for transaction costs. For
financial instruments where there is no
active market, the fair value is determined
using appropriate valuation techniques.
Such techniques include using recent
arm’s length market transactions; reference
to the current market value of another
instrument which is substantially the same;
a discounted cash flow analysis; and other

valuation models.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short
term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of
cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral

part of the Company’s cash management.
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Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present
obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen
as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided
that a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material,
the amount recognised for a provision is
the present value of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the
obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs

in the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred
tax. Income tax is recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate
to items recognised directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of that are

recognised directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the
current and prior periods are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the

Company operates.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise
from deductible and taxable temporary
differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial

reporting purposes and their tax bases.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for

all taxable temporary differences, except:

—  when the deferred tax liability
arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit

or loss; and

— in respect of taxable temporary
differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for
all deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences,
the carryforward of unused tax credits and

unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

—  when the deferred tax asset relating
to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit

or loss; and
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— in respect of deductible temporary
differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end

of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable
right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable

entity and the same taxation authority.
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(0)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and when the revenue can be
measured reliably. Investment management
fee income is recognised when the services
are provided. Interest income is recognised
on an accrual basis using the effective
interest rate method by applying the rate
that discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument to the net carrying

amount of the financial assets.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency of
the Company using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Exchange differences arising from the
settlement of such transactions and from
the retranslation at the year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are

recognised in the income statement.

Employee benefits

The Company operates a defined
contribution retirement benefits scheme
for all of its employees. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the
participating employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the

rules of the scheme.



A

Annual Report 2015

INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED ' B . % 4R 47 (3R 9 ) Bt 4 A FR & &

195

B H R BB (KR AMCMO26/B/2012-DSB/AMCM 5 X ) Financial Information Disclosure (in Accordance with AMCM026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM)

(# Continued)

TR & e A PR A R ICBC (MACAU) CAPITAL LIMITED

e

B 3k 75 38 5
7.1 SR AR EBOR
(i) AR )G B b R A R WOR

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Bt o R LA B
B AL T BT
FA VT 43 B CIR

A 2 A I7) % B 2 ] WOHOR
BB A o LR
BB IR PR B AL
TG AT W o Be DL e 2 R
G BT R A S8BT H R A e
L R -

P NN R 0y EE PN N i
JE§ 25w W B A T o R
FH 3% 7R S8 5T W B QFILAL & & 2 35
H ' 43 FE WO

A0y ) A LB A BB v ) WA
B o B AR IR A A T AE B 2\
FEaK > %A AR A R B AR
T H A PRI R o

A A ) 1) L 2 I B A ) S A
i) e Y o % 3 Hh R TS AT WA A
LB I B O IR AR R O W
T ) 2 PO VT 43 Bl S

e

Related party transactions

7.1

The policy for lending to related parties

®

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

The Company received investment
management fee income from the
immediate holding company. The
investment management fee income
was charged based on a pre-determined
percentage of the asset value of the fund

portfolio managed.

The Company received pension fund
investment management fee income
from a fellow subsidiary. The pension
fund investment management fee income
was charged based on a pre-determined
percentage of the asset value of the pension
fund portfolio managed and also the fund
management performance of the Company
compared to the pre-determined target and

benchmark return.

The Company received advisory fee income
from a fellow subsidiary of the immediate
holding company. The advisory fee income
was charged based on a pre-determined
percentage of the asset value of the QFII
portfolio managed by the fellow subsidiary

of the immediate holding company.

The Company received interest income
from the immediate holding company. The
interest income was generated from the
deposits placed with the immediate holding
company and the interest rate offered was
similar to those offered to other customers

of the immediate holding company.

The Company paid advisory fee expense
to the immediate holding company. The
advisory fee expense was charged based on
a pre-determined percentage of advisory fee
income received from a fellow subsidiary

of the immediate holding company.
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(vi) REAEBIR > AR AR
BB I B E W A R A
E W 1E 2K WM %5 13,535,230
JC(2014 = WM ¥ 58,745,385
JT ) AR R F1.45%
(2014 : 1.6325%) > fitt & I
5 AE AL ¥ 895 J6 (2014 ¢
Y 562,500 7T) > 4FFI KR
F0%FE0.01% (2014 : 0%
20.01%) > WHHILERRM ¥
2,336,528 J6(2014 * 946,204
JC) o & WA K WA B B A
HefH o

(vii) HSEREHIAR > AR AT H
5 BB 2 ) R W ) S A
" ¥ 60,223 76(2014 = ¥ [
W 77,25470) o 1 H R
B A A [ & RS A w W
P w5 W 2 W 343,286 00
(2014 44 ) 3 51 A ME W R JH
B H A 2 o

(viii) FEAE IR » BRAF R B
3 e B 2 ) 1 A BRI AS A )
BA—BHIE - ZB M
TE Ry SR ~ S0 8 R A T

(ix) SLE BB RE AR K IR 2
Jig§ 2 V) ¥ 32 T B A A AR
W~ %8 KB A W E R K
1

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

At the end of the reporting period,
the Company had bank balances
with the immediate holding
company which included time
deposits of MOP13,535,230 (2014:
MOP58,745,385) with effective
interest rates of 1.45% per annum
(2014: 1.6325% per annum), savings
account deposits of MOP895 (2014:
MOP562,500) with effective interest
rates ranging from 0 % to 0.01%
per annum (2014: 0% to 0.01%
per annum) and current account
deposits of MOP2,336,528 (2014:
MOP946,204). The time deposits
have original maturities within six

months.

At the end of the reporting period,
the Company had accrued interest
of MOP60,223 (2014: MOP77,254)
receivable from the immediate
holding company and advisory fee of
MOP343,286 (2014: Nil) receivable
from a fellow subsidiary of the
immediate holding company included

in receivables and other assets.

Apart from the bank balances with
immediate holding company, the
Company had an amount due from
immediate holding company as at
the end of the reporting period. The
amount due from immediate holding
company is unsecured, interest-free

and has no fixed terms of repayment.

The amount due from a fellow
subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free

and has no fixed terms of repayment.
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7.2 R

(a) B 75 S 85 S o A 968 4y 95 %
Z RS A > A ) BB T O AT
TUTHER S

7.2  Quantitative disclosure

(a) In addition to the transactions disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements,
other material related party transactions
entered into by the Company with related

parties are as follows:

2015
U Slid
MOP
-R2ey) SR YNCIL e S g 1 Investment management fee income received
P (ki) from immediate holding company (Note (i)
1% Iv) 2R Fi ) 2 W) LR Pension fund investment management fee
BRSO AT B (7t i) income received from a fellow subsidiary
(Note (ii))
T HiERE B AR R E /AR Advisory fee income received from a fellow
Wen ikt B (it i) subsidiary of immediate holding company
(Note (iii))
1 B SR B o W] WO L Interest income received from immediate
(#tiv) holding company (Note (iv))
ESNER ) @ YA e i i Advisory fee expense paid to immediate
R Z (V) holding company (Note (v))
A THOFS BB JBe B O W) 1 5 Bank balances with immediate
(7t vi) holding company (Note (vi))
JRE WAL G L e A 5 7 (i v ) Receivables and other assets (Note (vii))
R BT BB o ) Y 3 1 R I Amount due from immediate holding company
(7F viii) (Note (viii))
TP B I 2 w1 A AT I Bl 42 8 (7% ix)  Amount due from a fellow subsidiary (Note (ix))
8. H®|A& 8. Capital
8.1 kP 8.1 Qualitative disclosure
(a) EBEATH (a) Capital instruments
AR Share capital
2015 2014
B WL
R Authorised MOP MOP

100,000 f% » %58 1,000
JGIR G
CEBATW O AL

100,000 shares of MOP1,000 each

100,000,000

50,000 B > % 1,000
JLIR G

Issued and fully paid:
50,000 shares of MOP1,000 each
50,000,000
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BT

AN T B B A AR LR B AR
S R AEAS o SR Z BRAT R R B
B > AL T S F AWM 2 Ft
JE§ 2 R ZE M I A A S & AR BLAR
B 20% Z 3K JE A € b
HEZEME S Z SBM SRR
FAEREAERMZHEBARSAD
BITROCHR AR Z50% % 1k ©
I A 4 2 R R AR R AE AN A
ERBRMFED10%KFE > BAE
%A A 2 A UM AR F K
HAE W 2 B 2 W) 45 B AT
B B0 A Ty 1k o b Y A 4 A
BB 2 BB R R O A
A3 IR > 6 2 45 0 oK B RO
AR RE b v AR i AR RLAR
BF o

AN AR P R H AR AR
W 2 ] HE 7 A A 8 DL K% AR e
LN @ W SVS ELE I/ TIEFN
AL IR » A /) DL 2 AL
7 B R 25 2 R B BG4 AR

S 2 i) AR B AR 1 0 A AL A B K
IR E AR AR o R F 20154512
H31H 4 K#E20144 12 H 31
H—4 > BAREHENHEHE - K
SRR YR A A - KA FHA
A7 R 445 R BT AELAG I 9
AR T B R T SE A B OR o

Legal Reserve

The Company is a financial institution
regulated by the Autoridade Monetaria
de Macau (“AMCM?”). Under the terms
of relevant Macau legislation governing
financial institutions, the Company is
required to transfer to a legal reserve an
amount equal to a minimum of 20% of its
annual profit after tax until the amount
of the reserve is equal to 50% of the
Company’s issued and fully paid up share
capital. Thereafter, transfers must continue
at a minimum annual rate of 10% until the
reserve is equal to the Company’s issued
and fully paid up share capital. This reserve
is only distributable in accordance with
certain limited circumstances prescribed
by statute and will be transferred from the
annual profit after tax upon the approval
by the shareholders in the annual general

meeting after the end of reporting period.

The primary objectives of the Company’s
capital management is to safeguard the
Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain a healthy capital
adequacy ratio in order to support its
business and maximise shareholder value.
The Company monitors capital on the basis
of total equity as shown in the balance

sheet.

The Company manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments to it, in light
of changes in economic conditions. No
changes were made in the objective,
policies or processes during the years ended
31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014.
The Company is subject to the statutory
capital adequacy ratio requirement imposed
by the AMCM and the legal reserve

requirement.
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O

10.

8.2 B

8.2 Quantitative disclosure

B
MOP

CEATI AR A

Share capital

A

Legal reserve

B (B A MER)

Profits brought forward (Retained Earning)
HA A

Own Fund

o P R A BB T bl R (SR )

Operation Risk Adjusted Solvency Ratio (Group level)

L P R A B T Bl R (TR )

Operation Risk Adjusted Solvency Ratio (ICBC Capital)

it 220 8%

9.

Held-to matutiry investment

2015 2014

B WP
MOP MOP

UM BL st AR Held-to-maturity investments, at amortised

A 2R HRE cost:
b Quoted:

— HHREESF — Debt securities

AT BRI ] Held-to-maturity investments, at amortised
PrBi s AR A 2 cost analysed by category of issuer as

B HRE - follows:
Gk ) Corporate entities —
£ T, Bt 10. Credit risk

5 i B R AR DAY 22 5 3 - 347 i i B
BHBRE o FEBIBEKERRD » A
B 22 5 B F R AT L8 T o R E R
Ol BEemEREmn s » AAFAR-ZF
—HAET A= BB R E 25 TR
HI R KA PR B S R S PR P B B
P4 G T R o

AR FA —ERR B A5 PR > R A
D) KR o S B A O B 5 I B 2w AR
AT -

Investments are only in liquidity securities issued
by counterparty of sound credit standing. Given that
high credit standing, management does not expect any
investment counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.
The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event the counterparties fail to perform their obligations
as at 31 December 2015, in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets, is the carrying amount of
those assets as indicated in the balance sheet.

The Company has certain concentration of credit risk as
the majority of the Company’s assets are placed with its
immediate holding company and two corporate issuers
of debt securities.
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11.

12.

i B
SE P B 5

(a) B 55 BB B H L BN il 2

Ao i) W T 3 A B R R A A1
T A0 A R g 5 B o DA %A B B v
AU P E A B L B A [ R o AR 2w Y i 35
Je e A B SR I A R 5 Je B R A A
B S R o 22 5 BT DA B ) R i
REAG © 2015 45 A2 v A48 A i T 35 B
AR > AT $R 1T 5 L R A B B
B MR E ¥ 5 BB > A
T 55 B o o B R4 L R o

PR BR8N 5E 35 SR TR B SRR
B TAfE BRHBR S > DL 1 B R
R BB o AR B U AR ¢ K
T~ AMERIKEE - BRI B TR K & - &
B~ ERAEHES - WWEENEYE - ITR
mEM - BT - RF AR B-UREA o

TLER (B 48 A R O W) 2 o 48 A s A4 B
RIS A2 ) 5 AR g L ) R Y S AN AT e
fE > SR 2 TEAS R A BB B AR B T AR o S 2 4R
A R i A L 4 0 SR > O A A B
FHMES PO 9% T BLAT I D0 415 R B S 1 R B R
JER g A L 2R SR R T o R A A R
PR S A B A L Py — B A A 2 o

11.

12.

Market risk
Qualitative disclosure

(a) A description of its risk management objectives

and policies on market risk

The objective of market risk management is
to obtain the best balance of risk and return
of the Company’s positions arising from
movements in foreign exchange rates, interest
rates and changes in credit market condition.
The market risk policies and processes include
risk limits and exposures management, stress-
testing, counterparty evaluations and country
risks assessment. In 2015, we continued to
strengthen market risk management by improving
policies and procedures, risk reporting and limit

management.
Quantitative disclosure

Not applicable.

Operational Risk

Operational Risk is defined as the risk of loss resulting
from inadequate or problems related to internal
processes, employees and IT systems or due to external
events. There are seven major types of operational
risks faced by the Company, including internal fraud;
external fraud; employment system and workplace
safety; customers, products, and business activities;
damage to physical assets; IT system events; and

execution, delivery, and process management.

The Board of Directors and Senior Management
undertake the responsibilities to lead and implement
operational risk management and put great emphasis
on it. By allocating adequate resources, supervising the
implementation on management strategy and measures,
and appointing independent departments of the parent
company to establish and implement operational risk
management system, the consistency and efficiency of

operational risk management is ensured.
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Financial

Information Disclosure (in Accordance with AMCMO026/B/2012-DSB/AMCM)

) B E e A A F ICBC (MACAU) CAPITAL LIMITED
) % Bl B 13. Interest rate risk
<& P %% Qualitative disclosure
ARy ] W HR P A AR AR B 0 [ B R R Except for the bank balances placed with its immediate
G RCE AN F W BB A R > AR ] holding company and the fixed-coupon rate held-to-
RAEHMA A HERLSMEERAME - AF maturity investments, the Company does not maintain
A 85% (2014 4F = 97%) HYHR P 45 6% 5 WUE other interest bearing financial assets or financial
WA B R ERAT E K > %E R SRAT & liabilities. Over 85% (2014: 97%) of the bank balances
R R R R BEA B o BT I ERATIR P & are fixed deposits based on fixed interest rates and they
ERULF BRI RS > 5 B R A A A R R Z are not subject to significant interest rate risk. With
T 35 1 2R 5 ol B A o the minimal amount of bank balances with floating
interest rates, Management considers the Company’s
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
is minimal.
&% Quantitative disclosure
AT BN 52 )
175K PR 52 8 (W52 000)
Annual Interest
income change
Interest rate change (MOP’000)
e +1% +135
USD -1% -135
Kb B i, B 14. Foreign exchange risk
EMBB Qualitative disclosure

2w AR %2 il H O E AR R N I 3E o0 B E TE
Y B N 2R B B B B 20154812 H31H
2 ) B A AR N M 36 o0 B E 4 BUN R
49,648,627.35 1 4 JC(20144F : 59,389,781 M [
JG) > 5 B R A 2 ) T S A1 R R A > A
A0 A R S SR 5 W S 00 B O < D g R R A
B—EAE— A R o

R L%

FETOHA T A A BRI R 49,648,627.35 WY
7_'& o

The Company takes on exposure to effects of
fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency
exchange rates on its bank balances and a financial
asset denominated in United States dollars (“USD”)
as at 31 December 2015, which is equivalent to
MOP49,648,627.35 (2014: MOP59,389,781).
Management considers the Company’s exposure to the
risk of changes in foreign currency rates as minimal as
the historical exchange rate between MOP and USD

was within limited range.

Quantitative disclosure

Net long of US Dollar Deposit which is equivalent to
MOP49,648,627.35
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15.

16.

i ) P 15. Liquidity Risk
<& P B Qualitative disclosure
(a) Ui B ik L Rk i SR AT PR S s SR B B 4 DA (a) Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will
JRE S} 5 i 44 o AT 0 0 A A 28 5 i T encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet its
R SZ IR o v ] I SR MR 4 D) B payment obligations when due. The Company
B HL W) B AR D) B A A R B S is not exposed to significant liquidity risk. The
K B - 78 30 S 0 A T RS ) B 4 U Company’s strategy is to minimise its exposure
7 B e DA JOAR 8 2 300 56 00 3 8 ) 0 to liquidity risk by monitoring the Company’s
R AAEEITICE - capital from time to time, by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets
and liabilities.
il %27 Quantitative Disclosure
PREMEA =2 2MA A s ME
Less than Three to
three twelve
months months Undated Total
WML W T L b b
MOP MOP MOP MOP
H20154E12 H31 H As at 31 December 2015 365,713 882,742 1,405,757 2,654,212
#20144-12 H31 H  As at 31 December 2014 320,631 495,557 914,535 1,730,723
HAbE R 16. Others
(a) RIEGEHEBERIE=Z=TABNE (a) The Company's assets that are pledged as
E security for the credit institution or a third party's
liabilities
it No
(b)  FREZE B LA F BRI (b) Outstanding litigations which may have a
S significant impact on the Company's financial
position
Ei13 No
P EBBEE S B=0H FAE B LH Note: Iteml, item3, item 6, item 7 and item 15 are audited among

BUS R R ROBEGHEH o

all the items disclosed.
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FAT LI H [k 55 — 0K 18 3 AT A0 A B RE A5 — K
FISERAT > H 2009 48 B A oL DR > JBIB A5
MER MR AL > 2B HESL T MBS BRAAT TS
ML > A8 S RF WP AL B AR & ST T R BRI 1RT)
M 8 4 R 5 K F ~ HE B AL O 2 T 365 S Oy i At
SRFERARELR

1L AE R B D

ROMGEETFELEERAEEE - AWK
JRER > SCILHE 7 0 & S P ALAK 2 SR -
BRBLTHE o B AESEB BRI - R B 43 SC
A5 5 BH R A JH AR o I > RATAEAL T
TR AR5 T Y A8 2 2 H 40 722.49 BRI T
S AT ) AT BT I OB 4 96 4% o

2. MERLIE

(1) PP Ay R0 v 5 A B R Y S HF

B 5K+ A B A T OR A A
WL R SRR S B oL BT > B T 3
1 WP S SRR AR P o AT A
T 2 e Bt e | R SE AL o AT
P> SRR IR o RN L A5 o (A B e
Ji &k > AR AR ) % W AL A 2 o0
B A ERK

T A MR R A S AR B SRR - R
VAR 92 T f £ IR 385 K RE K F- 32 3k 5 4 2
F oo BB > BATHh FEBEALE
% i K 7 A £ BE B 4 R I H R MR
AR o Her 9 AR ) 52 485 oo B P R R
BEM7MIET > KR4 E 30 550
S R kR B A 4R 5600 - B
S 175 RSRT0 R BOR BRI 5
FETT » WL K A 45 [ 238 i v o 4 ) £

ICBC Macau is the second largest bank and the largest local
registered bank in Macau. Founded in 2009, it ensured itself
as a local supreme bank through its sustained efforts and
stable operation. It established an outstanding image of a
responsible bank through supporting the sustainable economic
growth of Macau, improving local financial services and

promote the development of local social welfare.

1. Social responsibility management

The Bank social responsibility work mainly led
by the Executive Office , Human Resources Dept,
cultural and sports associations and other sectoral
organizations involved in the planning, management
and implementation, around business development,
internal management and corporate culture to carry
out the work. During the reporting period, our bank
expenditures social responsibility work is about 7.2249
million MOP, the mainstream media published news

reports are about 96.

2. Social responsibility practices

(1) To support the sustainable growth of local

economy

China’s Twelfth Five-Year Plan creatively
included an independent chapter which is about
“to maintain long-term prosperity and stability in
Hong Kong and Macao”. The nation will support
Macao in developing itself into a world center of
tourism and leisure and appropriately diversifying
its economy. The Bank basing on and serving
for Macau, cooperated actively with Macao SAR
government in carrying out their policies, as well
as devoted for Macao’s diversified development

at an appropriate level.

First, it afforded local large-scale enterprises
strong financial supports in developing tourism
and exhibition industry and promoting their
comprehensive service level. During the reporting
period, the Bank successfully took the lead in
organizing syndicated loans for a plurality of
local large-scale integrated resort expansion
project, where the Sands holding $5.2 billion
syndicated loan amount of $700 million, MGM
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AR EF4 TR A2 HEY
BRREEE R W B R > AR R Bh A H
MW R - 20154 7H13H »
CRER R ~ M 32507 I 05 158\ IR W B3k
EHRBEHYTTHE)—HE » FAT
BB AL e » 1 h % B8R 2 5K Ay S o i
HMERAREEREL » HE%HA2.4
0N R o A WP R [t ECRF 8 I 1
33 BWAMEEEREE P » BIh %
[ 28 2k gk | A0 [ s B 2 A B 98, | W 16 36 H
TRBL RT3k > AR A3
EHEBRE S RE— S
AR ) BE o ATIH 2014 448 R
ET [/ SRR HE R RS > 3R 2015
EEXBRELT - eS80 EERE
S ACHL 11 4T M EB R BT
3 b JL RO B A SRAT S i IR > R
BHROE: BET5E - BRE - D
M¥E~ THRE RERNGENE-ESH
%W RPN E BHERN
2~ KB REEITE > BME 2015412 1
Koo aE 1 EAT3E REH A 3% 5 230
F o

SRR A 1 O i 2 S SR

AT 2 PP AL R B e > (B
VL 88 35 55 i A ORS B 2 RR AL & - [0 4 A
7> ARBEATEENREE 20154
AT R AW R~ WA KR -
W BT B o A T R R Y 4
BEEL G > PRB) SCHF LR 5 R R
SR~ B B K R T A
HE—— [ 3% B AH 0 K 5 IR H G
FAMIEEEHRRK o WAHSERE TR

()

Mirage holding $3 billion syndicated loan
amount of 400 million, Melco PBL holding $1.75
billion syndicated loan amount of $250 million,
Wynn Resorts Macau holding HK$23.8 billion
syndicated loan amount of HK$3.47 billion.
Second, the Bank participated in the development
and construction of Hengqin FTA and Nansha
FTA, and its helped local enterprises to “Go Out”
and expand neighboring markets. July 13, 2015,
“Guangdong Nansha, Hengqin new area cross-
border RMB loans Interim Measures” introduced,
the Bank success of a number of Guangdong
enterprises for the first cross-border RMB direct
loan, The total amount of about 240 million
yuan. Macao SAR Government recommended
the first 33 Guangdong-Macao cooperation in
the industrial park project, to provide an initial

3

success shareholder loans as “wisdom of the
city” and “Yin Li Basal Science City “two
projects effectively support the development
of local enterprises to go global. The third is
to further strengthen the financial services for
SMEs efforts. Bank in late 2014 to develop a
“SME Business Promotion Plan”, and in 2015
formally introduced. The core of the program
is mainly aimed at the business model and
the development needs of 11 local industries,
to provide professional banking and financial
services clients include: Supermarkets, catering,
logistics, engineering, jewelery, table decoration
pawnbroker industry, trade, hotels, junket
industry, real estate, automotive and electrical
industry, In the end of December 2015, increase

230 corporate clients in the 11 industry.

To support public welfare programs

The Bank devoted itself in social welfare,
proposed for the spirit of generosity, and fulfilled
its responsibilities as an enterprise citizen
consciously. In 2015, it continued to afford
scholarship for University of Macau, the Macau
Polytechnic Institute and Macau University of
Science and Technology in order to support the
development of Macau’s culture and education. It

also continued to make donations to Macau Tung
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XETRNSFMNT2 BTN AR
SHETED  ERAREMBE > 2
e A5 JE 4 A > AR ) s
£ SRR RE AT ) > ME WY EAE i 40
i B H 2 IR R I AL H 8%
B 5 20 i B MO 25 Ak R Y
BgES > RRAKE T2 M TEILE
PRI Ly it 4 77 5 3~ 2L W RBAESE ~ B
T RAE LR - 2WMBUT R LHE
HWBEURZW TG RN H
AT E M — SR RATE s BR TR
R T BATHD AR R RETER -

FE T i <5 5 7K ~F-

AT AT R e 3 WA | WY SRAT 2 H AR
308 o AR o S B LR 9 - 5
A ) SR 4 T G Tl R 35 7K F o AE R
M [ BT T+H0 1 5 BB BRI 22 i > T
RF PTG T oK 5 2 IR (R
HTD) > mfh NRAT W & P 1R 2
Tife ~ % f4 B - R§ AL 4% ¥ B B 38 Sy
Mrs RDBIEETRITHES - RBEEF
TR FRAUEAL - REAEMTEE > R
Sy P > [v) IR 4 45 A 45 R 7 ) > 4
i e B WL B 56 7 v B CF B Al A
BRSCATSF B 1 e A b A 3 5 A W 4%
34 000G S R I R AR 5 R SR BC £
A > b Bl 4 [t BORE BRI Bl R 4 2 X
T AR AN I SR I Bk T A - B
AR 2y R A DR R R 3 A 4
PR — ol X B IR > B S B A
PR J R T B 5 T 4 AT IR

3

Sin Tong Charitable Society, the most influential
and historic civilian charity in Macao. It donated
to Macau Daily News’ Readers Community Chest
Fund and organized more than 1,000 staff and
their families to take part in Annual Macau Walk
for a Million directed by the Fund. The Bank
beard the responsibility of universal education on
finance. It not only set up investment columns on
Macao Daily and Civil Daily, held all kinds of
financial lectures, but also invited professionals
to share updated financial market information
with the public. It strengthened its interactive
contact with local progressive associations and
organized its staff to engage in visiting poor
mountain area in north Guangdong province,
take part in tree-planting activities, team up to
compete in the charity football game for Special
Olympic Games, donate for victims of earthquake
in Ludian, Yunnan, etc. All of these made the
Bank a popular enterprise which is civic-minded

and social-responsible.

To enrich the intention of banking services and

improve local financial service quality

The Bank’s objective is to establish the most
respected bank in Macau. It continues to improve
customers’ satisfaction and market reputation
through innovative products and services, which
helps the Bank to keep a leading position in
peers. It first forwarded “T + 0” open financial
products in Mauca, which meet customers’
diverse financial needs. Published “Investment”
monthly, providing the comprehensive, multi-
angle investment analysis to high net worth
private banking customers ; develop electronic
banking services, according to customer demand,
continued to optimize the product features to
enrich and improve the ease of use, and build
quality of local business circles, launched the
“Macao e-mart” e-commerce platform and the
“online payment platform” for local Contact and
overseas enterprises to build a vast new market
surrounding the bridge; strengthening governance
Bank, to assist the Government in the form of

automatic transfers to eligible taxpayers apply for
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the tax refund procedures, positive for the elderly
Social security Fund benefits paid to provide
one-stop Macau convenient financial services, so
that Macao residents to settle in the country can
receive welfare payments directly in domestic
branches; production of smart card network real-
time capabilities for customers with new financial
service experience; based customer interviews
will be held, the initiative to understand the needs
of clients in the financial services for future
product design and marketing work to lay a good

foundation.

To construct green credit mechanism and lower

self energy consumption and carbon emissions

The Bank adhered to its environment-protect
responsibilities for a long time. First, it
constructed a green credit mechanism. This
mechanism took customers’ environmental
protection information for credit approval
and strictly forbid entry of enterprises with
high energy consumption and pollution.
The mechanism also supported modern
green industries and helped them to improve
comprehensive services and develop in a more
diversified way. Second, it gave priority to green
products in its procurement. The Bank’s Stand
design has acquired Green Stand Prize in the
20th Macao International Trade Investment Fair.
Third, the Bank applied new technology in order
to improve its electronic finance and lower its
energy consumption. uring the reporting period,
the Bank develop electronic banking network
to carry out intelligent transformation, the
implementation of an ATM diary comprehensive
paperless, as of the end of December 2015, the
electronic banking accounts for 70.68 percent,
up 5 points from last year, each dot most non-
cash transactions can be completed through self-

service machines.
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Anti Financial Crime.

First, the Bank strictly followed laws and rules
about Anti-Money Laundering (AML) and
Combating the Financing of Terrorism set by
local regulator and the Headquarters. It fulfilled
its social and legal responsibilities seriously.
During the reporting period, according to the
head office of the bank system requirements,
formulated the “Min-related business
management implementation details”. It actively
engaged in Anti-Money Laundering, discussed
and shared updated information about AML with
regulator and peers. It participated AML seminars
organized by AMCM, The Macau Association of
Banks, Financial Intelligence Office of Macau
SAR and other institutions, held a internal
training on AML and CFT for its staff to enhance
their awareness of compliance and sensitivities to
AML and CFT.

Second, the Bank innovated its anti-external-
fraud technology. May achieve the docking
external fraud risk information systems and
FOVA of August with APS to achieve the
docking of October to achieve the docking
and GCMS, preferably complete the scheduled
program objectives, external fraud risk
monitoring found themselves taken effective
prevention and control measures. Achieving
and FOVA, GCMS, APS three docking system
applications, withing EFMS Risk Information
data, we found 2 of 4 credit card risk customers
have not settled, the other 2 named dishonest
person, we added the 4 customers included in the
APS blacklist. Screening the credit customers in
the EFMS Risk Information data, , 10 were found
in credit risk of customers (individuals), add 6 of

them to watch list and refuse one’s loans.

To make the staff grow together with the
enterprise.

First, the Bank deepened its localization. With
the growing operating scale and the introduction
of new business and products, the Bank recruited
experienced staff from local market and graduated
from local universities steadily. Till the end of
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2015, the Bank had 894 staffs. Among them
there were 848 local citizens which amounted
to 95%. There are 4 local citizens in 10 senior
management staff.

Second, the Bank focused on and encouraged
its staffs’ development. During the reporting
period, it stuck to the strategy of “Talents make
us stronger” and afforded targeted trainings to
the staff in order to increase their comprehensive
abilities and patriotism towards mainland China
and Macao. The Bank set annual training plan
according to each department’s demand. The
training contents covered information technology
applications and operations, customer services,
internal control and compliance and other
aspects. The Bank also actively recommended
business backbones to participate professional
trainings organized by the Headquarters. Besides,
the Bank hired external professionals in time
to give lectures on wealth management, risk
management, etc., to its staff. It also encouraged
its staff to engage in other external training
courses and made proper reimbursements.

Third, the Bank promoted cultural fusion and
created a harmonious atmosphere for its staff.
It implemented the idea of “ONE ICBC” and
paid attention to accept the differences between
different cultures. It carried out abundant cultural
and sports activities for its staff. During the
reporting period, the Bank organized more than
20 such activities, including all sorts of ball
games, track and field athletics, dragon boat race
and photo contest, etc. It also arranged a vacation
and a Christmas party of all its staff and their
families. All al these showed the Bank’s loving
care for its staff and further improved its staffs’
senses of belonging, senses of honor and senses
of identity to the Bank.

The third party appraisal and awards

In the reporting period, the bank won many awards
by CUP, VISA, Master. It has been awarded Best
Bank in Macau by Global Finance, World Finance
and the Banker for a seventh straight year. The bank
has also been awarded The Best Bank in Macau by
the Asian Banker and The Most Valuable Brand by
Macau business awards first time. In the performance
of social reponsibilities, the bank won the excellent
volunteer group of Macau enterprises by The volunteers
association first.
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ICBC Macau participated in enterprise experience program
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ICBC Macau and ICBC hengq attended the meeting about
the incross-border financial policy of hengqin free trade
zone, Sep 22th, 2015

20155 2A26H - THREMMEBHECHBR TEIRHL
BEHRFELERILE

ICBC Macau and other local organizations visit the north
of guangdong, a poor mountianous, Feb 26th, 2015

2015512802 H » THREPIERFM BRE\EE LA RES
2185308

ICBC Macau made a donation of MOP300,000 to public
welfare fund of Macau daily’s readers on Dec 2nd, 2015

20155 A8 H » TRMMIRBEFBE " FETE"HE—
BERIT

ICBC Macau is a exclusive partner of spring bud project
in macau, May 8th, 2015

20155128130 » TRAM2BETRHERBELSME
=+ EARSHETEH

ICBC Macau actively engaged in 2015 Annual Macau
Walk for a Million on Dec 13th, 2015
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Offices

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
(Macau) Limited

ICBC Tower, Macau Landmark,

555 Avenida da Amizade, Macau

Tel: 2855 5222

Facsimile: 2857 0758

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
(Macau) Capital Limited

19/F, ICBC Tower, Macau Landmark, 555
Avenida da Amizade, Macau

Tel: 2855 5222

Facsimile: 8398 2360

ICBC (Macau) Pension Fund Management
Company Limited

11/F, ICBC Tower, Macau Landmark,
555 Avenida da Amizade, Macau

Tel: 2855 5222

Facsimile: 2878 0678

SengHeng Development Company Limited
13/F Guangdong Investment Tower,

148 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
Tel: (852)2165 6533

Facsimile: (852)2851 7266

Branches

Shop 002,005,006,007,008,009, Landmark,
555 Avenida da Amizade, Macau

Tel: 8398 2885

Facsimile: 2878 551

Dynasty Branch

Alm. Dr. Carlos D’Assumpgio, No. 393-437
Edf. Dynasty Plaza, Macau

Tel: 8398 7083

Facsimile: 2875 5199

Hotel Lisboa Branch
Av. da Amizade s/n
Hotel Lisboa, r/c, Macau
Tel: 8398 2268
Facsimile: 2856 2536

PG (Montepio) Branch
Ave. da Praia Grande 490
Edf. Montepio R/C, Macau
Tel: 8398 7105

Facsimile: 2871 0066

Offices and Branches (4 continued)

® w47
TR R B 351 9%
HE 8398 2288
3E 2 2833 9077

©® &Nt
EVIREIRI-£22 8K B

HE 8398 7480
3L 2 2871 5692

@ #7158 (o) S 47
WP 15 % 257 %263 HEHLAE
Ak £ 8398 7113
43 - 2838 9220

AL AT
U LA KRG 117-119 3%
KRB H T A G
Rk 8398 7163
43 : 2821 6163

R AT
U TAK 5 3 K
R T B

HE 8398 7236
43 2 2822 1090

0 BowNT
WL P BB RIS B
F S R AD-AG il
g 8398 2308
3L 2 2853 1660

@ i
P B KPS 3 64
HaHI A A-B

Rk 8398 7123
3L : 2823 8666

@ Wi
VPR KRG % 167 9%
WOR T KB T 1
Rk 8398 7398
43 : 2841 0162

@ WA T -
VLP RPN KRG 2% > P 26 A A B
BEWEF T 04 554G
Hh : 8398 7565
43 2872 6030

PG (Wan Keng) Branch

351, Av. da Praia Grande, r/c, Macau
Tel: 8398 2288

Facsimile: 2833 9077

Kam Loi Branch

Rua do Dr. Pedro Jose Lobo No.22,
Kam Loi IV, R/C “M”, Macau

Tel: 8398 7480

Facsimile: 2871 5692

SML (Largo do Senado) Branch

Avenida de Almeida Ribeiro No. 257-263,
Macau

Tel: 8398 7113

Facsimile: 2838 9220

Hung Kai Si Branch

Avenida de Horta e Costa
No. 117-119, “A”, r/c, Macau
Tel: 8398 7163

Facsimile: 2821 6163

Hoi Keng Tin Branch

Avenida Marginal do Lam Mau,
The Praia r/c E, Macau

Tel: 8398 7236

Facsimile: 2822 1090

Areia Preta Branch

Av. de Venceslau de Morais, Edf.
Lei Fung Kok, r/c,

AD-AG, Macau

Tel: 8398 2308

Facsimile: 2853 1660

Toi San Branch

Istmo de Ferreira do Amaral No. 64, Edf. [
Nam, Loja A-B, r/c, Macau

Tel: 8398 7123

Facsimile: 2823 8666

Kek Seng Branch

Avenida de Venceslau de Morais No.167, Ind.
Kek Seng R/C “I”, Macau

Tel: 8398 7398

Facsimile: 2841 0162

Macau Fisherman’s Wharf Branch

Shop 04, R/C, Harbourview Hotel, Macau
Fisherman’s Wharf, Avenida Dr. Sun Yat-Sen,
Macau

Tel: 8398 7565

Facsimile: 2841 6030
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Hoi Wan Branch

Rua de Tai Lin No. 389,

Pou Long Fa Un, R/C “G”, Taipa,
Macau

Tel: 8398 7197

Facsimile: 2886 8613

Nova Taipa Branch

Rua de Seng Tou Nos.281-293,
Urbanizagao da Nova Taipa — Fase 1
Bloco 21, 23 R/C “G”, Taipa, Macau
Tel: 8398 7388

Facsimile: 2883 5115
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Venetian Branch

Shop 861, Grand Canal Street, Shoppes Grand
Canal, The Venetian Macao Resort Hotel,
Estrada da Baia de Nossa Senhora da Esperanga,
s/n, Cotai Strip, Taipa,

Macau

Tel: 8398 7149

Facsimile: 2882 8278

Galaxy Branch

Shop 1065B 1/F Galaxy Macau Resort, Estrada
Da Baia De Nossa Senhora Da Esperanca Cotai
Macau

Tel: 8398 7255

Facsimile: 2882 5320

Studio City Branch

Shop n0.L02-2033, Studio City Macau, Estrada
do Istmo (Lotes G300, G310 e G400), Cotai,
Macau

Tel: 8398 7575

Facsimile: 2885 2390
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